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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

AMENDMENT NO. 2

TO

FORM 10
GENERAL FORM FOR REGISTRATION OF SECURITIES

PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OR 12(g) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

13-3607383
(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

5901 Silverado Trail
Napa, CA 94558

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(800) 486-0503

(Registrant��s telephone number, including area code)

Copies to:

Erle Martin
President and Chief Executive Officer
Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.
5901 Silverado Trail
Napa, CA 94558
(800) 486-0503

Corey Chivers, Esq.
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
767 Fifth Avenue
New York, New York 10153
(212) 310-8000 (Phone)
(212) 310-8007 (Fax)

Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of each class to be so
registered

Common stock, par value
$0.01 per share

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer £ Accelerated filer £

Non-accelerated filer R
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting
company)

Smaller reporting company £
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Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN REGISTRATION STATEMENT

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET BETWEEN INFORMATION STATEMENT
AND ITEMS OF FORM 10

Certain information required to be included herein is incorporated by reference to specifically identified portions of the
body of the information statement filed herewith as Exhibit 99.1. None of the information contained in the information
statement shall be incorporated by reference herein or deemed to be a part hereof unless such information is specifically
incorporated by reference.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The information required by this item is contained under the sections of the information statement entitled �Information
Statement Summary� and �Business.� Those sections are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Risk Factors.�
That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 2. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information required by this item is contained under the sections of the information statement entitled �Selected
Historical Consolidated Financial Data� and �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.� Those sections are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 3. PROPERTIES

The information required by this item is contained under the sections of the information statement entitled
�Business�Overview� and �Business�Properties.� Those sections are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.� That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Management.�
That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 6. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Executive
Compensation.� That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 7. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is contained under the sections of the information statement entitled �Management�
and �Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions.� Those sections are incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 8. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled
�Business�Legal Proceedings.� That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON THE REGISTRANT��S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is contained under the sections of the information statement entitled �Dividend
Policy� and �Description of Capital Stock.� Those sections are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Description of
Capital Stock�Sale of Unregistered Securities.� That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. DESCRIPTION OF REGISTRANT��S SECURITIES TO BE REGISTERED

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Description of
Capital Stock.� That section is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Description of
Capital Stock�Limitations on Liability, Indemnification of Officers and Directors, and Insurance.� That section is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 13. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this item is contained under the sections of the information statement entitled �Index to
Consolidated or Combined Financial Statements� (and the financial statements referenced therein). That section is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 15. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS

(a) Financial Statements

The information required by this item is contained under the section of the information statement entitled �Index to
Consolidated or Combined Financial Statements� (and the financial statements referenced therein). That section is
incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits
See below.
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The following documents are filed as exhibits hereto:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

2.1 Form of Separation Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Leucadia National Corporation.
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation.�
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, effective November 16, 2007.�
3.3 Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.�
3.4 By-Laws.�
3.5 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws.�
4.1 Form of Specimen Stock Certificate.
10.1 Employment Agreement between Leucadia Cellars & Estates, LLC and Patrick M. DeLong, dated June 19, 2007.�
10.2 Employment Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Mike S. Cekay, dated March 26, 2012.�
10.3 Form of Tax Matters Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Leucadia National Corporation.

10.4
Form of Administrative Services Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Leucadia National
Corporation.

10.5 Form of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan.
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.�

99.1
Information Statement of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., preliminary and subject to completion, dated January 28,
2013.

� Previously filed.

3

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

By:
/s/ Erle Martin

Name: Erle Martin

Title:
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Date: January 28, 2013.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

2.1 Form of Separation Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Leucadia National Corporation.
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation.�
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, effective November 16, 2007.�
3.3 Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.�
3.4 By-Laws.�
3.5 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws.�
4.1 Form of Specimen Stock Certificate.
10.1 Employment Agreement between Leucadia Cellars & Estates, LLC and Patrick M. DeLong, dated June 19, 2007.�
10.2 Employment Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Mike S. Cekay, dated March 26, 2012.�
10.3 Form of Tax Matters Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Leucadia National Corporation.

10.4
Form of Administrative Services Agreement between Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and Leucadia National
Corporation.

10.5 Form of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan.
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.�

99.1
Information Statement of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., preliminary and subject to completion, dated January 28,
2013.

� Previously filed.
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Exhibit 2.1
SEPARATION AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN
LEUCADIA NATIONAL CORPORATION

AND
CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

Dated [�] [�], 2013

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS 2

1.1 Certain Definitions 2

1.2 Other Terms 5

ARTICLE II THE CONTRIBUTION 6

2.1 Contributed Assets 6

2.2 Transfer of Contributed Assets 6

2.3 Termination of Agreements and Arrangements 6

2.4 Bank Accounts; Cash Balances 7

ARTICLE III THE DISTRIBUTION 8

3.1 Actions at or Prior to the Effective Time 8

3.2 Conditions Precedent to Distribution 8

3.3 The Distribution 9

3.4 Authorization of Agreement 9

ARTICLE IV ACCESS TO INFORMATION 10

4.1 Agreement for Exchange of Information; Archives 10

4.2 Ownership of Information 11

4.3 Compensation for Providing Information 11

4.4 Record Retention 12

4.5 Other Agreements Providing for Exchange of Information 12

ARTICLE V RELEASE; INDEMNIFICATION; AND GUARANTEES 13
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5.1 Release of Pre-Distribution Claims 13

5.2 General Indemnification by Crimson 14

5.3 General Indemnification by Leucadia 15

5.4 Indemnification Obligations Net of Insurance Proceeds and Other Amounts 15

5.5 Procedures for Indemnification of Third Party Claims 15

5.6 Additional Matters 17

5.7 Remedies Cumulative; Limitations of Liability 18

5.8 Survival of Indemnities 18

ARTICLE VI OTHER AGREEMENTS 18

6.1 Further Assurances 18

6.2 Confidentiality 19

6.3 Insurance Matters 20
i

6.4 Allocation of Costs and Expenses 23

6.5 Tax Matters 23

ARTICLE VII DISPUTE RESOLUTION 24

7.1 General Provisions 24

7.2 Consideration by Senior Executives 24

7.3 Mediation 24

7.4 Specific Performance 25

7.5 Jurisdiction; Enforcement 25

ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS 26

8.1 Governing Law 26

8.2 Survival of Covenants 26
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8.3 Force Majeure 26

8.4 Notices 26

8.5 Termination 27

8.6 Severability 27

8.7 Entire Agreement 27

8.8 Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries 27

8.9 Public Announcements 28

8.10 Amendment 28

8.11 Rules of Construction 28

8.12 Counterparts 28
ii

EXHIBITS

A Crimson Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
B Crimson Amended and Restated Bylaws
C Tax Matters Agreement
D Administrative Services Agreement
SCHEDULE

1.1 Crimson Group
iii

SEPARATION AGREEMENT
This SEPARATION AGREEMENT (this �Agreement�), dated as of [�], 2013, is by and between Leucadia National

Corporation, a New York corporation (�Leucadia�), and Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., a Delaware corporation (�Crimson�). Capitalized
terms used herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in Article I hereof or as otherwise expressly set forth herein.

RECITALS
WHEREAS, Crimson is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leucadia engaged in the production and sale of premium, ultra-

premium and luxury wines;
WHEREAS, the board of directors of Leucadia and the board of directors of Crimson have approved the transfer of the

Contributed Assets to Crimson and its Subsidiaries (the �Contribution�), as more fully described in this Agreement;
WHEREAS, the board of directors of Leucadia has determined that it is advisable and in the best interests of Leucadia for

Leucadia to distribute all of the outstanding shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of Crimson (the �Crimson Common
Stock�) to the holders of issued and outstanding common shares, par value $1.00 per share, of Leucadia (the �Leucadia Common
Shares�) as of the close of business on the Record Date, on the basis of one share of Crimson Common Stock for every ten Leucadia
Common Shares, provided, however, that no fractional shares shall be issued (the �Distribution�);

WHEREAS, Leucadia and Crimson have prepared, and Crimson has filed with the SEC, the Form 10, including the
information statement contained therein, and which sets forth disclosure concerning Crimson and the Distribution;

WHEREAS, Leucadia and Crimson intend that, for federal income Tax purposes, the contribution of the Intercompany
Indebtedness and the obligation to make the Cash Contribution and the Distribution will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning
of Section 368(a) of the Code and a distribution to which Section 355 of the Code applies;
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WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to be a �plan of reorganization� within the meaning of Treas. Reg. 1.368-2(g) with
respect to the Contribution and the Distribution; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and desirable to set forth the principal corporate transactions required to effect the
Contribution and the Distribution and to set forth certain other agreements that will, following the Distribution, govern certain matters
relating to the Contribution and the Distribution and the relationship of Leucadia, Crimson and their respective Subsidiaries.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements
contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and
intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified in this
Section 1.1:

�Action� means any demand, action, claim, dispute, suit, countersuit, arbitration, inquiry, subpoena, proceeding or
investigation of any nature (whether criminal, civil, legislative, administrative, regulatory, prosecutorial or otherwise) by or before any
federal, state, local, foreign or international Governmental Authority or any arbitration or mediation tribunal.

�Administrative Services Agreement� means the Administrative Services Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit D, to be
entered into by and between Leucadia and Crimson, and/or any of their respective Subsidiaries, at or prior to the Effective Time.

�Affiliate� (including, with a correlative meaning, �affiliated�) means, when used with respect to a specified Person, a
Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such
specified Person. For the purpose of this definition, �control� (including with correlative meanings, �controlled by� and �under
common control with�), when used with respect to any specified Person shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities or other
interests, by Contract, agreement, obligation, promise, arrangement or otherwise. It is expressly agreed that, from and after the Effective
Time and for purposes of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, no member of the Crimson Group shall be deemed to be an
Affiliate of any member of the Leucadia Group, and no member of the Leucadia Group shall be deemed to be an Affiliate of any
member of the Crimson Group.

�Ancillary Agreements� means the Tax Matters Agreement and the Administrative Services Agreement.
�Code� means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
�Contract� means any contract, agreement, indenture, note, bond, mortgage, loan, instrument, lease, license, commitment

or other arrangement, understanding, undertaking, commitment or obligation, whether written or oral.
�Crimson Business� means the management, operation and development of the properties and assets described in Item 1 of

the Form 10, as conducted by any member of the Crimson Group immediately prior to the Effective Time.
�Crimson Contracts� means the following Contracts, to the extent in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time:
(a) any Contracts to which one or more members of the Crimson Group is a party; provided that no members of the

Leucadia Group are also party to such Contracts;
2

(b) any Contracts that relate exclusively to the Crimson Business; and
(c) any Contract that is otherwise expressly contemplated pursuant to this Agreement or any of the Ancillary

Agreements to be assigned to Crimson or any member of the Crimson Group.
�Crimson Disclosure Documents� means any registration statement (including the Form 10) filed with the SEC in the name

of any member of the Crimson Group as registrant, and any prospectus, offering memorandum, offering circular or similar disclosure
document, whether or not filed with the SEC or any other Governmental Authority, that is prepared in connection with any such
registration statement.

�Crimson Group� means Crimson and each of its direct and indirect Subsidiaries as set forth on Schedule 1.1.
�Crimson Liabilities� means liabilities of the Crimson Group or relating to the Crimson Business or assets of Crimson.
�Distribution Agent� means American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC (and/or its Affiliates).
�Effective Time� means 12:01am [ET] on [�], 2013, or such other time as determined by Leucadia in accordance with

Section 3.3(b).
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�Exchange Act� means the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the
SEC thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time that reference is made.

�Force Majeure� means, with respect to a party, an event beyond the reasonable control of such party (or any Person acting
on its behalf), and includes acts of God, storms, floods, riots, fires, sabotage, civil commotion or civil unrest, interference by civil or
military authorities, acts of war (declared or undeclared) or armed hostilities or other national or international calamity or one or more
acts of terrorism or failure of energy sources or distribution facilities. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the receipt by a party of an
unsolicited takeover offer or other acquisition proposal, even if unforeseen or unavoidable, and such party�s response thereto shall not
be deemed an event of Force Majeure.

�Form 10� means the registration statement on Form 10 filed by Crimson with the SEC on December 7, 2012 to effect the
registration of Crimson Common Stock pursuant to the Exchange Act, as such registration statement may be amended or supplemented
from time to time.

�Governmental Authority� means any nation or government, any state, municipality or other political subdivision thereof,
and any entity, body, agency, commission, department, board, bureau, court, tribunal or other instrumentality, whether federal, state,
local, domestic, foreign or multinational, exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory, administrative or other similar functions
of, or pertaining to, government and any executive official thereof.

3

�Group� means the Leucadia Group or the Crimson Group, as the context requires.
�Information Statement� means the information statement to be sent to each holder of Leucadia Common Shares in

connection with the Distribution, as filed with the SEC, as such information statement may be amended or supplemented from time to
time prior to the Effective Time.

�Law� means any national, supranational, federal, state, provincial, local or similar law (including common law), statute,
code, order, ordinance, rule, regulation, treaty (including any income tax treaty), license, permit, authorization, approval, consent,
decree, injunction, binding judicial or administrative interpretation or other requirement, in each case, enacted, promulgated, issued or
entered by a Governmental Authority.

�Leucadia Business� means the businesses and operations conducted immediately prior to the Effective Time by any
member of the Leucadia Group that are not included in the Crimson Business.

�Leucadia Disclosure Documents� means any registration statement filed with the SEC in the name of any member of the
Leucadia Group as registrant, and any prospectus, offering memorandum, offering circular or similar disclosure document, whether or
not filed with the SEC or any other Governmental Authority, that is prepared in connection with any such registration statement.

�Leucadia Group� means Leucadia and each of its direct and indirect Subsidiaries, expressly excluding the Crimson Group.
�Leucadia Liabilities� means liabilities of the Leucadia Group or relating to the Leucadia Business or assets of Leucadia,

expressly excluding Crimson Liabilities.
�Person� means any individual, corporation, partnership, firm, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust,

unincorporated organization, limited liability company, Governmental Authority or other entity.
�Record Date� means [�], 2013.
�SEC� means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
�Securities Act� means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the SEC

thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time that reference is made.
�Subsidiary� or �subsidiary� means, with respect to any Person, any corporation, limited liability company, joint venture or

partnership of which such Person (i) beneficially owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50% of (A) the total combined voting
power of all classes of voting securities of such Person, (B) the total combined equity interests or (C) the capital or profit interests, in
the case of a partnership, or (ii) otherwise has the power to vote,

4

either directly or indirectly, sufficient securities, or the contractual right, to elect a majority of the board of directors or similar governing
body or the managing partner or managing member.

�Tax� has the meaning set forth in the Tax Matters Agreement.
�Tax Matters Agreement� means the Tax Matters Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit C, to be entered into by and

between Leucadia and Crimson at or prior to the Effective Time.
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�Transactions� means, collectively, the Contribution, the Distribution and all other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement.

1.2 Other Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth in the sections indicated.

Term Section

Agreement Preamble
Amended and Restated Bylaws 3.1(a)
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation 3.1(a)
Cash Contribution 2.1(a)
Confidential Information 6.2(a)
Contributed Assets 2.1
Contribution Recitals
Crimson Preamble
Crimson Accounts 2.4(a)
Crimson Common Stock Recitals
Crimson Indemnified Parties 5.3
Dispute 7.1(a)
Distribution Recitals
Indemnified Party 5.4(a)
Indemnifying Party 5.4(a)
Indemnity Payment 5.4(a)
Initial Notice 7.2
Intercompany Indebtedness 2.1(a)
Leucadia Preamble
Leucadia Accounts 2.4(a)
Leucadia Common Shares Recitals
Leucadia Indemnified Parties 5.2
Linked 2.4(a)
Representatives 6.2(a)
Response 7.2
Shared Information 6.2(a)
Special Damages 5.8
Third Party Claim 5.5(a)

5

ARTICLE II
THE CONTRIBUTION

2.1 Contributed Assets. For purposes of this Agreement, �Contributed Assets� shall mean the following assets:
(a) any and all intercompany indebtedness for money borrowed by Crimson and its Subsidiaries and owed to Leucadia

or any of its Subsidiaries existing immediately prior to the Effective Time (the �Intercompany Indebtedness�); and
(b) cash in an amount not to exceed $20,000,000, the exact amount to be determined taking into account the amount of

the Intercompany Indebtedness, such that the book value of Leucadia, after giving effect to the Contribution and the Distribution, is not
reduced by more than $197,000,000 (the �Cash Contribution�).

2.2 Transfer of Contributed Assets. On the condition that the Contribution and the Distribution would not reduce the book
value of Leucadia by more than $197,000,000, Leucadia shall, and shall cause its applicable Subsidiaries to, assign, transfer, convey and
deliver to Crimson or certain of Crimson�s Subsidiaries designated by Crimson, and Crimson or such Subsidiaries shall accept from
Leucadia and its applicable Subsidiaries, all of Leucadia�s and such Subsidiaries� respective direct or indirect right, title and interest in
and to all the Contributed Assets as follows:
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(a) the Intercompany Indebtedness � to be assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered prior to the Effective Time; and
(b) the Cash Contribution � to be paid within five (5) business days of the delivery by Crimson to Leucadia and

acceptance by Leucadia of a full financial reporting package for the Crimson Group for the two-month period ending February 28,
2013, such financial information to be presented in a format that is customary for the Leucadia Group, such package to be delivered to
Leucadia as soon as available but in no event later than March 20, 2013.

2.3 Termination of Agreements and Arrangements.
(a) Except as set forth in Section 2.3(b), in furtherance of the releases and other provisions of Section 5.1, Crimson and

each member of the Crimson Group, on the one hand, and Leucadia and each member of the Leucadia Group, on the other hand, hereby
terminate, effective as of the Effective Time, any and all agreements, arrangements, commitments or understandings, whether or not in
writing, solely between or among Crimson and/or any member of the Crimson Group, on the one hand, and Leucadia and/or any
member of the Leucadia Group, on the other hand, effective as of the Effective Time; provided, however, to the extent that termination
of any such agreement, arrangement, commitment or understanding is inconsistent with any Ancillary Agreement, such termination
shall be determined pursuant to the applicable Ancillary Agreement. No such terminated agreement, arrangement, commitment or
understanding (including any provision thereof which purports to survive termination) shall be of any further force or effect after the
Effective Time (or, to the extent contemplated by the proviso

6

to the immediately preceding sentence, after the effective date of the applicable Ancillary Agreement). Each party shall, at the
reasonable request of any other party, take, or cause to be taken, such other actions as may be necessary to effect the foregoing.

(b) The provisions of Section 2.3(a) shall not apply to this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements (and each other
agreement or instrument expressly contemplated by this Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement to be entered into or continued by any
of the parties hereto or any of the members of their respective Groups), or to any of the provisions hereof and thereof.

2.4 Bank Accounts; Cash Balances.
Except as may be set forth in the Administrative Services Agreement:

(a) Leucadia and Crimson each agrees to take, or cause the respective members of their respective Groups to take, to be
effective at the Effective Time (or such earlier time as Leucadia and Crimson may agree), all actions necessary to amend all Crimson
Contracts governing each bank and brokerage account owned by Crimson or any other member of the Crimson Group (collectively, the
�Crimson Accounts�), so that such Crimson Accounts, if currently linked (whether by automatic withdrawal, automatic deposit or any
other authorization to transfer funds from or to, hereinafter �linked�) to any bank or brokerage account owned by Leucadia or any other
member of the Leucadia Group (collectively, the �Leucadia Accounts�), are de-linked from the Leucadia Accounts effective at or prior
to the Effective Time.

(b) Leucadia and Crimson each agrees to take, or cause the respective members of their respective Groups to take, to be
effective at the Effective Time (or such earlier time as Leucadia and Crimson may agree), all actions necessary to amend all Crimson
Contracts governing the Leucadia Accounts so that such Leucadia Accounts, if currently linked to a Crimson Account, are de-linked
from the Crimson Accounts.

(c) With respect to any outstanding checks issued by Leucadia, Crimson or any of their respective Subsidiaries prior to
the Effective Time, such outstanding checks shall be honored following the Effective Time by the Person or Group owning the account
on which the check is drawn with prompt reimbursement from the Person or Group that issued such check, if applicable.

(d) As between Leucadia and Crimson (and the members of their respective Groups) all payments and reimbursements
received after the Effective Time by either party (or member of its Group) that relate principally to a business, asset or liability of the
other party (or member of its Group) shall be held by such party in trust for the use and benefit of the party entitled thereto and,
promptly upon receipt by such party of any such payment or reimbursement, such party shall pay over, or shall cause the applicable
member of its Group to pay over to the other party the amount of such payment or reimbursement without right of set-off.
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ARTICLE III
THE DISTRIBUTION

3.1 Actions at or Prior to the Effective Time. At or prior to the Effective Time, the following shall occur:
(a) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws. (i) Leucadia and Crimson

shall each take all necessary action that may be required to provide for the adoption by Crimson of the Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of Crimson in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the �Amended and Restated Certificate
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of Incorporation�), and the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Crimson in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the
�Amended and Restated Bylaws�) and (ii) Crimson shall file the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Crimson with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

(b) The Distribution Agent. Leucadia shall enter into a distribution agent agreement with the Distribution Agent or
otherwise provide instructions to the Distribution Agent regarding the Distribution.

(c) Stock-Based Employee Benefit Plans. Leucadia and Crimson shall take all actions as may be necessary to adopt a
stock-based employee benefit plan of Crimson in order to satisfy the requirements of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act.

3.2 Conditions Precedent to Distribution. In no event shall the Distribution occur unless each of the following conditions shall
have been satisfied (or waived by Leucadia, in whole or in part, in its sole discretion):

(a) the transfer of the Intercompany Indebtedness shall have been completed in accordance with Article II of this
Agreement;

(b) the Form 10 filed with the SEC shall have been declared effective by the SEC, no stop order suspending the
effectiveness of the Form 10 shall be in effect, no proceedings for such purpose shall be pending before or threatened by the SEC, and
the Information Statement shall have been mailed to holders of Leucadia Common Shares as of the Record Date;

(c) each of the Ancillary Agreements shall have been duly executed and delivered by the parties thereto;
(d) Leucadia shall have received an opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP to the effect that the contribution of the

Intercompany Indebtedness and the obligation to make the Cash Contribution and the Distribution will qualify as a reorganization
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and a distribution to which Section 355 of the Code applies, respectively;

(e) no order, injunction or decree issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition
preventing consummation of the Distribution or any of the transactions related thereto, including the Contribution, shall be in effect; and
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(f) no event or development shall have occurred or exist that, in the judgment of the board of directors of Leucadia, in its
sole discretion, makes it inadvisable to effect the Contribution, the Distribution or the other transactions contemplated hereby.
Each of the foregoing conditions is for the sole benefit of Leucadia and shall not give rise to or create any duty on the part of Leucadia
or its board of directors to waive or not to waive any such condition or to effect the Contribution and the Distribution, or in any way
limit Leucadia�s rights of termination set forth in this Agreement. Any determination made by Leucadia prior to the Distribution
concerning the satisfaction or waiver of any or all of the conditions set forth in this Section 3.2 shall be conclusive and binding on the
parties.

3.3 The Distribution.
(a) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, (i) at or prior to the Effective Time, Leucadia shall

deliver to the Distribution Agent for the benefit of holders of record of Leucadia Common Shares on the Record Date, certificates for
such number of the issued and outstanding shares of Crimson Common Stock necessary to effect the Distribution, (ii) the Distribution
shall be effective at the Effective Time and (iii) Leucadia shall instruct the Distribution Agent to distribute, at or as soon as practicable
after the Effective Time, to each holder of record of Leucadia Common Shares as of the Record Date, by means of a pro rata
distribution, one share of Crimson Common Stock for every ten Leucadia Common Shares, provided, however, that no fractional shares
shall be issued, and any such fractional shares shall be aggregated and sold in the public market by the Distribution Agent and the
aggregate net cash proceeds will be distributed pro rata to those holders of record otherwise entitled to fractional shares. Following the
Effective Time, Crimson agrees to provide all certificates for shares of Crimson Common Stock that Leucadia or the Distribution Agent
shall require (after giving effect to Section 3.4) in order to effect the Distribution.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, Leucadia shall, in its sole and absolute
discretion, determine the Effective Time and all terms of the Distribution, including the form, structure and terms of any transactions
and/or offerings to effect the Distribution and the timing of and conditions to the consummation thereof. In addition, Leucadia may at
any time and from time to time, in its sole and absolute discretion, until the completion of the Distribution decide to abandon the
Distribution or modify or change the terms of the Distribution, including by accelerating or delaying the timing of the consummation of
all or part of the Distribution.

3.4 Authorization of Agreement.
(a) Leucadia has all requisite power, authority and legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement and each

Ancillary Agreement to be executed by Leucadia in connection with the consummation of the Distribution, and to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each of the Ancillary
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Agreements, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, have been duly authorized and approved by all
required action on the part of Leucadia. This Agreement has been, and each of the Ancillary Agreements will be at or prior to the
Effective Time, duly and validly executed and delivered by Leucadia and (assuming due
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authorization, execution and delivery by Crimson) this Agreement constitutes, and each of the Ancillary Agreements when so executed
and delivered will constitute, legal, valid and binding obligations of Leucadia, enforceable against Leucadia in accordance with its
terms.

(b) Crimson has all requisite power, authority and legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement and each
Ancillary Agreement to be executed by Crimson in connection with the consummation of the Distribution, and to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each of the Ancillary
Agreements, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, have been duly authorized and approved by all
required action on the part of Crimson. This Agreement has been, and each of the Ancillary Agreements will be at or prior to the
Effective Time, duly and validly executed and delivered by Crimson and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by
Leucadia) this Agreement constitutes, and each of the Ancillary Agreements when so executed and delivered will constitute, legal, valid
and binding obligations of Crimson, enforceable against Crimson in accordance with its terms.

ARTICLE IV
ACCESS TO INFORMATION

4.1 Agreement for Exchange of Information; Archives.
(a) After the Effective Time (or such earlier time as the parties may agree) and until the fifth anniversary of the date of

this Agreement, each of Leucadia and Crimson, on behalf of its respective Group, agrees to provide, or cause to be provided, to the
other Group, as soon as reasonably practicable after written request therefor, any information in the possession or under the control of
such respective Group which the requesting party reasonably needs (i) to comply with reporting, disclosure, filing or other requirements
imposed on the requesting party (including under applicable securities Laws) by a Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over the
requesting party, (ii) to carry out its human resources functions or to establish, assume or administer its benefit plans or payroll
functions, (iii) in order to satisfy audit, accounting or other similar requirements (except as otherwise provided in Section 4.1(d)), or (iv)
to comply with its obligations under this Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement; provided, however, that in the event that any party
determines that any such provision of information could be commercially detrimental, violate any Law or agreement, or waive any
attorney-client privilege, the parties shall take all reasonable measures to permit the compliance with such obligations in a manner that
avoids any such harm or consequence.

(b) After the Effective Time (or such earlier time as the parties may agree) and until the fifth anniversary of the date of
this Agreement, (i) Crimson and its authorized accountants, counsel and other designated representatives shall have access during
regular business hours (as in effect from time to time) to the documents and objects of historic significance that relate to the Crimson
Business that are located in archives retained or maintained by any member of the Leucadia Group, and (ii) Crimson may obtain copies
(but not originals) of documents for bona fide business purposes and may obtain objects for exhibition purposes for commercially
reasonable periods of time if required for such bona fide business purposes; provided, that Crimson shall cause any such objects to be
returned promptly in the
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same condition in which they were delivered to Crimson and Crimson shall comply with any rules, procedures or other requirements,
and shall be subject to any restrictions (including prohibitions on removal of specified objects), that are then applicable to Leucadia.
Nothing herein shall be deemed to restrict the access of any member of the Leucadia Group to any such documents or objects or to
impose any liability on any member of the Leucadia Group if any such documents or objects are not maintained or preserved by
Leucadia.

(c) After the Effective Time (or such earlier time as the parties may agree) and until the fifth anniversary of the date of
this Agreement, (i) Leucadia and its authorized accountants, counsel and other designated representatives shall have access during
regular business hours (as in effect from time to time) to the documents and objects of historic significance that relate to the Leucadia
Business that are located in archives retained or maintained by any member of the Crimson Group and (ii) Leucadia may obtain copies
(but not originals) of documents for bona fide business purposes and may obtain objects for exhibition purposes for commercially
reasonable periods of time if required for such bona fide business purposes; provided, that Leucadia shall cause any such objects to be
returned promptly in the same condition in which they were delivered to Leucadia and Leucadia shall comply with any rules, procedures
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or other requirements, and shall be subject to any restrictions (including prohibitions on removal of specified objects), that are then
applicable to Crimson. Nothing herein shall be deemed to restrict the access of any member of the Crimson Group to any such
documents or objects or to impose any liability on any member of the Crimson Group if any such documents or objects are not
maintained or preserved by Crimson.

(d) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, until the fifth Crimson fiscal year end occurring after the Effective
Time (and for a reasonable period of time afterwards as required for each of Leucadia and Crimson to prepare consolidated financial
statements or complete a financial statement audit for the fiscal year during which the Effective Time occurs), each of Leucadia and
Crimson shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with the other party�s information requests to enable (i) the other
party to meet its timetable for dissemination of its earnings releases, financial statements and management�s assessment of the
effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures and its internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the Exchange
Act, and (ii) the other party�s accountants to timely complete their review of the quarterly financial statements and audit of the annual
financial statements, including, to the extent applicable to such party, its auditor�s audit of its internal control over financial reporting
and management�s assessment thereof in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC�s and Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board�s rules and auditing standards thereunder.

4.2 Ownership of Information. Any information owned by one Group that is provided to a requesting party pursuant to
Section 4.1 shall be deemed to remain the property of the providing party, except where such information is an asset of the requesting
party pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement. Unless specifically set forth herein, nothing contained
in this Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring rights of license or otherwise in any information requested or provided
pursuant to Section 4.1.

4.3 Compensation for Providing Information. The party requesting information agrees to reimburse the other party for the
reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses, if any, of
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creating, gathering and copying such information (including any costs and expenses incurred in any review of information for purposes
of protecting the privileged information of the providing party or in connection with the restoration of backup tapes for purposes of
providing the requested information), to the extent that such costs are incurred in connection with such other party�s provision of
information in response to the requesting party.

4.4 Record Retention.
(a) To facilitate the possible exchange of information pursuant to this Article IV and other provisions of this Agreement

after the Effective Time, the parties agree to use their commercially reasonable efforts to retain all information in their respective
possession or control in accordance with the policies or ordinary course practices of Leucadia or Crimson, as applicable, in effect at the
Effective Time or such other policies or practices as may be reasonably adopted by the appropriate party after the Effective Time.

(b) Except in accordance with its, or its applicable Subsidiaries�, policies and ordinary course practices, no party will
destroy, or permit any of its Subsidiaries to destroy, any information that would, in accordance with such policies or ordinary course
practices, be archived or otherwise filed in a centralized filing system by such party or its applicable Subsidiaries; provided, however,
that (i) in the case of any information relating to employee benefits, no party will destroy, or permit any of its Subsidiaries to destroy,
any such information until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations (giving effect to any extensions thereof), (ii) in the case
of any information relating to a pending or threatened Action (including any pending or threatened investigation by a Governmental
Authority) that is known to the members of the Group in possession of such information, the parties shall reasonably cooperate with
each other and (iii) no party will destroy, or permit any of its Subsidiaries to destroy, any information required to be retained by
applicable Law.

(c) In the event of either party�s or any of its Subsidiaries� inadvertent failure to comply with its applicable document
retention policies as required under this Section 4.4, such party shall be liable to the other party solely for the amount of any monetary
fines or penalties imposed or levied against such other party by a Governmental Authority (which fines or penalties shall not include
any liabilities asserted in connection with the claims underlying the applicable Action, other than fines or penalties resulting from any
claim of spoliation) as a result of such other party�s inability to produce information caused by such inadvertent failure and,
notwithstanding Sections 5.2 and 5.3, shall not be liable to such other party for any other liabilities.

4.5 Other Agreements Providing for Exchange of Information.
(a) Any party that receives, pursuant to a request for information in accordance with this Article IV, information that is

not relevant to its request shall (i) either destroy such information or return it to the providing party and (ii) deliver to the providing
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party a certificate certifying that such information was destroyed or returned, as the case may be, which certificate shall be signed by an
officer of the requesting party holding the title of vice president or above; provided, however, to the extent the non-relevant information
is in original form
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(rather than a photocopy or electronic or other reproduction thereof), such non-relevant information shall be returned to the providing
party and not destroyed.

(b) When any information provided by one Group to the other (other than information provided pursuant to Section 4.4)
is no longer needed for the purposes contemplated by this Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement and is no longer required to be
retained by applicable Law, the receiving party will promptly after request of the other party either return to the other party all
information in a tangible form (including all copies thereof and all notes, extracts or summaries based thereon) or certify to the other
party that it has destroyed such information (and such copies thereof and such notes, extracts or summaries based thereon).

ARTICLE V
RELEASE; INDEMNIFICATION; AND GUARANTEES

5.1 Release of Pre-Distribution Claims.
(a) Except as provided in the Tax Matters Agreement, effective as of the Effective Time, Crimson does hereby, for itself

and each other member of the Crimson Group, their respective Subsidiaries, successors and assigns, and all Persons who at any time
prior to the Effective Time have been directors, officers, agents or employees of any member of the Crimson Group (in each case, in
their respective capacities as such), remise, release and forever discharge Leucadia and the other members of the Leucadia Group, their
respective Subsidiaries, successors and assigns, and all Persons who at any time prior to the Effective Time have been stockholders,
equityholders, directors, officers, agents or employees of any member of the Leucadia Group (in each case, in their respective capacities
as such), and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, from any and all liabilities whatsoever, whether at
law or in equity (including any right of contribution), whether arising under any Contract or agreement, by operation of Law or
otherwise, existing or arising from any acts or events occurring or failing to occur or alleged to have occurred or to have failed to occur
or any conditions existing or alleged to have existed at or before the Effective Time, including in connection with the transactions and
all other activities to implement the Contribution, the Distribution and any of the other transactions contemplated hereunder and under
the Tax Matters Agreement.

(b) Except as provided in the Tax Matters Agreement, effective as of the Effective Time, Leucadia does hereby, for itself
and each other member of the Leucadia Group, their respective Subsidiaries, successors and assigns, and all Persons who at any time
prior to the Effective Time have been stockholders, directors, officers, agents or employees of any member of the Leucadia Group (in
each case, in their respective capacities as such), remise, release and forever discharge Crimson, the respective members of the Crimson
Group, their respective Subsidiaries, successors and assigns, and all Persons who at any time prior to the Effective Time have been
directors, officers, agents or employees of any member of the Crimson Group (in each case, in their respective capacities as such), and
their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, from any and all liabilities whatsoever, whether at law or in
equity (including any right of contribution), whether arising under any Contract or agreement, by operation of Law or otherwise,
existing or arising from any acts or events occurring or failing to occur or alleged to have occurred or to have failed to occur or any
conditions existing or alleged
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to have existed at or before the Effective Time, including in connection with the transactions and all other activities to implement the
Contribution, the Distribution and any of the other transactions contemplated hereunder and under the Tax Matters Agreement.

In addition, nothing contained in Section 5.1(a) shall release Leucadia from indemnifying any director, officer or
employee of Crimson who was a director, officer or employee of Leucadia or any of its Subsidiaries at or prior to the Effective Time, to
the extent such director, officer or employee is or becomes a named defendant in any Action with respect to which he or she was entitled
to such indemnification pursuant to then existing obligations, it being understood that if the underlying obligation giving rise to such
Action relates to Crimson, Crimson shall indemnify Leucadia for such liability (including Leucadia�s costs to defend and indemnify the
director, officer or employee) in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Article V, including Section 5.5.

(c) Crimson shall not make, and shall not permit any member of the Crimson Group to make, any claim or demand, or
commence any Action asserting any claim or demand, including any claim of indemnification, against Leucadia or any member of the
Leucadia Group, or any other Person released pursuant to Section 5.1(a), with respect to any liabilities released pursuant to
Section 5.1(a). Leucadia shall not, and shall not permit any member of the Leucadia Group, to make any claim or demand, or commence
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any Action asserting any claim or demand, including any claim of indemnification against Crimson or any member of the Crimson
Group, or any other Person released pursuant to Section 5.1(b), with respect to any liabilities released pursuant to Section 5.1(b).

(d) It is the intent of each of Leucadia and Crimson, by virtue of the provisions of this Section 5.1, to provide for a full
and complete release and discharge of all liabilities existing or arising from all acts and events occurring or failing to occur or alleged to
have occurred or to have failed to occur and all conditions existing or alleged to have existed at or before the Effective Time, between or
among Crimson or any member of the Crimson Group, on the one hand, and Leucadia or any member of the Leucadia Group, on the
other hand (including any contractual agreements or arrangements existing or alleged to exist between or among any such members at
or before the Effective Time). At any time, at the request of any other party, each party shall cause each member of its respective Group
to execute and deliver releases reflecting the provisions hereof.

5.2 General Indemnification by Crimson. Crimson shall, and shall cause the other members of the Crimson Group to,
indemnify, defend and hold harmless each member of the Leucadia Group and each of their respective directors, officers and employees,
and each of the heirs, executors, successors and assigns of any of the foregoing (collectively, the �Leucadia Indemnified Parties�), from
and against any and all liabilities of the Leucadia Indemnified Parties relating to, arising out of or resulting from any of the following
items (without duplication):

(a) any Crimson Liability; and
14

(b) the failure of Crimson or any other member of the Crimson Group or any other Person to pay, perform or otherwise
promptly discharge any Crimson Liability or Crimson Contract in accordance with its respective terms, whether prior to or after the
Effective Time.

5.3 General Indemnification by Leucadia. Leucadia shall, and shall cause the other members of the Leucadia Group to,
indemnify, defend and hold harmless each member of the Crimson Group and each of their respective directors, officers and employees,
and each of the heirs, executors, successors and assigns of any of the foregoing (collectively, the �Crimson Indemnified Parties�), from
and against any and all liabilities of the Crimson Indemnified Parties relating to, arising out of or resulting from any of the following
items (without duplication):

(a) any Leucadia Liability; and
(b) the failure of any member of the Leucadia Group or any other Person to pay, perform or otherwise promptly

discharge any Leucadia Liability, whether prior to or after the Effective Time.
5.4 Indemnification Obligations Net of Insurance Proceeds and Other Amounts.

(a) The amount which any party (an �Indemnifying Party�) is required to pay to any Person entitled to indemnification
under this Article V (an �Indemnified Party�) will be reduced by any insurance proceeds theretofore actually recovered by or on behalf
of the Indemnified Party in respect of the related liability. If an Indemnified Party receives a payment (an �Indemnity Payment�)
required by this Agreement from an Indemnifying Party in respect of any liability and subsequently receives insurance proceeds, then
the Indemnified Party will pay to the Indemnifying Party an amount equal to such insurance proceeds net of costs incurred with respect
to receipt thereof but not exceeding the amount of the Indemnity Payment paid by the Indemnifying Party in respect of such liability.

(b) An insurer who would otherwise be obligated to pay any claim shall not be relieved of the responsibility with respect
thereto or, solely by virtue of the indemnification provisions hereof, have any subrogation rights with respect thereto.

(c) The amount of any Indemnity Payment pursuant to this Article V shall be reduced by the amount of any reduction in
Taxes actually realized by the Indemnified Party by the end of the taxable year in which the Indemnity Payment is made, and shall be
increased if and to the extent necessary to ensure that, after all required Taxes on the Indemnity Payment are paid (including Taxes
applicable to any increases in the Indemnity Payment under this Section 5.4(c)), the Indemnified Party receives the amount it would
have received if the Indemnity Payment was not taxable.

5.5 Procedures for Indemnification of Third Party Claims.
(a) If an Indemnified Party receives written notice that a Person (including any Governmental Authority) that is not a

member of the Leucadia Group or the Crimson Group has asserted any claim or commenced any Action (collectively, a �Third Party
Claim�) that may implicate an Indemnifying Party�s obligation to indemnify pursuant to Sections 5.2 or 5.3, or any other Section of this
Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement, the Indemnified Party shall provide
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the Indemnifying Party written notice thereof as promptly as practicable (and no later than 30 days or sooner, if the nature of the Third
Party Claim so requires) after becoming aware of the Third Party Claim. Such notice shall describe the Third Party Claim in reasonable
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detail and include copies of all notices and documents (including court papers) received by the Indemnified Party relating to the Third
Party Claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure of an Indemnified Party to provide notice in accordance with this Section 5.5(a)
shall not relieve an Indemnifying Party of its indemnification obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent to which the
Indemnifying Party is actually materially prejudiced by the Indemnified Party�s failure to provide notice in accordance with this Section
5.5(a).

(b) Subject to this Section 5.5(b), Section 5.5(c) and Section 5.5(e), an Indemnifying Party may elect to defend (and seek
to settle or compromise), at its own expense and with its own counsel, any Third Party Claim. Within 30 days after the receipt of notice
from an Indemnified Party in accordance with Section 5.5(a) (or sooner, if the nature of the Third Party Claim so requires), the
Indemnifying Party shall notify the Indemnified Party whether the Indemnifying Party will assume responsibility for defending the
Third Party Claim and shall specify any reservations or exceptions to its defense. After receiving notice of an Indemnifying Party�s
election to assume the defense of a Third Party Claim, whether with or without any reservations or exceptions with respect to such
defense, an Indemnified Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel and to participate in (but not control) the defense,
compromise, or settlement thereof, but the Indemnified Party shall be responsible for the fees and expenses of its counsel and, in any
event, shall cooperate with the Indemnifying Party in such defense and make available to the Indemnifying Party, at the Indemnifying
Party�s expense, all witnesses, information and materials in such Indemnified Party�s possession or under such Indemnified Party�s
control relating thereto as are reasonably required by the Indemnifying Party. If an Indemnifying Party has elected to assume the defense
of a Third Party Claim, whether with or without any reservations or exceptions with respect to such defense, then such Indemnifying
Party shall be solely liable for all fees and expenses incurred by it in connection with the defense of such Third Party Claim and shall
not be entitled to seek any indemnification or reimbursement from the Indemnified Party for any such fees or expenses incurred during
the course of its defense of such Third Party Claim, regardless of any subsequent decision by the Indemnifying Party to reject or
otherwise abandon its assumption of such defense.

(c) Notwithstanding Section 5.5(b), if any Indemnified Party shall in good faith determine that there is an actual conflict
of interest if counsel for the Indemnifying Party represented both the Indemnified Party and Indemnifying Party, then the Indemnified
Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel and to participate in (but not control) the defense, compromise, or settlement
thereof, and the Indemnifying Party shall bear the reasonable fees and expenses of one separate counsel for all Indemnified Parties,
unless the existence of an actual conflict of interest requires that more than one separate counsel be retained.

(d) If an Indemnifying Party elects not to assume responsibility for defending a Third Party Claim, or fails to notify an
Indemnified Party of its election within 30 days after the receipt of notice from an Indemnified Party as provided in Section 5.5(b) (or
sooner, if the nature of the Third Party Claim so requires), the Indemnified Party may defend the Third Party Claim at the cost and
expense of the Indemnifying Party. In such case, such Indemnified Party shall be free to pursue such remedies as may be available to
such party as contemplated by this
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Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements without prejudice to its continuing rights to pursue indemnification hereunder. If the
Indemnified Party is conducting the defense against any such Third Party Claim, the Indemnifying Party shall cooperate with the
Indemnified Party in such defense and make available to the Indemnified Party, at the Indemnifying Party�s expense, all witnesses,
information and materials in such Indemnifying Party�s possession or under such Indemnifying Party�s control relating thereto as are
reasonably required by the Indemnified Party.

(e) Without the prior written consent of any Indemnifying Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed, no Indemnified Party may settle or compromise, or seek to settle or compromise, any Third Party Claim;
provided, however, in the event that the Indemnifying Party elects not to assume responsibility for defending a Third Party Claim or
fails to notify the Indemnified Party of its election within 30 days after the receipt of notice from the Indemnified Party as provided in
Section 5.5(b) (or sooner, if the nature of the Third Party Claim so requires), the Indemnified Party shall have the right to settle or
compromise such Third Party Claim in its sole discretion. Without the prior written consent of any Indemnified Party, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, no Indemnifying Party shall consent to the entry of any judgment or enter
into any settlement of any pending or threatened Third Party Claim if such Indemnified Party is or could have been a party to the
pending or threatened Third Party Claim and could have sought indemnity pursuant to this Section 5.5, unless such judgment or
settlement is solely for monetary damages, and provides for a full, unconditional and irrevocable release of that Indemnified Party from
all liability in connection with the Third Party Claim.

5.6 Additional Matters.
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(a) Indemnification payments in respect of any liabilities for which an Indemnified Party is entitled to indemnification
under this Article V shall be paid by the Indemnifying Party to the Indemnified Party as such liabilities are incurred upon reasonable
demand by the Indemnified Party, including reasonably satisfactory documentation setting forth the basis for the amount of such
indemnification payment, including documentation with respect to calculations made and consideration of any insurance proceeds that
actually reduce the amount of such liabilities. The indemnity agreements contained in this Article V shall remain operative and in full
force and effect, regardless of (i) any investigation made by or on behalf of any Indemnified Party, (ii) the knowledge by the
Indemnified Party of liabilities for which it might be entitled to indemnification hereunder and (iii) any termination of this Agreement.

(b) Any claim on account of a liability which does not result from a Third Party Claim shall be asserted by written notice
given by the Indemnified Party to the applicable Indemnifying Party. Such Indemnifying Party shall have a period of 30 days after the
receipt of such notice within which to respond thereto. If such Indemnifying Party does not respond within such 30-day period, such
Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have refused to accept responsibility to make payment. If such Indemnifying Party does not
respond within such 30-day period or rejects such claim in whole or in part, such Indemnified Party shall be free to pursue such
remedies as may be available to such party as contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements without prejudice to its
continuing rights to pursue indemnification hereunder.
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(c) If payment is made by or on behalf of any Indemnifying Party to any Indemnified Party in connection with any Third
Party Claim, such Indemnifying Party shall be subrogated to and shall stand in the place of such Indemnified Party as to any events or
circumstances in respect of which such Indemnified Party may have any right, defense or claim relating to such Third Party Claim
against any claimant or plaintiff asserting such Third Party Claim or against any other Person. Such Indemnified Party shall cooperate
with such Indemnifying Party in a reasonable manner, and at the cost and expense of such Indemnifying Party, in prosecuting any
subrogated right, defense or claim.

(d) In a Third Party Claim in which the Indemnifying Party is not a named party, if either the Indemnified Party or
Indemnifying Party shall so request, the parties shall endeavor to substitute the Indemnifying Party for the named party if they conclude
that substitution is desirable and practical. If such substitution or addition cannot be achieved for any reason or is not requested, the
named Indemnified Party shall allow the Indemnifying Party to manage the Third Party Claim as set forth in this Section 5.6(d), and the
Indemnifying Party shall fully indemnify the named Indemnified Party against all liabilities.

(e) For all Tax purposes, Leucadia and Crimson agree to treat (i) any payment required by this Agreement (other than
payments with respect to interest accruing after the Effective Time) as either a contribution by Leucadia to Crimson or a distribution by
Crimson to Leucadia, as the case may be, occurring immediately prior to the Effective Time or as a payment of an assumed or retained
liability, and (ii) any payment of interest as taxable or deductible, as the case may be, to the party entitled under this Agreement to retain
such payment or required under this Agreement to make such payment, in either case except as otherwise required by applicable Law.

5.7 Remedies Cumulative; Limitations of Liability. The rights provided in this Article V shall be cumulative and, subject to the
provisions of Article VII, shall not preclude assertion by any Indemnified Party of any other rights or the seeking of any and all other
remedies against any Indemnifying Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither Crimson or its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, nor
Leucadia or its Subsidiaries, on the other hand, shall be liable to the other for any special, indirect, punitive, exemplary, remote,
speculative or similar damages in excess of compensatory damages (collectively, �Special Damages�) of the other arising in connection
with the Transactions (provided, that any such liability with respect to a Third Party Claim shall be considered direct damages).

5.8 Survival of Indemnities. The rights and obligations of each of Leucadia and Crimson and their respective Indemnified
Parties under this Article V shall survive the sale or other transfer by any party of any assets or businesses or the assignment by it of any
liabilities.

ARTICLE VI
OTHER AGREEMENTS

6.1 Further Assurances.
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(a) In addition to the actions specifically provided for elsewhere in this Agreement, each of the parties hereto will
cooperate with each other and use (and will cause their respective Subsidiaries to use) commercially reasonable efforts, prior to, at and
after the Effective Time, to take, or to cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or to cause to be done, all things reasonably necessary on
its part under applicable Law or contractual obligations to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements.
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(b) Without limiting the foregoing, prior to, at and after the Effective Time, each party hereto shall cooperate with the
other parties, and without any further consideration, but at the expense of the requesting party from and after the Effective Time, to
execute and deliver, or use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause to be executed and delivered, all instruments, and to take all
such other actions as such party may reasonably be requested to take by any other party hereto from time to time, consistent with the
terms of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, in order to effectuate the provisions and purposes of this Agreement and the
Ancillary Agreements and the transfers and assignment of the Contributed Assets and the other transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby.

(c) At or prior to the Effective Time, Leucadia and Crimson in their respective capacities as direct and indirect
stockholders of their respective Subsidiaries, shall each ratify any actions that are reasonably necessary or desirable to be taken by
Crimson or any other Subsidiary of Leucadia or Crimson, as the case may be, to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

6.2 Confidentiality.
(a) From and after the Effective Time, subject to Section 6.2(b) and except as contemplated by or otherwise provided in

this Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement, without the prior written consent of the other party (which may be withheld in such party�s
sole discretion), each party shall not, and shall cause its Subsidiaries and officers, directors, employees, and other agents and
representatives, including attorneys, agents, customers, suppliers, contractors, consultants and other representatives of any Person
providing financing (collectively, �Representatives�), not to, directly or indirectly, disclose, reveal, divulge or communicate any
Confidential Information of the other party or Shared Information to any Person other than Representatives of such party or of its
Subsidiaries who reasonably need to know such information for the purpose of operating such party�s business in its ordinary course.
The Leucadia Group and the Crimson Group shall use the same degree of care to prevent and restrain the unauthorized use or disclosure
of the Confidential Information and Shared Information by any of their Representatives as they currently use for their own confidential
information of a like nature, but in no event less than a reasonable standard of care. For purposes of this Section 6.2(a), any information,
material or document (i) exclusively relating to the business of Crimson or Leucadia (as applicable) that is furnished to, or in the
possession of, the other party, irrespective of the form of communication, and all notes, analyses, compilations, forecasts, data,
translations, studies, memoranda or other documents prepared by the other party or its officers, directors and Subsidiaries, that contain
or otherwise reflect such information, material or document, is herein referred to as �Confidential Information,� and (ii) relating to both
(A) the businesses currently or formerly conducted, or proposed to be conducted, by Leucadia or
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any of its Subsidiaries (other than any member of the Crimson Group) and (B) the Crimson Business that is furnished to, or in the
possession of, any member of the Leucadia Group or any member of the Crimson Group, irrespective of the form of communication,
and all notes, analyses, compilations, forecasts, data, translations, studies, memoranda or other documents prepared by, for or on behalf
of the party possessing such information, material or document, is herein referred to as �Shared Information.� Confidential Information
and Shared Information do not include, and there shall be no obligation hereunder with respect to, information that (x) is or becomes
generally available to the public, other than as a result of a disclosure by any member of the Leucadia Group or any member of the
Crimson Group (as applicable) not otherwise permissible hereunder, (y) Leucadia or Crimson (as applicable) can demonstrate was or
became available to the other party without reference to the Confidential Information or from a source other than the other party and its
respective Subsidiaries or (z) is developed independently by the other party and without reference to any Shared Information; provided,
however, that, in the case of clause (y), the source of such information was not known by such party to be bound by a confidentiality
agreement with, or other contractual, legal or fiduciary obligation of confidentiality to, the other party or its Subsidiaries with respect to
such information.

(b) If Leucadia or its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, or Crimson or its Subsidiaries, on the other hand, are requested or
required (by oral question, interrogatories, requests for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or similar
process) by any Governmental Authority or pursuant to applicable Law to disclose or provide any Shared Information (applicable to
both parties) or Confidential Information, the Person receiving such request or demand shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
provide the other party with written notice of such request or demand as promptly as practicable under the circumstances so that such
other party shall have an opportunity to seek an appropriate protective order. The party receiving such request or demand agrees to take,
and cause its representatives to take, at the requesting party�s expense, all other reasonable steps necessary to obtain confidential
treatment by the recipient. Subject to the foregoing, the party that received such request or demand may thereafter disclose or provide
any Shared Information or Confidential to the extent required by such Law (as so advised by counsel) or by lawful process or such
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Governmental Authority. This Section 6.2(b) shall not apply to any information furnished pursuant to the provisions of Article IV of this
Agreement.

(c) Each of Leucadia and Crimson acknowledges that it and the other members of its Group may have in their possession
confidential or proprietary information of third Persons that was received under confidentiality or non-disclosure agreements with such
third Person prior to the Effective Time. Leucadia and Crimson each agrees that it will hold, and will cause the other members of its
Group and their respective Representatives to hold, in strict confidence the confidential and proprietary information of third Persons to
which it or any other member of its respective Group has access, in accordance with the terms of any agreements entered into prior to
the Effective Time between or among one or more members of the applicable party�s Group and such third Persons.

6.3 Insurance Matters.
(a) Except as expressly provided herein, Crimson acknowledges and agrees, on its own behalf and on behalf of each

other member of the Crimson Group, that, from and after
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the Effective Time, neither Crimson nor any member of the Crimson Group shall have any rights to or under any of Leucadia�s or its
Subsidiaries� insurance policies, other than any insurance policies acquired prior to the Effective Time directly by and in the name of a
member of the Crimson Group or as expressly provided in this Section 6.3; provided, however, that Crimson shall be entitled to any loss
recoveries paid to any member of the Leucadia Group subsequent to the Effective Time in respect of any insurance claims to the extent
related to the Crimson Business that were open prior to the Effective Time less the amount of (i) any liabilities (other than Leucadia
Liabilities) that Leucadia or its Subsidiaries (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any member of the Crimson Group) incurred and
paid in connection therewith prior to the Effective Time and (ii) any liabilities incurred by any member of the Leucadia Group in
connection with obtaining such insurance recoveries.

(b) Notwithstanding Section 6.3(a), from and after the Effective Time, with respect to losses, damages, wrongful acts or
liability incurred prior to the Effective Time, Crimson may access Leucadia�s insurance policies as follows:

(i) to file claims against Leucadia�s occurrence policies in effect at or prior to the Effective Time for losses based
on covered injuries occurring at or before the Effective Time; and

(ii) to file claims against Leucadia�s claims made policies in force at the time the claim is made if the act giving
rise to the claim occurred prior to the Effective Time;
provided, however, that, in the case of each of clause (i) and (ii), such access to, and the right to make claims under such insurance
policies, shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable insurance policies, including any limits on coverage or scope, any
deductible and other fees and expenses, and shall be subject to:

(A) For so long as Crimson may access Leucadia�s policies, Crimson shall report as promptly as practicable
claims under all accessed Leucadia insurance policies directly to the applicable insurance company in accordance with Leucadia�s
claim reporting procedures in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time and provide copies of such reported claims to Leucadia�s
Treasurer and Corporate Secretary;

(B) Crimson shall indemnify, hold harmless and reimburse Leucadia and its Subsidiaries for any deductibles
and self-insured retention incurred by Leucadia or its Subsidiaries to the extent resulting from any access to, or any claims made by
Crimson or any of its Subsidiaries under, any insurance policies provided pursuant to Section 6.3(b)(i) and Section 6.3(b)(ii) including
any indemnity payments, settlements, judgments, legal fees and allocated claims expenses and claim handling fees, whether such claims
are made by Crimson, its employees or third Persons;

(C) Crimson shall exclusively bear (and Leucadia shall have no obligation to repay or reimburse Crimson or
its Subsidiaries for) and shall be liable for all uninsured, uncovered, unavailable or uncollectible amounts of all such claims made by
Crimson or any of its Subsidiaries under the policies as provided for in this Section 6.3(b); and
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(D) Crimson shall be responsible for, and shall directly pay the applicable third Person, all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the filing and prosecution of any claim and the collection of any insurance proceeds related
thereto.

(c) Any payments, costs and adjustments required pursuant to Section 6.3(b) and which are incurred and/or paid by
Leucadia shall be billed by Leucadia to Crimson on a monthly basis and payable within 30 days from receipt of invoice. If payment is
not made within 60 days of invoice, the outstanding amount will accrue interest from and including the 60th day following the date of
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the invoice to (but excluding) the date of payment at a rate per annum equal to 10%. If Leucadia incurs costs to enforce Crimson�s
obligations herein, Crimson agrees to indemnify Leucadia for such enforcement costs, including attorneys� fees.

(d) Except as set forth in the proviso to Section 6.3(a), Crimson acknowledges and agrees on its own behalf, and on
behalf of each other member of the Crimson Group, that neither Crimson nor any member of the Crimson Group shall have any right or
claim against Leucadia or any of its Subsidiaries for reimbursement, payment or any other obligation arising from any insurance policy
covering Crimson or any member of the Crimson Group, and hereby irrevocably releases, as of the Effective Time, Leucadia and its
Subsidiaries from all of the duties, obligations, responsibilities and liabilities, known or unknown, reported or not reported, imposed
upon Leucadia or any of its Subsidiaries to the extent resulting from, relating to or arising out of any such insurance policy, without
recourse to Leucadia or any of its Subsidiaries.

(e) Leucadia shall retain the exclusive right to control its insurance policies and programs, including the right to exhaust,
settle, release, commute, buy-back or otherwise resolve disputes with respect to any of its insurance policies and programs and to
amend, modify or waive any rights under any such insurance policies and programs, notwithstanding whether any such policies or
programs apply to any Crimson Liabilities and/or claims Crimson has made or could make in the future, and no member of the Crimson
Group shall, without the prior written consent of Leucadia, erode, exhaust, settle, release, commute, buy-back or otherwise resolve
disputes with Leucadia�s insurers with respect to any of Leucadia�s insurance policies and programs, or amend, modify or waive any
rights under any such insurance policies and programs. Crimson shall cooperate with Leucadia and share such information as is
reasonably necessary in order to permit Leucadia to manage and conduct its insurance matters as it deems appropriate.

(f) At the Effective Time, Crimson shall have in effect all insurance programs required to comply with law or Crimson�s
contractual obligations and such other insurance policies as reasonably necessary or customary for companies operating a business
similar to Crimson�s.

(g) Leucadia and its Subsidiaries shall have no obligation to secure extended reporting for any claims under any of
Leucadia�s or its Subsidiaries� claims-made or occurrence-reported liability policies for any acts or omissions by any member of the
Crimson Group incurred prior to the Effective Time.

(h) This Agreement shall not be considered as an attempted assignment of any policy of insurance or as a contract of
insurance and shall not be construed to waive any right or
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remedy of any member of the Leucadia Group in respect of any of the Leucadia insurance policies and programs or any other Contract
or policy of insurance.

6.4 Allocation of Costs and Expenses.
(a) Leucadia shall pay for all out-of-pocket fees, costs and expenses (including legal costs, fees and expenses, including

fees and expenses of experts and consultants) incurred by Leucadia or any of its Subsidiaries prior to and at the Effective Time in
connection with (i) the preparation and negotiation of this Agreement, each Ancillary Agreement (unless otherwise expressly provided
therein) and all other documentation related to the Transactions and all related transactions, (ii) the preparation and execution or filing of
any and all other documents, agreements, forms, applications, Contracts or consents associated with the Transactions and all related
transactions, (iii) the preparation and filing of Crimson�s and its Subsidiaries� organizational documents, (iv) the preparation, printing,
filing and/or mailing, as applicable, of the Form 10 and the Information Statement and/or any other required securities filings, including
all fees and expenses of complying with applicable federal and state securities Laws, together with fees and expenses of counsel
retained to effect such compliance, and (v) the fees and expenses of Moss Adams LLP incurred in connection with the Form 10 and the
Information Statement and/or any other required securities filings.

(b) Crimson shall pay for all out-of-pocket fees, costs and expenses (including legal costs, fees and expenses, including
fees and expenses of experts and consultants) incurred by Crimson or any of its Subsidiaries prior to and at the Effective Time in
connection with (i) each of the financing transactions described in the Form 10, including any financing transactions to be entered into
by Crimson or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) the initial quotation of the Crimson Common Stock on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board
or OTC Markets Group, Inc. (as applicable), and (iii) the fees and expenses of any other advisors incurred in connection with the
Transactions other than those advisor fees that shall be paid for by Leucadia in accordance with Section 6.4(a).

6.5 Tax Matters. Leucadia and Crimson shall enter into the Tax Matters Agreement at or prior to the Effective Time. To the
extent any type of representations, warranties, covenants or agreements between the parties with respect to Taxes or other matters are
covered by the Tax Matters Agreement, such Taxes and other matters shall be governed exclusively by the Tax Matters Agreement and
not by this Agreement.
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ARTICLE VII

DISPUTE RESOLUTION
7.1 General Provisions.

(a) Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Administrative Services
Agreement or the Tax Matters Agreement (�a �Dispute�) shall be subject to the procedures in this Article VII. Each of the parties hereto
consents to the procedures set forth in this Article VII in connection with any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
Tax Matters Agreement.

(b) Commencing with a request contemplated by Section 7.2 set forth below, all communications between the parties or
their representatives in connection with the attempted resolution of any Dispute shall be deemed to have been delivered in furtherance
of a Dispute settlement and shall be exempt from discovery and production, and shall not be admissible into evidence for any reason
(whether as an admission or otherwise), in any arbitral or other proceeding for the resolution of any Dispute.

(c) THE PARTIES EXPRESSLY WAIVE AND FOREGO ANY RIGHT TO (I) SPECIAL DAMAGES, AS DEFINED
HEREIN (PROVIDED, THAT LIABILITY FOR ANY SUCH SPECIAL DAMAGES, AS DEFINED HEREIN, WITH RESPECT TO
ANY THIRD PARTY CLAIM SHALL BE CONSIDERED DIRECT DAMAGES) AND (II) TRIAL BY JURY.

(d) All applicable statutes of limitations and defenses based upon the passage of time shall be tolled while the
procedures specified in this Article VII are pending. The parties will take any necessary or appropriate action required to effectuate such
tolling.

7.2 Consideration by Senior Executives. If a Dispute is not resolved in the normal course of business at the operational level,
the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve the Dispute by negotiation between the Groups� executives who hold, respectively, the
office of Vice President (or a more senior office). Either party may initiate the executive negotiation process by providing a written
notice to the other (the �Initial Notice�). Within 15 days, the receiving party shall submit to the other a written response (the
�Response�). The Initial Notice and the Response shall include (i) a statement of the Dispute and of each party�s position and (ii) the
name and title of the executive who will represent that party and of any other person who will accompany the executive. The parties
agree that such executives shall have full and complete authority to resolve any Disputes submitted pursuant to this Section 7.2. Such
executives will meet in person or by teleconference or video conference within 30 days of the date of the Initial Notice to seek a
resolution of the Dispute. In the event that the executives are unable to agree to a location or format for such meeting, the meeting shall
be convened by teleconference.

7.3 Mediation.
(a) If a Dispute is not resolved by negotiation as provided in Section 7.2 within 45 days from the delivery of the Initial

Notice, then either party shall submit such Dispute to non-binding mediation using a mediator to be mutually agreed upon by the parties
to be
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selected from Jams, Inc., 620 Eighth Avenue, New York, New York, or such other mutually agreeable alternate dispute resolution
provider.

(b) The parties agree that any Dispute submitted to mediation shall be governed by, and construed and interpreted in
accordance with, Section 8.1.

(c) Each party shall bear (i) its own fees, costs and expenses and (ii) an equal share of other expenses of the mediation,
including the fees, costs and expenses of the mediator.

7.4 Specific Performance. In the event of any actual or threatened material default in, or material breach of, any of the terms,
conditions and provisions of this Agreement or the Tax Matters Agreement, the party or parties who are or are to be thereby aggrieved
shall have the right to specific performance and injunctive or other equitable relief (on an interim or permanent basis) of its rights under
such agreement. In such circumstances, the parties shall first seek consideration by senior executives under Section 7.2 hereof, adjusting
the time frame as needed to address the urgency of the circumstances, and in the event such senior executive consideration is
unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the parties will not need to comply with the mediation provisions set out in Section 7.3 hereof.
Such rights shall be in addition to any and all other rights and remedies at law or in equity, and all such rights and remedies shall be
cumulative. The parties agree that the remedies at law for any breach or threatened breach, including monetary damages, may be
inadequate compensation for any loss and that any defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be
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adequate is waived. Any requirements for the securing or posting of any bond with such remedy are waived by each of the parties to this
Agreement.

7.5 Jurisdiction; Enforcement. Each of the parties hereto irrevocably agrees that any action with respect to this Agreement or
any of the Ancillary Agreements and the rights and obligations arising hereunder or thereunder, or for recognition and enforcement of
any judgment in respect of this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements and the rights and obligations arising hereunder or
thereunder brought by the other party hereto or its successors or assigns, shall be brought and determined exclusively in the state or
federal courts located in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably submits with
regard to any such action for itself and in respect of its property, generally and unconditionally, to the personal jurisdiction of the
aforesaid courts and agrees that it will not bring any action relating to this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements in any court
other than the aforesaid courts. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert, by way of motion, as a
defense, counterclaim or otherwise, in any action with respect to this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements, (a) any claim that
it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason other than the failure to serve in accordance with
this, (b) any claim that it or its property is exempt or immune from jurisdiction of any such court or from any legal process commenced
in such courts (whether through service of notice, attachment prior to judgment, attachment in aid of execution of judgment, execution
of judgment or otherwise) and (c) to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, any claim that (i) the action in such court is brought
in an inconvenient forum, (ii) the venue of such action is improper or (iii) this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements or the
subject matter hereof or thereof, may not be enforced in or by such courts.
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ARTICLE VIII

MISCELLANEOUS
8.1 Governing Law. This Agreement and, unless expressly provided therein, each Ancillary Agreement, and any dispute arising

out of or relating to this Agreement or, unless expressly provided therein, each Ancillary Agreement, shall be governed by and
construed and interpreted in accordance with the Laws of the State of New York irrespective of the choice of laws principles of the State
of New York.

8.2 Survival of Covenants. Except as expressly set forth in any Ancillary Agreement, the covenants and other agreements
contained in this Agreement and each Ancillary Agreement, and liability for the breach of any obligations contained herein or therein,
shall survive each of the Contribution and the Distribution and shall remain in full force and effect.

8.3 Force Majeure. No party hereto (or any Person acting on its behalf) shall have any liability or responsibility for failure to
fulfill any obligation (other than a payment obligation) under this Agreement or, unless otherwise expressly provided therein, any
Ancillary Agreement, so long as and to the extent to which the fulfillment of such obligation is prevented, frustrated, hindered or
delayed as a consequence of circumstances of Force Majeure. A party claiming the benefit of this provision shall, as soon as reasonably
practicable after the occurrence of any such event, (i) notify the other parties of the nature and extent of any such Force Majeure
condition and (ii) use due diligence to remove any such causes and resume performance under this Agreement as soon as feasible.

8.4 Notices. All notices, requests, claims, demands and other communications under this Agreement and, to the extent
applicable and unless otherwise provided therein, under each of the Ancillary Agreements shall be in writing and shall be given or made
(and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made upon receipt) by delivery in person, by overnight courier service, by facsimile or
electronic transmission with receipt confirmed (followed by delivery of an original via overnight courier service) or by registered or
certified mail (postage prepaid, return receipt requested) to the respective parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for
a party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 8.4):

(i) if to Leucadia:

Leucadia National Corporation
315 Park Avenue South
New York, NY 10010
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Facsimile: [212-598-3245]
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(ii) if to Crimson:

Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.
5901 Silverado Trail
Napa, CA 94558
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Attention: President and Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile: [�]

a copy of all notices should also be sent to:

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
767 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10153
Attention: Andrea A. Bernstein
Facsimile: (212) 310-8007

8.5 Termination. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, this Agreement may be terminated and the Distribution
abandoned at any time prior to the Effective Time by and in the sole discretion of Leucadia without the prior approval of any Person,
including Crimson. In the event of such termination, this Agreement shall become void and no party, or any of its officers and directors,
shall have any liability to any Person by reason of this Agreement. After the Effective Time, this Agreement may not be terminated
except by an agreement in writing signed by each of the parties to this Agreement.

8.6 Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced under any
Law or as a matter of public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Upon
such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties to this Agreement shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a mutually
acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement be consummated as originally contemplated to the
greatest extent possible.

8.7 Entire Agreement. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, this Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements (including the Schedule and Exhibits hereto and thereto, if any) constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede all prior agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, between or
on behalf of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

8.8 Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the prior written
consent of the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may assign (i) any or all of its rights and obligations under this
Agreement to any of its Subsidiaries and (ii) any or all of its rights and obligations under this Agreement in connection with a sale or
disposition of any assets or entities or lines of business; provided, however, that, in each case, no such assignment shall release the
assigning party from any liability or obligation under this Agreement. Except as provided in Article V with respect to Indemnified
Parties, this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties to this Agreement and members of their respective Group and their permitted
successors and assigns and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other Person any legal
or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.
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8.9 Public Announcements. From and after the Effective Time, Leucadia and Crimson shall consult with each other before
issuing, and give each other the opportunity to review and comment upon, any press release or other public statements with respect to
any matters covered by this Agreement, and shall not issue any such press release or make any such public statement prior to such
consultation, except as may be required by applicable Law, court process or by obligations pursuant to any agreement with any
securities quotation system.

8.10 Amendment. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified except by a written instrument signed by all the
parties to this Agreement. No waiver by any party of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless explicitly set forth in
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writing and executed by the party so waiving. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any other subsequent breach.

8.11 Rules of Construction. Interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by the following rules of construction: (i) in the
event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of any Ancillary Agreement, the
terms and conditions of the Ancillary Agreement shall govern and control this Agreement, unless otherwise specified herein; (ii) words
in the singular shall be held to include the plural and vice versa and words of one gender shall be held to include the other gender as the
context requires; (iii) references to the terms Article, Section, paragraph, clause, Exhibit and Schedule are references to the Articles,
Sections, paragraphs, clauses, Exhibits and Schedules of this Agreement unless otherwise specified; (iv) the terms �hereof,� �herein,�
�hereby,� �hereto,� and derivative or similar words refer to this entire Agreement, including the Schedule and Exhibits hereto; (v)
references to �$� shall mean U.S. dollars; (vi) the word �including� and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall
mean �including, without limitation,� unless otherwise specified; (vii) the word �or� shall not be exclusive; (viii) references to
�written� or �in writing� include in electronic form; (ix) unless the context requires otherwise, references to �party� shall mean
Leucadia or Crimson, as appropriate, and references to �parties� shall mean Leucadia and Crimson; (x) provisions shall apply, when
appropriate, to successive events and transactions; (xi) the table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference
purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement; (xii) Leucadia and Crimson have each
participated in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement and if an ambiguity or question of interpretation should arise, this
Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties hereto and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or
burdening either party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions in this Agreement or any interim drafts of this Agreement;
and (xiii) a reference to any Person includes such Person�s successors and permitted assigns.

8.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and by the different parties to each such
agreement in separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by facsimile or
portable document format (PDF) shall be as effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of any such Agreement.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first written above by
their respective duly authorized officers.

LEUCADIA NATIONAL CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

By:
Name:
Title

Signature Page to Separation Agreement

SCHEDULE 1.1
Crimson Group

Name State of Incorporation
Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.
Chamisal Vineyards, LLC

Delaware
Delaware

Double Canyon, LLC Delaware
Pine Ridge Winery, LLC Delaware
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Exhibit 4.1

ABnote North America

711 ARMSTRONG LANE

COLUMBIA, TENNESSEE 38401

(931) 388-3003

PROOF OF JANUARY 23, 2013

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

WO-6453 FACE

HOLLY GRONER 931-490-7660 Operator: MR / dks

Rev. 2

COLORS SELECTED FOR PRINTING: Logo prints in PMS 1955 RED and 877 Silver.Intaglio prints in SC-15 Maroon.

PLEASE INITIAL THE APPROPRIATE SELECTION FOR

THIS PROOF:
o OK AS IS o OK WITH CHANGES

o MAKE CHANGES AND SEND ANOTHER

PROOF

COLOR: This proof was printed from a digital file or artwork on a graphics quality, color laser printer. It is a good representation of the color as it

will appear on the final product. However, this proof process is different from offset printing. It is not an exact color rendition, and the final printed

product may appear slightly different from the proof due to the difference between the dyes and printing ink.

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

The Corporation will furnish to any shareholder upon request and without charge, a full statement of (i) the designation, relative rights, preferences and limitations

of the shares of (a) each class of the Corporation authorized to be issued and (b) each series of Preferred Stock of the Corporation so far as the same have

been fixed and (ii) the authority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation to designate and fix the relative rights, preferences and limitations of other series of

Preferred Stock of the Corporation. Such request may be directed to the office of the Secretary of the Corporation or to the Transfer Agent.

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this certificate, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to

applicable laws or regulations:

TEN

COM
� as tenants in common

TEN

ENT
� as tenants by the entireties

JT TEN � as joint tenants with right of

survivorship and not as

tenants in common

UNIF GIFT

MIN ACT�
���������������� Custodian ����������������

(Cust) (Minor)

under Uniform Gifts to Minors

Act

(State)

UNIF TRF

MIN ACT�
�������������� Custodian (until age���������)

(Cust)

under Uniform

Transfers

(Minor)

to Minors Act

(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, _____________________________________________ hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR

OTHER

IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, OF ASSIGNEE)

Shares
of the Common Stock represented by the within Certificate, and do hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

Attorney
to transfer the said stock on the books of the within named Corporation with full power of substitution in the premises.
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Dated

NOTICE:

THE SIGNATURE(S) TO THIS ASSIGNMENT MUST CORRESPOND WITH THE

NAME(S) AS WRITTEN UPON THE FACE OF THE CERTIFICATE IN EVERY

PARTICULAR, WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY CHANGE

WHATEVER.

Signature(s) Guaranteed

By

THE SIGNATURE(S) MUST BE GUARANTEED BY AN ELIGIBLE

GUARANTOR INSTITUTION (BANKS, STOCKBROKERS, SAVINGS AND

LOAN ASSOCIATIONS AND CREDIT UNIONS WITH MEMBERSHIP IN AN

APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEE MEDALLION PROGRAM),

PURSUANT TO S.E.C. RULE 17Ad-15.

TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

Section 1. Certain Definitions. As used in this Article IX, the following terms have the following respective meanings:

(a) �Acquisition Issuance� means any delivery, issuance, or grant of Corporation Securities by the Corporation in connection with the acquisition, directly

or indirectly, of (i) a majority, by vote or value, of the capital stock, partnership interests, membership interests, or other equity interests of another Person or (ii)

all or substantially all of the assets of another Person.

(b) �Corporation Securities� means (i) shares of common stock of the Corporation, (ii) shares of preferred stock of the Corporation, (iii) warrants, rights, or

options (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T(h)(4)(v)) to purchase stock of the Corporation, and (iv) any other interests that would be

treated as �stock� of the Corporation pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T(f)(18).

(c) �Percentage Stock Ownership� means percentage stock ownership as determined in accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T(g), (h),

(j), and (k).

(d) �Five-Percent Shareholder� means a Person or group of Persons that (i) is identified as a �5-percent shareholder� of the Corporation pursuant to

Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T(g)(1) or (ii) would be treated, under Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T(g), (h), (j), and (k), as owning 5% of the

common stock of the Corporation.

(e) �Person� means an individual, corporation, estate, trust, association, company, partnership, joint venture or similar organization.

(f) �Prohibited Distributions� means any dividends or other distributions that were received from the Corporation by a Purported Transferee or Purported

Holder with respect to Excess Securities.

(g) �Prohibited Transfer� means any purported Transfer of Corporation Securities to the extent that such Transfer is prohibited and void under this Article

IX.

(h) �Restriction Release Date� means the earlier of December 31, 2022, the repeal of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended

(the �Code�) (and any comparable successor provision) (�Section 382�), or the beginning of a taxable year of the Corporation (or any successor thereof) to

which no Tax Benefits may be carried forward.

(i) �Tax Benefits� means the net operating loss carryovers, capital loss carryovers, general business credit carryovers, alternative minimum tax credit

carryovers and foreign tax credit carryovers, as well as any �net unrealized built-in loss� within the meaning of Section 382, of the Corporation or any direct or

indirect subsidiary thereof.

(j) �Transfer� means any direct or indirect sale, transfer, assignment, conveyance, pledge, or other disposition. A Transfer also shall include the creation

or grant of an option (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T(h)(4)(v)). A Transfer shall not include an issuance or grant of Corporation

Securities by the Corporation.

(k) �Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-2T� means the temporary income tax regulations promulgated under Section 382, and any successor regulations.

References to any subsection of such regulations include references to any successor subsection thereof.

Section 2. Restrictions.

(a) Any attempted Transfer of Corporation Securities prior to the Restriction Release Date, or any attempted Transfer of Corporation Securities pursuant

to an agreement entered into prior to the Restriction Release Date, shall be prohibited and void ab initio to the extent that, as a result of such Transfer (or any
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series of Transfers of which such Transfer is a part), either (i) any Person or group of Persons shall become a Five-Percent Shareholder, or (ii) the Percentage

Stock Ownership interest in the Corporation of any Five-Percent Shareholder shall be increased; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall preclude

the settlement of any transaction entered into through the over-the-counter market or any stock exchange on which the applicable Corporation Securities are

listed.

(b) If, as a result of an Acquisition Issuance prior to the Restriction Release Date, any Person or group of Persons would become a Five-Percent

Shareholder, then, notwithstanding anything in the agreement governing the terms of the relevant acquisition to the contrary, the Corporation shall not deliver to

the Person that would otherwise be entitled to receive the Corporation Securities in such Acquisition Issuance (the �Purported Holder�) the minimum number of

Corporation Securities otherwise deliverable in the Acquisition Issuance such that such Person or group of Persons shall not become a Five-Percent Shareholder

(�Excess Issued Securities�). Any and all such Excess Issued Securities shall instead be delivered to the Agent for sale in accordance with Section 4(b) of this

Article IX. Any attempted or purported delivery of Excess Issued Securities in violation of this clause (b) shall be void ab initio.

Section 3. Certain Exceptions. The restrictions set forth in Section 2 of this Article IX shall not apply to (a) an attempted Transfer if the transferor or the

transferee obtains, or (b) a delivery of Excess Issued Securities if the Purported Holder or the Corporation obtains, the approval of the Board of Directors of the

Corporation. Any such approval must expressly waive the applicability of the restrictions set forth in this Section 3 of Article IX. As a condition to granting its

approval, the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, require an opinion of counsel selected by the Board of Directors that the Transfer or delivery of Excess

Issued Securities shall not result in the application of any Section 382 limitation on the use of the Tax Benefits.

Section 4. Treatment of Excess Transferred Securities and Excess Issued Securities.

(a) No employee or agent of the Corporation shall record any delivery of Excess Issued Securities to a Purported Holder or any Prohibited Transfer, and

the Purported Holder and the purported transferee of such a Prohibited Transfer (the �Purported Transferee�) shall not be recognized as a shareholder of the

Corporation for any purpose whatsoever in respect of the Excess Issued Securities or the Corporation Securities which are the subject of the Prohibited Transfer

(the �Excess Transferred Securities�, and together with the Excess Issued Securities, the �Excess Securities�). The Purported Transferee and the Purported

Holder shall not be entitled with respect to such Excess Securities to any rights of shareholders of the Corporation, including without limitation, the right to vote

such Excess Securities and to receive dividends or distributions, whether liquidating or otherwise, in respect thereof, if any. Once the Excess Securities have

been acquired in a Transfer that is not a Prohibited Transfer, the Corporation Securities shall cease to be Excess Securities.

(b) If the Board of Directors determines that a Transfer of Corporation Securities constitutes a Prohibited Transfer or that Excess Issued Securities have

been delivered to a Purported Holder, then, upon written demand by the Corporation, the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder shall transfer or cause to

be transferred any certificate or other evidence of ownership of the Excess Securities within the Purported Transferee�s or Purported Holder�s possession or

control, together with any Prohibited Distributions, to an agent designated by the Board of Directors (the �Agent�). The Agent shall promptly sell to a buyer

or buyers, which may include the Corporation, the Excess Securities transferred to it pursuant to the preceding sentence or Section 2(b) of this Article IX, in

one or more arm�s-length transactions (through the over-the-counter market or any stock exchange on which the applicable Corporation Securities are listed,

if possible); provided, however, that the Agent shall effect such sale or sales in an orderly fashion and shall not be required to effect any such sale within any

specific time frame if, in the Agent�s discretion, such sale or sales would disrupt the market for the Corporation Securities or otherwise would adversely affect

the value of the Corporation Securities. If the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder has sold the Excess Securities before receiving the Corporation�s

demand to surrender the Excess Securities to the Agent, the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder shall be deemed to have sold the Excess Securities on

behalf of the Agent, and shall be required to transfer to the Agent any Prohibited Distributions and the proceeds of such sale, except to the extent that the Agent

grants written permission to the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder to retain a portion of such Prohibited Distributions or sales proceeds not exceeding

the amount that the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder would have received from the Agent pursuant to Section 4(c) of this Article IX if the Agent rather

than the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder had sold the Excess Securities.

(c) The Agent shall apply any proceeds of a sale by it of Excess Securities, and any amounts received by the Agent from a Purported Transferee or

Purported Holder pursuant to Section 4(b) of this Article IX, as follows: (i) first, in the case of Excess Transferred Securities, such amounts shall be paid to the

Agent to the extent necessary to cover its costs and expenses incurred in connection with its duties hereunder; (ii) second, any remaining amounts shall be

paid to the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder, up to either (1) the amount paid by the Purported Transferee for the Excess Securities, or (2) the fair

market value, calculated on the basis of the closing market price for Corporation Securities on the day before the Acquisition Issuance or attempted Transfer,

of the Excess Securities at the time of the Acquisition Issuance or attempted Transfer to the Purported Transferee by gift, inheritance, or similar Transfer, which

amount or fair market value shall be determined in the discretion of the Board of Directors; and (iii) third, any remaining amounts shall be paid to one or more

organizations qualifying under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code selected by the Board of Directors. The recourse of any Purported Transferee or Purported Holder

in respect of any Prohibited Transfer or delivery of Excess Issued Securities shall be limited to the amount payable to the Purported Transferee or Purported

Holder pursuant to clause (ii) of the preceding sentence. In no event shall the proceeds of any sale of Excess Securities pursuant to this Article IX inure to the

benefit of the Corporation.
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(d) If the Purported Transferee or Purported Holder fails to surrender the Excess Securities or the proceeds of a sale thereof to the Agent within thirty

business days from the date on which the Corporation makes a demand pursuant to Section (4)(b) of this Article IX, then the Corporation shall institute legal

proceedings to compel the surrender.

(e) The Corporation shall make the demand described in Section 4(b) of this Article IX within thirty days of the date on which the Board of Directors

determines that the attempted Transfer would result in Excess Transferred Securities or that a Purported Holder received Excess Issued Securities; provided,

however, that if the Corporation makes such demand at a later date, the provisions of this Article IX shall apply nonetheless.

Section 5. Bylaws, Legends, etc.

(a) The Bylaws of the Corporation shall make appropriate provisions to effectuate the requirements of this Article IX.

(b) All certificates representing Corporation Securities issued after the effectiveness of this Article IX shall bear a conspicuous legend as follows:

�THE TRANSFER OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY IS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IX OF THE CERTIFICATE

OF INCORPORATION OF CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD. REPRINTED IN ITS ENTIRETY ON THE BACK OF THIS CERTIFICATE.�

(c) The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall have the power to determine all matters necessary to determine compliance with this Article IX, including

without limitation (i) whether a new Five-Percent Shareholder would be required to be identified in certain circumstances, (ii) whether a Transfer is a Prohibited

Transfer, (iii) the Percentage Stock Ownership in the Corporation of any Five-Percent Shareholder, (iv) whether an instrument constitutes a Corporation Security,

(v) the amount or fair market value due to a Purported Transferee or Purported Holder pursuant to clause (ii) of Section 4(c) of this Article IX, (vi) whether

an issuance of Corporation Securities is an Acquisition Issuance, (vii) the number of Excess Issued Securities with respect to any Purported Holder, and (viii)

any other matters which the Board of Directors determines to be relevant; and the good faith determination of the Board of Directors on such matters shall be

conclusive and binding for all the purposes of this Article IX.

AMERICAN BANK NOTE COMPANY

711 ARMSTRONG LANE

COLUMBIA, TENNESSEE 38401

(931) 388-3003

PROOF OF JANUARY 24, 2013

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

WO-6453 BACK

HOLLY GRONER 931-490-7660 Operator: MR / dks

Rev. 3

PLEASE INITIAL THE APPROPRIATE SELECTION FOR THIS

PROOF:
o OK AS IS o OK WITH CHANGES

o MAKE CHANGES AND SEND ANOTHER

PROOF
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Exhibit 10.3
TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN
LEUCADIA NATIONAL CORPORATION

AND
CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

DATED [�] [�], 2013
TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT

THIS TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT (this �Agreement�), dated as of [�] [�], 2013, is by and between Leucadia National
Corporation, a New York corporation, (�Leucadia�), and Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., a Delaware corporation (�Crimson�). Each of
Leucadia and Crimson is sometimes referred to herein as a �Party� and, collectively, as the �Parties.�

WHEREAS, the board of directors of Leucadia has determined that it is in the best interests of Leucadia, its shareholders
and Crimson for Crimson to be a separate publicly-traded company that will operate the Crimson Business;

WHEREAS, Leucadia and Crimson entered into the Separation Agreement pursuant to which Leucadia agreed to contribute
cash and intercompany debt to the capital of Crimson (the �Contribution�) and to distribute all of the outstanding stock of Crimson pro
rata to its shareholders (the �Distribution�) as described therein;

WHEREAS, prior to consummation of the Distribution, Leucadia has been the common parent corporation of an affiliated
group of corporations within the meaning of Section 1504 of the Code of which Crimson is a member;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend that, for federal income Tax purposes, the contribution of the Intercompany Indebtedness
and the obligation to make the Cash Contribution (the �Pre-Closing Contribution�) and the Distribution will qualify as a reorganization
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and a distribution to which Section 355 of the Code applies; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to (a) provide for the payment of Tax liabilities and entitlement to refunds thereof, allocate
responsibility for, and cooperation in, the filing of Tax Returns, and provide for certain other matters relating to Taxes, and (b) set forth
certain covenants and indemnities relating to the preservation of the intended Tax treatment of the Pre-Closing Contribution and the
Distribution.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the terms, conditions, covenants and provisions of this
Agreement, each of the Parties mutually covenants and agrees as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. General. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
�Affiliated Group� means an affiliated group of corporations within the meaning of Section 1504(a) of the Code, or any

other group filing consolidated, combined or unitary Tax Returns under state, local or foreign Law.

�Agreement� has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.
�Closing Date� means the date on which the Distribution occurs.
�Code� means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
�Contribution� has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this Agreement.
�Counsel� means Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP.
�Crimson� has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.
�Disqualifying Action� means (i) any breach by Crimson or any member of the Crimson Group of any representation,

warranty or covenant made by them in this Agreement or (ii) any event (or series of events) involving the capital stock of Crimson that,
in either case, would negate the Tax-Free Status of the Transactions; provided, however, the term �Disqualifying Action� shall not
include any action required or expressly permitted under any Transaction Document or that is undertaken pursuant to the Contribution
or the Distribution.

�Distribution� has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this Agreement.
�Extraordinary Transaction� shall mean any action that is not in the ordinary course of business, but shall not include any

action that is undertaken pursuant to the Contribution or Distribution.
�Final Determination� means the final resolution of liability for any Tax for any taxable period, by or as a result of (i) a

final decision, judgment, decree or other order by any court of competent jurisdiction that can no longer be appealed; (ii) a final
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settlement with the IRS, a closing agreement or accepted offer in compromise under Section 7121 or 7122 of the Code, or a comparable
agreement under the Laws of other jurisdictions, that resolves the entire Tax liability for any taxable period; or (iii) any other final
resolution, including by reason of the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations or the execution of a pre-filing agreement with
the IRS or other Taxing Authority.

�Indemnifying Party� means the Party from which the other Party is entitled to seek indemnification pursuant to the
provisions of Section 2.01.

�Indemnified Party� means the Party that is entitled to seek indemnification from the other Party pursuant to the provisions
of Section 2.01.

�Information� has the meaning set forth in Section 4.01.
�Information Request� has the meaning set forth in Section 4.01.
�IRS� means the Internal Revenue Service or any successor thereto, including its agents, representatives and attorneys.
�Leucadia� has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.

2

�Opinion� means the opinion of Counsel with respect to certain Tax aspects of the Pre-Closing Contribution and the
Distribution.

�Party� has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.
�Pre-Closing Contribution� has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this Agreement.
�Separation Agreement� means the Separation Agreement by and between the Parties dated [�] [�], 2013.
�Tax� means (i) all taxes, charges, fees, duties, levies, imposts, or other similar assessments, imposed by any federal, state

or local or foreign governmental authority, including income, gross receipts, excise, property, sales, use, license, capital stock, transfer,
franchise, payroll, withholding, social security, value added, real property transfer, intangible, recordation, registration, documentary,
stamp and other taxes of any kind whatsoever and (ii) any interest, penalties or additions attributable thereto.

�Tax Detriment� shall mean an increase in the Tax liability (or reduction in refund or credit or item of deduction or
expense, including any carryforward) of a taxpayer (or of the Affiliated Group of which it is a member) for any taxable period.

�Tax-Free Status of the Transactions� means the qualification of the Pre-Closing Contribution and the Distribution as a
reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and a distribution to which Section 355 of the Code applies and in
which the Crimson Common Stock distributed is �qualified property� under Section 361(c) of the Code.

�Taxing Authority� means any governmental authority or any subdivision, agency, commission or entity thereof or any
quasi-governmental or private body having jurisdiction over the assessment, determination, collection or imposition of any Tax
(including the IRS).

�Tax Item� shall mean any item of income, gain, loss, deduction, expense or credit, or other attribute that may have the
effect of increasing or decreasing any Tax.

�Tax Matter� has the meaning set forth in Section 4.01.
�Tax Notice� has the meaning set forth in Section 2.04.
�Tax Return� means any return, report, certificate, form or similar statement or document (including any related or

supporting information or schedule attached thereto and any information return, or declaration of estimated Tax) supplied or required to
be supplied to, or filed with, a Taxing Authority in connection with the payment, determination, assessment or collection of any Tax or
the administration of any Laws relating to any Tax and any amended Tax return or claim for refund.

�Transaction Documents� means this Agreement, the Separation Agreement and the Administrative Services Agreement.
3

�Transaction Taxes� shall mean any Tax Detriment incurred by Leucadia, Crimson or their Affiliates as a result of the Pre-
Closing Contribution or the Distribution failing to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and a
distribution to which Section 355 of the Code applies or corresponding provisions of other applicable Laws with respect to Taxes.

�Transfer Taxes� means all sales, use, transfer, real property transfer, intangible, recordation, registration, documentary,
stamp or similar Taxes imposed on the Contribution or the Distribution.

�Treasury Regulations� means the final and temporary (but not proposed) income Tax regulations promulgated under the
Code, as such regulations may be amended from time to time (including corresponding provisions of succeeding regulations).

Section 1.02. Additional Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to
them in the Separation Agreement.
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ARTICLE II
ALLOCATION, PAYMENT AND INDEMNIFICATION

Section 2.01. Responsibility for Taxes; Indemnification.
(a) Leucadia shall be responsible for and shall pay, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the members of the Crimson

Group for, all Tax liabilities (and any loss, cost, damage or expense, including reasonable attorneys� fees and costs, incurred in
connection therewith) attributable to (i) any Taxes of the members of the Leucadia Group paid or filed on a separate company basis or
on an Affiliated Group basis; (ii) any Transaction Taxes; and (iii) all Transfer Taxes; except, in each case, for Taxes that arise from or
are attributable to a Disqualifying Action.

(b) Crimson shall be responsible for and shall pay, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the members of the Leucadia
Group for, all Tax liabilities (and any loss, cost, damage or expense, including reasonable attorneys� fees and costs, incurred in
connection therewith) attributable to (i) any Taxes of the members of the Crimson Group not described in Section 2.01(a); and (ii) any
Taxes that arise from or are attributable to a Disqualifying Action.

(c) If the Indemnifying Party is required to indemnify the Indemnified Party pursuant to this Section 2.01, the
Indemnified Party shall submit its calculations of the amount required to be paid pursuant to this Section 2.01, showing such
calculations in sufficient detail so as to permit the Indemnifying Party to understand the calculations. Subject to the following sentence,
the Indemnifying Party shall pay to the Indemnified Party, no later than 20 days after the Indemnifying Party receives the Indemnified
Party�s calculations, the amount that the Indemnifying Party is required to pay the Indemnified Party under this Section 2.01. If the
Indemnifying Party disagrees with such calculations, it must notify the Indemnified Party of its disagreement in writing within 15 days
of receiving such calculations.

4

(d) For all Tax purposes, the Leucadia Group and the Crimson Group agree to treat (i) any payment required by this
Agreement (other than payments with respect to interest accruing after the Effective Time) as either a contribution by Leucadia to
Crimson or a distribution by Crimson to Leucadia, as the case may be, occurring immediately prior to the Effective Time and (ii) any
payment of interest or non-federal Taxes by or to a Taxing Authority as taxable or deductible, as the case may be, to the party entitled
under this Agreement to retain such payment or required under this Agreement to make such payment, in either case except as otherwise
mandated by applicable Law.

(e) The amount of any indemnification payment pursuant to this Section 2.01 shall be reduced by the amount of any
reduction in Taxes actually realized by the Indemnified Party by the end of the taxable year in which the indemnity payment is made,
and shall be increased if and to the extent necessary to ensure that, after all required Taxes on the indemnity payment are paid (including
Taxes applicable to any increases in the indemnity payment under this Section 2.01(e)), the Indemnified Party receives the amount it
would have received if the indemnity payment was not taxable.

Section 2.02. Preparation of Tax Returns.
(a) Leucadia shall prepare and timely file (taking into account applicable extensions) all Tax Returns with respect to

which it is responsible for any Taxes shown thereon under Section 2.01(a)(i). Leucadia shall be entitled to all refunds shown to be due
and payable on such Tax Returns.

(b) Subject to any arrangement under the Administrative Services Agreement, Crimson shall prepare and timely file
(taking into account applicable extensions) all Tax Returns with respect to which it is responsible for any Taxes shown thereon under
Section 2.01(b)(i). Crimson shall be entitled to all refunds shown to be due and payable on such Tax Returns.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, for all Tax purposes, the parties shall report any
Extraordinary Transactions that are caused or permitted to occur by Crimson or any of its Subsidiaries on the Closing Date after the
completion of the Distribution as occurring on the day after the Closing Date pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section
1.1502-76(b)(1)(ii)(B) or any similar or analogous provision of state, local or foreign Law. Leucadia shall not make a ratable allocation
election pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.1502-76(b)(2)(ii)(D) or any similar or analogous provision of state, local or foreign
Law.

5

Section 2.03. Payment of Sales, Use or Similar Taxes. All Transfer Taxes, shall be borne solely by Leucadia.
Notwithstanding anything in Section 2.03 to the contrary, the Party required by applicable Law shall remit payment for any Transfer
Taxes and duly and timely file any related Tax Returns, subject to any indemnification rights it may have against the other Party, which
shall be paid in accordance with Section 2.01(c). Crimson, Leucadia and their respective Affiliates shall cooperate in (i) determining the
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amount of such Taxes, (ii) providing all available exemption certificates and (iii) preparing and timely filing any and all required Tax
Returns for or with respect to such Taxes with any and all appropriate Taxing Authorities.

Section 2.04. Audits and Proceedings.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, if after the Closing Date, an Indemnified Party or any of its Affiliates

receives any notice, letter, correspondence, claim or decree from any Taxing Authority (a �Tax Notice�) and, upon receipt of such Tax
Notice, believes it has suffered or potentially could suffer any Tax liability for which it is indemnified pursuant to Section 2.01, the
Indemnified Party shall deliver such Tax Notice to the Indemnifying Party within 10 days of the receipt of such Tax Notice; provided,
however, that the failure of the Indemnified Party to provide the Tax Notice to the Indemnifying Party shall not affect the
indemnification rights of the Indemnified Party pursuant to Section 2.01, except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is prejudiced
by the Indemnified Party�s failure to deliver such Tax Notice. The Indemnifying Party shall have the right to handle, defend, conduct
and control, at its own expense, any Tax audit or other proceeding that relates to such Tax Notice; provided that, in all events, Leucadia
shall have the right to control any Tax audit or proceeding relating to Transaction Taxes or the Tax-Free Status of the Transactions. The
Indemnifying Party shall also have the right to compromise or settle any such Tax audit or other proceeding that it has the authority to
control pursuant to the preceding sentence subject, in the case of a compromise or settlement that could adversely affect the Indemnified
Party, to the Indemnified Party�s consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. If the Indemnifying Party fails within a
reasonable time after notice to defend any such Tax Notice or the resulting audit or proceeding as provided herein, the Indemnifying
Party shall be bound by the results obtained by the Indemnified Party in connection therewith. The Indemnifying Party shall pay to the
Indemnified Party the amount of any Tax liability within 15 days after a Final Determination of such Tax liability.

(b) If after the Closing Date, Leucadia, Crimson or any of their respective Affiliates receive a Tax Notice that could have
an impact on a member of the other Group, Leucadia or Crimson, as applicable, shall deliver such Tax Notice to the other Party within
10 days of the receipt of such Tax Notice.

Section 2.05. Carrybacks. To the extent permitted by applicable Law, neither Crimson nor any of its Affiliates shall carry
back any federal income Tax Item to any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or before the Closing Date.

6

ARTICLE III
TAX-FREE STATUS OF THE DISTRIBUTION

Section 3.01. Representations and Warranties.
(a) Crimson. Crimson hereby represents and warrants or covenants and agrees, as appropriate, that the facts presented

and the representations made in the representation letter from Crimson addressed to Counsel supporting the Opinion are, or will be from
the time presented or made through and including the Effective Time and thereafter, true, correct and complete in all respects.

(b) Leucadia. Leucadia hereby represents and warrants or covenants and agrees, as appropriate, that the facts presented
and the representations made in the representation letter from Leucadia addressed to Counsel supporting the Opinion any other materials
delivered or deliverable by Leucadia in connection with the rendering by Counsel of the Opinion are, or will be from the time presented
or made through and including the Effective Time and thereafter, true, correct and complete in all respects.

(c) No Contrary Knowledge. Each of Leucadia and Crimson represents and warrants that it knows of no fact that may
cause the Tax treatment of the Pre-Closing Contribution or the Distribution to be other than the Tax-Free Status of the Transactions.

Section 3.02. Restrictions Relating to the Distribution.
(a) General. Neither Leucadia nor Crimson shall take or fail to take, nor shall Leucadia or Crimson permit any member

of their respective Group to take or fail to take, as applicable, any action within its control that would negate the Tax-Free Status of the
Transactions.

(b) Tax Reporting. Each of Leucadia and Crimson covenants and agrees that it will not take, and will cause its respective
Affiliates to refrain from taking, any position on any Tax Return that is inconsistent with the Tax-Free Status of the Transactions.
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ARTICLE IV
COOPERATION

Section 4.01. General Cooperation. The Parties shall each cooperate fully (and each shall cause its respective Subsidiaries
to cooperate fully) with all reasonable requests in writing (�Information Request�) from the other Party, or from an agent, representative
or advisor to such Party, in connection with the preparation and filing of Tax Returns, claims for Tax refunds, Tax proceedings, and
calculations of amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Agreement, in each case, related or attributable to or arising in connection
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with Taxes of any of the Parties or their respective Subsidiaries covered by this Agreement and the establishment of any reserve
required in connection with any financial reporting (a �Tax Matter�). Such cooperation shall include the provision of any information
reasonably necessary or helpful in connection with a Tax Matter (�Information�) and shall include, at each Party�s own cost:

(a) the provision of any Tax Returns of the Parties and their respective Subsidiaries, books, records (including
information regarding ownership and Tax basis of property), documentation and other information relating to such Tax Returns,
including accompanying schedules, related work papers, and documents relating to rulings or other determinations by Taxing
Authorities;

(b) the execution of any document (including any power of attorney) in connection with any Tax proceedings of any of
the Parties or their respective Subsidiaries, or the filing of a Tax Return or a Tax refund claim of the Parties or any of their respective
Subsidiaries;

(c) the use of the Party�s reasonable best efforts to obtain any documentation in connection with a Tax Matter; and
(d) the use of the Party�s reasonable best efforts to obtain any Tax Returns (including accompanying schedules, related

work papers, and documents), documents, books, records or other information in connection with the filing of any Tax Returns of any of
the Parties or their Subsidiaries.

Each Party shall make its employees, advisors, and facilities available, without charge, on a reasonable and mutually
convenient basis in connection with the foregoing matters.

Section 4.02. Retention of Records. Leucadia and Crimson shall retain or cause to be retained all Tax Returns, schedules
and workpapers, and all material records or other documents relating thereto in their possession, until 60 days after the expiration of the
applicable statute of limitations (including any waivers or extensions thereof) of the taxable periods to which such Tax Returns and
other documents relate or until the expiration of any additional period that any Party reasonably requests, in writing, with respect to
specific material records or documents. A Party intending to destroy any material records or documents shall provide the other Party
with reasonable advance notice and the opportunity to copy or take possession of such records and documents. The Parties hereto will
notify each other in writing of any waivers or extensions of the applicable statute of limitations that may affect the period for which the
foregoing records or other documents must be retained.
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ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 5.01. Tax Sharing Agreements. All Tax sharing, indemnification and similar agreements, written or unwritten, as
between any member of the Leucadia Group, on the one hand, and any member of the Crimson Group, on the other (other than this
Agreement and any other Transaction Document), shall be or shall have been terminated no later than the Effective Time and, after the
Effective Time, no member of the Leucadia Group or Crimson Group shall have any further rights or obligations under any such Tax
sharing, indemnification or similar agreement.

Section 5.02. Interest on Late Payments. With respect to any payment between the Parties pursuant to this Agreement not
made by the due date set forth in this Agreement for such payment, the outstanding amount will accrue interest at a rate per annum
equal to the rate in effect for underpayments under Section 6621 of the Code from such due date to and including the payment date.

Section 5.03. Survival of Covenants. Except as otherwise contemplated by this Agreement, all covenants and agreements of
the Parties contained in this Agreement shall survive the Effective Time and remain in full force and effect in accordance with their
applicable terms; provided, however, that the representations and warranties and all indemnification for Taxes shall survive until 60
days following the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations (taking into account all extensions thereof), if any, of the Tax that
gave rise to the indemnification; provided, further, that, in the event that notice for indemnification has been given within the applicable
survival period, such indemnification shall survive until such time as such claim is finally resolved.

Section 5.04. Termination. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, this Agreement may be terminated and the
Distribution abandoned at any time prior to the Effective Time by and in the sole discretion of Leucadia without the prior approval of
any Person, including Crimson. In the event of such termination, this Agreement shall become void and no party, or any of its officers
and directors, shall have any liability to any Person by reason of this Agreement. After the Effective Time, this Agreement may not be
terminated except by an agreement in writing signed by each of the Parties to this Agreement.

Section 5.05. Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced
under any Law or as a matter of public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the Parties to this Agreement
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shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a mutually
acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement be consummated as originally contemplated to the
greatest extent possible.

Section 5.06. Entire Agreement. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, this Agreement constitutes the
entire agreement of the Parties hereto with respect to

9

the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, between or on behalf
of the Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

Section 5.07. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective only upon the occurrence of the Distribution.
Section 5.08. Other. Sections 8.1 (Governing Law), 8.4 (Notice), 8.8 (Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries), 8.10

(Amendment), 8.11 (Rules of Construction), 8.12 (Counterparts) and 7.4 (Specific Performance) of the Separation Agreement are
incorporated herein by reference, mutatis mutandis.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first written above by
their respective duly authorized officers.

LEUCADIA NATIONAL CORPORATION

By

Name:
Title:

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

By

Name:
Title:

Signature Page to Tax Matters Agreement
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Exhibit 10.4
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN
LEUCADIA NATIONAL CORPORATION

AND
CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.

Dated [�] [�], 2013
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT (�Agreement�) is entered into as of the [�] day of [�], 2013
between Leucadia National Corporation, a New York corporation (�Leucadia�) and Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., a Delaware corporation
(�Crimson�).

WHEREAS, the directors of Crimson unaffiliated with Leucadia have determined that it is in the best interests of Crimson
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the �Crimson Group�) to obtain certain services from Leucadia on the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Retention of Leucadia. As of the effective date of this Agreement, Leucadia is retained to provide the services described

in this Agreement in consideration of the payment of the compensation described herein.
2. Scope of Work. At the request of Crimson and under the direction of Crimson, Leucadia shall provide or arrange for the

provision of the following administrative services required by the Crimson Group in connection with the ongoing operation of its
businesses:

(a) Prepare Crimson consolidated quarterly unaudited financial statements meeting the requirements of Form 10-Q of the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�), based on information provided to Leucadia by Crimson;

(b) Prepare consolidated annual financial statements meeting the requirements of Form 10-K of the SEC, based on
information provided to Leucadia by Crimson;

(c) Subject to his or her election by the Board of Directors of Crimson, provide the services of a corporate Secretary (the
�Designated Officer�), who in the capacity as Secretary of Crimson shall be under the direction of the Board of Directors of Crimson
and shall report to the President of Crimson;

(d) Prepare annual income tax returns consistent with past practice, based on information provided to Leucadia by Crimson;
and

(e) Provide additional administrative services and support as may reasonably be requested by Crimson and agreed to by
Leucadia.
Leucadia shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide all personnel necessary to carry out the services specified in this
Agreement. The number of personnel providing services at any one time and the number of hours such personnel devote to the specified
services shall not be fixed and shall at all times be determined by Leucadia in its sole

judgment, but shall at all times be adequate to properly and promptly perform and discharge the specified services.
3. Compensation. As compensation for the services provided under this Agreement, Leucadia shall be paid at an annual rate

of $180,000, payable in monthly installments of $15,000 on the first day of each month, plus out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred
by any of the Leucadia Parties (as defined herein) in connection with the services provided under this Agreement, plus any additional
amounts that may be agreed upon by Crimson and Leucadia in connection with services requested pursuant to Section 2(e) of this
Agreement.

4. Term and Termination. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date set forth in the preamble to this
Agreement and continue for a period of one year. This Agreement shall renew annually for successive annual periods unless either party
provides six months prior written notice to the other party. In all events, the provisions of Section 8 �Indemnification� shall survive the
termination of this Agreement, whether as a result of the passage of time or the election of either party or otherwise.

5. Inspection Rights of Crimson. During the term of this Agreement, Crimson shall have the right to appoint a person (other
than an employee or officer of Leucadia or any of its affiliates) who shall have the right to inspect at reasonable times and upon
reasonable notice all books and records maintained by Leucadia pertaining to each member of the Crimson Group.
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6. Relationship of Parties. The relationship of Leucadia to each member of the Crimson Group shall be that of independent
contractor and principal. This Agreement does not create an employer/employee relationship, or a partnership, joint venture or other
agency relationship between the parties.

7. Relationship with Crimson. The Designated Officer shall, while providing services to Crimson, work under the direction
and supervision of Crimson in accordance with the practices and policies of Crimson. Accordingly, Crimson shall be fully responsible
for the acts and omissions of the Designated Officer within the scope of the services and responsibilities provided in accordance with
this Agreement and shall indemnify the Leucadia Parties (as defined herein) therefor. Except to the extent that Leucadia agrees in this
Agreement to indemnify Crimson, no Leucadia Party (as defined herein) shall have or suffer any Damages (as defined herein) as a result
of any act or omission, condition or circumstance associated with this Agreement or performance hereunder.

8. Indemnification.
(a) Crimson shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Leucadia, its subsidiary entities and their respective directors,

officers, agents and permitted assigns (collectively, the �Leucadia Parties�) from and against all liabilities, claims, damages, losses and
expenses (including, but not limited to, court costs and reasonable attorneys� fees) (collectively, �Damages�) of any kind or nature, to
third parties caused by, relating
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to, or arising in connection with this Agreement, other than as a result of the willful misconduct of any of the Leucadia Parties. Not in
limitation of the foregoing, Crimson shall indemnify and hold harmless the Leucadia Parties from and against any Damages arising
from any acts or omissions of the Designated Officer, as well as from Crimson�s own acts or omissions or violations of law with respect
to the Designated Officer.

(b) Subject to the limitations contained in this Section, Leucadia shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Crimson and
their respective directors, officers, agents and permitted assigns (collectively, the �Crimson Parties�) from and against all Damages of
any kind or nature, caused by, relating to, or arising in connection with the willful misconduct of any of the Leucadia Parties.
Leucadia�s liability under this Section shall not exceed $180,000.

9. Severability. Each provision of this Agreement shall be viewed as separate and divisible, and in the event any provision
shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue in full
force and effect.

10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement will not confer any rights or remedies upon any person other than the
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

11. Waiver. The waiver by any party of a breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate as or be
construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach.

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New
York.

13. Assignment. No party hereto shall have the right to assign any of its rights, duties or obligations under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other parties.

14. Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have
been duly given on the date of service if personally served on the party to whom the notice is to be given, or 72 hours after mailing, if
mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given by first class mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed to the party at its address
set forth on the signature page of this Agreement or any other address that such party may designate by written notice to the other
parties.

15. Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restrictions on assignment set forth hereinabove, this Agreement shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of the legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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16. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date first hereinabove written.

LEUCADIA NATIONAL CORPORATION, a New York
corporation
Address: 315 Park Avenue South

New York, NY 10010
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By:

Name:

Title:

CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD., a Delaware corporation
Address: 5901 Silverado Trail

Napa, CA 94558

By:

Name:

Title:
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Exhibit 10.5
Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.

2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan
Article 1. Establishment & Purpose

1.1 Establishment. Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., a corporation registered in Delaware, hereby establishes the Crimson Wine Group
2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan (hereinafter referred to as the �Plan�) as set forth in this document.

1.2 Purpose of the Plan. The purpose of this Plan is to attract, retain and motivate officers, employees, and non-employee directors
providing services to the Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or Affiliates and to promote the success of the Company�s business by
providing the participants of the Plan with appropriate incentives.
Article 2. Definitions

Whenever capitalized in the Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below.
2.1 ��Affiliate�� means any entity that the Company, either directly or indirectly, is in common control with, is controlled by or

controls, or any entity that the Company has a substantial direct or indirect equity interest, as determined by the Board.
2.2 ��Annual Award Limit�� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.
2.3 ��Award�� means any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock, Other Stock-Based Award, or Performance-Based

Compensation Award that is granted under the Plan.
2.4 ��Award Agreement�� means either (a) a written agreement entered into by the Company and a Participant setting forth the

terms and provisions applicable to an Award granted under this Plan, or (b) a written statement issued by the Company, a Subsidiary or
Affiliate to a Participant describing the terms and conditions of the actual grant of such Award.

2.5 ��Beneficial Owner�� or ��Beneficial Ownership�� shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 13d-3 of the General
Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act.

2.6 ��Board��means the Board of Directors of the Company.
2.7 ��Change of Control�� unless otherwise specified in the Award Agreement, means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a)

any consolidation, amalgamation, or merger of the Company with or into any other Person, or any other corporate
reorganization, business combination, transaction or transfer of securities of the Company by its stockholders, or a
series of transactions (including the acquisition of capital stock of the Company), whether or not the Company is a party
thereto, in which the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to such transaction, collectively have Beneficial
Ownership, directly or indirectly, of capital stock representing directly, or indirectly through one

or more entities, less than fifty percent (50%) of the equity (measured by economic value or voting power (by contract,
share ownership or otherwise)) of the Company or other surviving entity immediately after such transaction;

(b)
the sale or disposition, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company to any Person;

(c)

during any period of twelve consecutive months commencing on or after the Effective Date, individuals who as of the
beginning of such period constituted the entire Board (together with any new directors whose election by such Board or
nomination for election by the Company�s shareholders was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors of
the Company, then still in office, who were directors at the beginning of the period or whose election or nomination for
election was previously so approved) cease for any reason to constitute a majority thereof; or

(d) approval by the shareholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.
2.8 ��Code��means the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
2.9 ��Committee��means the Compensation Committee of the Board or any other committee designated by the Board to administer

this Plan, or in the absence of any Compensation Committee or other such designated committee, the Board. To the extent applicable, the
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Committee shall have at least two members, each of whom shall be (i) a Non-Employee Director, (ii) an Outside Director, and (iii) an
�independent director� within the meaning of the listing requirements of any exchange on which the Company is listed.

2.10 ��Company��means Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., a Delaware corporation, and any successor thereto.
2.11 ��Covered Employee��means for any Plan Year, a Participant designated by the Company as a potential �covered employee,�

as such term is defined in Section 162(m) of the Code.
2.12 ��Director��means a member of the Board who is not an Employee.
2.13 ��Effective Date��means the date set forth in Section 14.17.
2.14 ��Employee��means an officer or other employee of the Company, a Subsidiary or Affiliate, including a member of the Board

who is an employee of the Company, a Subsidiary or Affiliate.
2.15 ��Exchange Act��means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.

2.16 ��Extraordinary Event�� means, unless otherwise specified in the Award Agreement, the occurrence of any of the following
events:

(a) a Change of Control;

(b)

The Company�s Board of Directors shall approve a partial liquidation of the Company under Section 302(b)(4) of the
Code or other extraordinary corporate contraction or distribution or other extraordinary transaction that is determined
by the Board of Directors to be appropriate and in the best interests of the Company and which by its terms precludes
the existence of Company securities convertible into Shares; or

(c)
The Company�s Board of Directors shall approve any merger, consolidation, or like business combination or
reorganization of the Company, the consummation of which would result in the occurrence of any event described in
Article 2.16(b) above.

2.17 ��Fair Market Value�� means, as of any date, the per Share value determined as follows, in accordance with applicable
provisions of Section 409A of the Code:

(a)
The average of the high and low trading price on the New York Stock Exchange or any other recognized stock
exchange or any established over-the-counter trading system on which Shares are readily tradable, or if no trades were
made on any such day, the immediately preceding day on which trades were made; or

(b)
In the absence of an established market for the Shares of the type described in (a) above, the per Share Fair Market
Value thereof shall be determined by the Committee in good faith and in accordance with applicable provisions of
Section 409A of the Code.

2.18 ��Incentive Stock Option�� means an Option intended to meet the requirements of an incentive stock option as defined in
Section 422 of the Code and designated as an Incentive Stock Option.

2.19 ��New York Stock Exchange�� means the New York Stock Exchange or any successor body carrying on the business of the
New York Stock Exchange.

2.20 ��Non-Employee Director�� means a person defined in Rule 16b-3(b)(3) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Exchange Act, or any successor definition adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

2.21 ��Nonqualified Stock Option��means an Option that is not an Incentive Stock Option.
2.22 ��Other Stock-Based Award��means any right granted under Article 9 of the Plan.

2.23 ��Option��means any stock option granted from time to time under Article 6 of the Plan.
2.24 ��Option Price��means the purchase price per Share subject to an Option, as determined pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Plan.
2.25 ��Outside Director�� means a member of the Board who is an �outside director� within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the

Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
2.26 ��Participant��means any eligible person as set forth in Section 4.1 to whom an Award is granted.
2.27 ��Performance-Based Compensation�� means compensation under an Award that is intended to constitute �Other

Performance-Based Compensation� within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code or any successor provision or �qualified
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performance-based compensation� within the meaning of the regulations promulgated under Section 162(m) of the Code or any successor
provision.

2.28 ��Performance Measures�� means measures as described in Section 10.1 on which the performance goals are based in order
to qualify Awards as Performance-Based Compensation.

2.29 ��Performance Period�� means the period of time during which the performance goals must be met in order to determine the
degree of payout and/or vesting with respect to an Award.

2.30 ��Person�� shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and used in Sections 13(d) and
14(d) thereof, including a �group� as defined in Section 13(d) thereof.

2.31 ��Plan��means the Crimson Wine Group 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan.
2.32 ��Plan Year��means the applicable fiscal year of the Company.
2.33 ��Restricted Stock� means any Award granted under Article 8.
2.34 ��Restriction Period�� means the period during which Restricted Stock awarded under Article 8 of the Plan is subject to

forfeiture.
2.35 ��Service��means service as an Employee or Director.
2.36 ��Share�� means a common share of the Company, par value $0.01 per share, or such other class or kind of shares or other

securities resulting from the application of Section 12.1.
2.37 ��Stock Appreciation Right��means any right granted under Article 7.

2.38 ��Subsidiary�� means any corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations beginning with the
Company (or any parent of the Company) if each of the corporations, other than the last corporation in each unbroken chain owns stock
possessing 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other corporations in such chain.

2.39 ��Ten Percent Shareholder�� means a person who on any given date owns, either directly or indirectly (taking into account
the attribution rules contained in Section 424(d) of the Code), stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all
classes of stock of the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate.
Article 3. Administration

3.1 Authority of the Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee, which shall have full power to interpret and
administer the Plan and Award Agreements and full authority to select the Employees and Directors to whom Awards will be granted, and
to determine the type and amount of Awards to be granted to each such Employee or Director, and the terms and conditions of Awards
and Award Agreements. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Committee may, in its sole discretion but subject to the
limitations in Article 13, clarify, construe or resolve any ambiguity in any provision of the Plan or any Award Agreement, extend the term
or period of exercisability of any Awards, or waive any terms or conditions applicable to any Award. Awards may, in the sole discretion of
the Committee, be made under the Plan in assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates or a company acquired by the Company or with which the Company combines. The Committee
shall have full and exclusive discretionary power to adopt rules, forms, instruments, and guidelines for administering the Plan or any
subplans as the Committee deems necessary or proper. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary, the Board, or any
other committee or sub-committee established by the Board, is hereby authorized (in addition to any necessary action by the Committee)
to grant or approve Awards as necessary to satisfy the requirements of Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
thereunder and to act in lieu of the Committee with respect to Awards made to Non-Employee Directors under the Plan. All actions taken
and all interpretations and determinations made by the Committee or by the Board (or any other committee or sub-committee thereof), as
applicable, shall be final and binding upon the Participants, the Company, and all other interested individuals.

3.2 Delegation. The Committee may delegate to one or more of its members, one or more officers of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or Affiliates, and one or more agents or advisors such administrative duties or powers as it may deem advisable; provided
that the Committee shall not delegate to officers of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates the power to make grants of
Awards to officers of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates; provided, further, that no delegation shall be permitted under
the Plan that is prohibited by applicable law.

Article 4. Eligibility and Participation
4.1 Eligibility. Participants will consist of such Employees and Directors as the Committee in its sole discretion determines and

whom the Committee may designate from time to time to receive Awards. Designation of a Participant in any year shall not require the
Committee to designate such person to receive an Award in any other year or, once designated, to receive the same type or amount of
Award as granted to the Participant in any other year.
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4.2 Type of Awards. Awards under the Plan may be granted in any one or a combination of: (a) Options, (b) Stock Appreciation
Rights, (c) Restricted Stock, (d) Other Stock-Based Awards, and (e) Performance-Based Compensation Awards. The Plan sets forth
the performance goals and procedural requirements to permit the Company to design Awards that qualify as Performance-Based
Compensation, as described in Article 10 hereof. Awards granted under the Plan shall be evidenced by Award Agreements (which need
not be identical) that provide additional terms and conditions associated with such Awards, as determined by the Committee in its sole
discretion; provided, however, that in the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan and any such Award Agreement, the
provisions of the Plan shall prevail.
Article 5. Shares Subject to the Plan and Maximum Awards

5.1 Number of Shares Available for Awards.

(a)

(i) General. Subject to adjustment as provided in Article 12 hereof, the maximum number of Shares available for
issuance to Participants pursuant to Awards under the Plan shall be 1,000,000 Shares. The number of Shares available
for granting Incentive Stock Options under the Plan shall not exceed 1,000,000 Shares, subject to Article 12 hereof and
the provisions of Sections 422 or 424 of the Code and any successor provisions. The Shares available for issuance
under the Plan may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued Shares or treasury Shares. Any Shares
delivered to the Company as part or full payment for the purchase price of an Award, or to the extent the Committee
determines that the availability of Incentive Stock Options will not be compromised, or to satisfy the Company�s
withholding obligation with respect to an Award, shall again be available for Awards; provided, however, that such
Shares shall continue to be counted as outstanding for purposes of determining whether an Annual Award Limit has
been attained.

(b)
Annual Award Limits. The maximum number of Shares with respect to Awards denominated in Shares that may be
granted to any Participant in any Plan Year shall be 600,000 Shares, subject to adjustments made in accordance with
Article 12 hereof (the �Annual Award Limit�).

(c)
Additional Shares. In the event that any outstanding Award expires, is forfeited, cancelled or otherwise terminated
without the issuance of Shares or is otherwise settled for cash, the Shares subject to such Award, to the extent of any such
forfeiture, cancellation, expiration, termination or

settlement for cash, shall again be available for Awards. If the Committee authorizes the assumption under this Plan, in
connection with any merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, or reorganization, of awards granted under
another plan, such assumption shall not (i) reduce the maximum number of Shares available for issuance under this Plan
or (ii) be subject to or counted against a Participant�s Annual Award Limit.

Article 6. Stock Options
6.1 Grant of Options. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Options to Participants. Each Option shall permit a Participant

to purchase from the Company a stated number of Shares at an Option Price established by the Committee, subject to the terms and
conditions described in this Article 6 and to such additional terms and conditions, as established by the Committee, in its sole discretion,
that are consistent with the provisions of the Plan. Options shall be designated as either Incentive Stock Options or Nonqualified Stock
Options, provided that Options granted to Directors shall be Nonqualified Stock Options. An Option granted as an Incentive Stock Option
shall, to the extent it fails to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option, be treated as a Nonqualified Stock Option. Neither the Committee nor
the Company or any of its Affiliates shall be liable to any Participant or to any other Person if it is determined that an Option intended
to be an Incentive Stock Option does not qualify as an Incentive Stock Option. Options shall be evidenced by Award Agreements which
shall state the number of Shares covered by such Option. Such agreements shall conform to the requirements of the Plan, and may contain
such other provisions, as the Committee shall deem advisable.

6.2 Terms of Option Grant. The Option Price shall be determined by the Committee at the time of grant, but shall not be less than
the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant. In the case of any Incentive Stock Option, the Option Price shall be (i) if granted
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to a person other than a Ten Percent shareholder, not less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant or (ii) if
granted to a Ten Percent Shareholder, not be less than 110% of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant.

6.3 Option Term. The term of each Option shall be determined by the Committee at the time of grant and shall be stated in the
Award Agreement, but in no event shall such term be greater than ten years (or, in the case on an Incentive Stock Option granted to a Ten
Percent Shareholder, five (5) years).

6.4 Time of Exercise. Options granted under this Article 6 shall be exercisable based on the passage of time as the Committee shall
in each instance approve, which terms and restrictions need not be the same for each grant or for each Participant.

6.5 Method of Exercise. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or in an Award Agreement, an Option may be exercised for
all, or from time to time any part, of the Shares for which it is then exercisable. For purposes of this Article 6, the exercise date of an
Option shall be the later of the date a notice of exercise is received by the Company and, if applicable, the date payment is received by the
Company pursuant to clauses (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) in the following sentence (including the applicable tax withholding pursuant to Section
14.3 of the Plan). The aggregate Option Price for the Shares as to which an Option is exercised shall be paid to the

Company in full at the time of exercise at the election of the Participant (i) in cash or its equivalent (e.g., by cashier�s check), (ii) to the
extent permitted by the Committee, in Shares (whether or not previously owned by the Participant) having a Fair Market Value equal to
the aggregate Option Price for the Shares being purchased and satisfying such other requirements as may be imposed by the Committee,
(iii) partly in cash and, to the extent permitted by the Committee, partly in such Shares (as described in (ii) above) or (iv) if there is a
public market for the Shares at such time, subject to such requirements as may be imposed by the Committee, through the delivery of
irrevocable instructions to a broker to sell Shares obtained upon the exercise of the Option and to deliver promptly to the Company an
amount out of the proceeds of such sale equal to the aggregate Option Price for the Shares being purchased. The Committee may prescribe
any other method of payment that it determines to be consistent with applicable law and the purpose of the Plan.

6.6 Limitations on Incentive Stock Options. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to employees of the Company or of a
�parent corporation� or �subsidiary corporation� (as such terms are defined in Section 424 of the Code) at the date of grant. The aggregate
Fair Market Value (generally determined as of the time the Option is granted) of the Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options
are exercisable for the first time by a Participant during any calendar year under all plans of the Company and of any �parent corporation�
or �subsidiary corporation� shall not exceed one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), or the Option shall be treated as a Nonqualified
Stock Option. For purposes of the preceding sentence, Incentive Stock Options will be taken into account generally in the order in which
they are granted. Each provision of the Plan and each Award Agreement relating to an Incentive Stock Option shall be construed so that
each Incentive Stock Option shall be an incentive stock option as defined in Section 422 of the Code, and any provisions of the Award
Agreement thereof that cannot be so construed shall be disregarded.
Article 7. Stock Appreciation Rights

7.1 Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Stock Appreciation Rights to
Participants, including a grant of Stock Appreciation Rights in tandem with any Option at the same time such Option is granted (a
�Tandem SAR�). Stock Appreciation Rights shall be evidenced by Award Agreements that shall conform to the requirements of the
Plan and may contain such other provisions, as the Committee shall deem advisable. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable
Award Agreement, a Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan shall confer on the holder thereof a right to receive, upon exercise
thereof, the excess of (a) the Fair Market Value of a specified number of Shares on the date of exercise over (b) the grant price of the
right as specified by the Committee on the date of the grant. Such payment may be in the form of cash, Shares, other property or any
combination thereof, as the Committee shall determine in its sole discretion.

7.2 Terms of Stock Appreciation Right. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable Award Agreement, the grant price
(which shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant), term, methods of exercise, methods of
settlement, and any other terms and conditions of any Stock Appreciation Right shall be as determined by the Committee. The Committee
may impose such other conditions or restrictions on the exercise

of any Stock Appreciation Right as it may deem appropriate. No Stock Appreciation Right shall have a term of more than 10 years from
the date of grant.

7.3 Tandem Stock Appreciation Rights and Options. A Tandem SAR shall be exercisable only to the extent that the related
Option is exercisable and shall expire no later than the expiration of the related Option. Upon the exercise of all or a portion of a
Tandem SAR, a Participant shall be required to forfeit the right to purchase an equivalent portion of the related Option (and, when a
Share is purchased under the related Option, the Participant shall be required to forfeit an equivalent portion of the Stock Appreciation
Right).
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Article 8. Restricted Stock
8.1 Grant of Restricted Stock. An Award of Restricted Stock is a grant by the Committee of a specified number of Shares to the

Participant, which Shares are subject to forfeiture upon the occurrence of specified events. Participants shall be awarded Restricted
Stock in exchange for consideration not less than the minimum consideration required by applicable law. Restricted Stock shall be
evidenced by an Award Agreement, which shall conform to the requirements of the Plan and may contain such other provisions, as the
Committee shall deem advisable.

8.2 Terms of Restricted Stock Awards. Each Award Agreement evidencing a Restricted Stock grant shall specify the period(s) of
restriction, the number of Shares of Restricted Stock subject to the Award, the performance, employment or other conditions (including
the termination of a Participant�s Service whether due to death, disability or other cause) under which the Restricted Stock may be
forfeited to the Company and such other provisions as the Committee shall determine. Any Restricted Stock granted under the Plan shall
be evidenced in such manner as the Committee may deem appropriate, including book-entry registration or issuance of a stock certificate
or certificates (in which case, the certificate(s) representing such Shares shall be legended as to sale, transfer, assignment, pledge or other
encumbrances during the Restriction Period and deposited by the Participant, together with a stock power endorsed in blank, with the
Company, to be held in escrow during the Restriction Period). At the end of the Restriction Period, the restrictions imposed hereunder
and under the Award Agreement shall lapse with respect to the number of Shares of Restricted Stock as determined by the Committee,
and the legend shall be removed and such number of Shares delivered to the Participant (or, where appropriate, the Participant�s legal
representative).

8.3 Voting and Dividend Rights. The Committee shall determine and set forth in a Participant�s Award Agreement whether or not
a Participant holding Restricted Stock granted hereunder shall have the right to exercise voting rights with respect to the Restricted Stock
during the Restriction Period (the Committee may require a Participant to grant an irrevocable proxy and power of substitution) and have
the right to receive dividends on the Restricted Stock during the Restriction Period (and, if so, on what terms).

8.4 Performance Goals. The Committee may condition the grant of Restricted Stock or the expiration of the Restriction Period
upon the Participant�s achievement of one or more performance goal(s) specified in the Award Agreement. If the Participant fails to
achieve the specified performance goal(s) as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, subject to

Article 10 hereto, the Committee shall not grant the Restricted Stock to such Participant or the Participant shall forfeit the Award of
Restricted Stock to the Company, as applicable.

8.5 Section 83(b) Election. If a Participant makes an election pursuant to Section 83(b) of the Code concerning Restricted Stock,
the Participant shall be required to file promptly a copy of such election with the Company.
Article 9. Other Stock-Based Awards

The Committee, in its sole discretion, may grant Awards of Shares and Awards that are valued, in whole or in part, by reference
to, or are otherwise based on the Fair Market Value of, Shares (the �Other Stock-Based Awards�), including without limitation, restricted
stock units and other phantom awards. Such Other Stock-Based Awards shall be in such form, and dependent on such conditions, as the
Committee shall determine, including, without limitation, the right to receive one or more Shares (or the equivalent cash value of such
Shares) upon the completion of a specified period of Service, the occurrence of an event and/or the attainment of performance objectives,
as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, subject to Article 10 hereto. Other Stock-Based Awards may be granted alone or in
addition to any other Awards granted under the Plan. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall determine to whom and
when Other Stock-Based Awards will be made, the number of Shares to be awarded under (or otherwise related to) such Other Stock-
Based Awards, whether such Other Stock-Based Awards shall be settled in cash, Shares or a combination of cash and Shares, and all other
terms and conditions of such Awards (including, without limitation, the vesting provisions thereof and provisions ensuring that all Shares
so awarded and issued shall be fully paid and non-assessable). The vesting period for Other Stock-Based Awards shall be as determined
by the Committee.
Article 10. Performance-Based Compensation

To the extent permitted by Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee is authorized to design any Award so that the amounts or
Shares payable or distributed pursuant to such Award are treated as �qualified performance-based compensation� within the meaning of
Section 162(m) of the Code and related regulations.

10.1 Performance Measures. The vesting, crediting and/or payment of Performance-Based Compensation shall be based on the
achievement of objective performance goals based on one or more of the following Performance Measures (or such other Performance
Measures as may be determined by the Committee): (i) consolidated earnings before or after taxes (including earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization); (ii) net income; (iii) operating income; (iv) earnings per Share; (v) book value per Share; (vi) return
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on shareholders� equity; (vii) expense management; (viii) return on investment; (ix) improvements in capital structure; (x) profitability
of an identifiable business unit or product; (xi) maintenance or improvement of profit margins; (xii) stock price; (xiii) market share; (xiv)
revenues or sales; (xv) costs; (xvi) cash flow; (xvii) working capital, (xviii) return on assets, (xix) store openings or refurbishment plans,
(xx) staff training, and (xxi) corporate social responsibility policy implementation.

Any Performance Measure may be (i) used to measure the performance of the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries or
Affiliates as a whole, any business unit thereof or any combination thereof against any goal including past performance or (ii) compared
to the performance of a group of comparable companies, or a published or special index, in each case that the Committee, in its sole
discretion, deems appropriate. Subject to Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee may adjust the performance goals (including
to prorate goals and payments for a partial Plan Year) in the event of the following occurrences: (i) non-recurring events, including
divestitures, spin-offs, or changes in accounting standards or policies; (ii) mergers and acquisitions; and (iii) financing transactions,
including selling accounts receivable.

10.2 Establishment of Performance Goals for Covered Employees. No later than ninety (90) days after the commencement of
a Performance Period (but in no event after twenty-five percent (25%) of such Performance Period has elapsed), the Committee shall
establish in writing: (a) the performance goals applicable to the Performance Period; (b) the Performance Measures to be used to measure
the performance goals in terms of an objective formula or standard; (c) the formula for computing the amount of compensation payable to
the Participant if such performance goals are obtained; and (d) the Participants or class of Participants to which such performance goals
apply. The outcome of such performance goals must be substantially uncertain when the Committee establishes the goals.

10.3 Adjustment of Performance-Based Compensation. Awards that are designed to qualify as Performance-Based
Compensation may not be adjusted upward. The Committee shall retain the sole discretion to adjust such Awards downward, either on a
formula or discretionary basis or any combination, as the Committee determines.

10.4 Certification of Performance. Except for Awards that pay compensation attributable solely to an increase in the value of
Shares, no Award designed to qualify as Performance-Based Compensation shall be vested, credited or paid, as applicable, with respect
to any Participant until the Committee certifies in writing that the performance goals and any other material terms applicable to such
Performance Period have been satisfied.

10.5 Each provision of the Plan and each Award Agreement relating to Performance-Based Compensation shall be construed so
that each such Award shall be �qualified performance-based compensation� within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and
related regulations, and any provisions of the Award Agreement thereof that cannot be so construed shall be disregarded.
Article 11. Compliance with Section 409A of the Code and Section 457A of the Code

11.1 General. The Company intends that any Awards be structured in compliance with, or to satisfy an exemption from, Section
409A of the Code and all regulations, guidance, compliance programs and other interpretative authority thereunder (�Section 409A�),
such that there are no adverse tax consequences, interest, or penalties as a result of the payments. Notwithstanding the Company�s
intention, in the event any Award is subject to Section 409A and potentially subject to any adverse tax consequences thereunder, the
Committee may, in its sole discretion and without a Participant�s prior consent, amend the Plan and/or Awards, adopt policies and
procedures, or take any other actions (including amendments, policies, procedures

and actions with retroactive effect) as are necessary or appropriate to (a) exempt the Plan and/or any Award from the application of
Section 409A, (b) preserve the intended tax treatment of any such Award and minimize any adverse tax consequences of such Award, or
(c) comply with the requirements of Section 409A, including without limitation any such regulations guidance, compliance programs and
other interpretative authority that may be issued after the date of the grant.

11.2 Payments to Specified Employees. Notwithstanding any contrary provision in the Plan or Award Agreement, any payment(s)
of nonqualified deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A) that are otherwise required to be made under the Plan to
a �specified employee� (as defined under Section 409A) as a result of his or her separation from service (other than a payment that is
not subject to Section 409A) shall be delayed for the first six (6) months following such separation from service (or, if earlier, the date
of death of the specified employee) and shall instead be paid (in a manner set forth in the Award Agreement) on the payment date that
immediately follows the end of such six-month period or as soon as administratively practicable thereafter.

11.3 Separation from Service. A termination of employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for purposes of any provision
of the Plan or any Award Agreement providing for the payment of any amounts or benefits that are considered nonqualified deferred
compensation under Section 409A upon or following a termination of employment, unless such termination is also a �separation from
service� within the meaning of Section 409A and the payment thereof prior to a �separation from service� would violate Section 409A.
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For purposes of any such provision of the Plan or any Award Agreement relating to any such payments or benefits, references to a
�termination,� �termination of employment� or like terms shall mean �separation from service.�

11.4 Section 457A. The Company intends that any Awards be structured in compliance with, or to satisfy an exemption from,
Section 457A of the Code (�Section 457A�) and all regulations, guidance, compliance programs and other interpretative authority
thereunder, such that there are no adverse tax consequences, interest, or penalties as a result of the payments. Notwithstanding the
Company�s intention, in the event any Award is subject to Section 457A and potentially subject to any adverse tax consequences
thereunder, the Committee may, in its sole discretion and without a Participant�s prior consent, amend the Plan and/or Awards, adopt
policies and procedures, or take any other actions (including amendments, policies, procedures and actions with retroactive effect) as are
necessary or appropriate to (a) exempt the Plan and/or any Award from the application of Section 457A, (b) preserve the intended tax
treatment of any such Award and minimize any adverse tax consequences of such Award, or (c) comply with the requirements of
Section 457A, including without limitation any such regulations, guidance, compliance programs and other interpretative authority that
may be issued after the date of the grant.
Article 12. Adjustments

12.1 Adjustments in Authorized Shares. In the event of any corporate event or transaction involving the Company, a Subsidiary
and/or an Affiliate (including, but not limited to, a change in the Shares of the Company or the capitalization of the Company) such as a

merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, separation, stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, split up, spin-off,
combination of Shares, exchange of Shares, dividend in kind, amalgamation, or other like change in capital structure (other than normal
cash dividends to shareholders of the Company), or any similar corporate event or transaction, the Committee, to prevent dilution or
enlargement of Participants� rights under the Plan, shall substitute or adjust, in its sole discretion, the number and kind of Shares or other
property that may be issued under the Plan or under particular forms of Awards, the number and kind of Shares or other property subject
to outstanding Awards, the Option Price, grant price or purchase price applicable to outstanding Awards, the Annual Award Limits, and/
or other value determinations applicable to the Plan or outstanding Awards.

12.2 Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control after the Effective Date, unless otherwise specifically
prohibited under applicable laws or by the rules and regulations of any governing governmental agencies or national securities exchanges,
or unless the Committee shall determine otherwise in the Award Agreement, the Committee is authorized (but not obligated) to make
adjustments in the terms and conditions of outstanding Awards, including without limitation the following (or any combination thereof):
(i) continuation or assumption of such outstanding Awards under the Plan by the Company (if it is the surviving company or corporation)
or by the surviving company or corporation or its parent; (ii) substitution by the surviving company or corporation or its parent of awards
with substantially the same terms for such outstanding Awards; (iii) accelerated exercisability, vesting and/or lapse of restrictions under
outstanding Awards immediately prior to the occurrence of such event; (iv) upon written notice, provide that any outstanding Awards
must be exercised, to the extent then exercisable, during a reasonable period of time immediately prior to the scheduled consummation of
the event, or such other period as determined by the Committee (contingent upon the consummation of the event), and at the end of such
period, such Awards shall terminate to the extent not so exercised within the relevant period; and (v) cancellation of all or any portion of
outstanding Awards for fair value (as determined in the sole discretion of the Committee and which may be zero) which, in the case of
Options and Stock Appreciation Rights or similar Awards, may equal the excess, if any, of the value of the consideration to be paid in
the Change of Control transaction to holders of the same number of Shares subject to such Awards (or, if no such consideration is paid,
Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to such outstanding Awards or portion thereof being canceled) over the aggregate Option Price
or grant price, as applicable, with respect to such Awards or portion thereof being canceled.

12.3 Extraordinary Event. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, if there is an Extraordinary Event with respect to
the Company, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may provide for accelerated exercisability, vesting and/or lapse of restrictions of all
then outstanding Awards that have not vested or become exercisable at the time of such Extraordinary Event; provided, that (A) any
spin-off of a division or subsidiary of the Company to its stockholders and (B) any event that the Board of Directors determines not to
be an Extraordinary Event with respect to the Company, shall not constitute an Extraordinary Event with respect to the Company. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine that, upon the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event with respect to the Company, each
Award outstanding hereunder shall terminate within a specified number of days after notice to the holder, and such holder shall receive
with respect to each Share that is subject to an Award (assuming no exercise) an amount equal to (i) the excess of the Fair Market Value
of such Share over the exercise price per share of

such Option or Stock Appreciation Right (as the case may be), (ii) the Fair Market Value of such Share in respect of a Restricted Stock
Award, or (iii) such other amount as determined by the Committee in accordance with the terms of the applicable Award Agreement.
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Such amount is to be payable in cash, in one or more kinds of property (including the property, if any, payable in the transaction, if any)
or in a combination thereof, as the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine. The provisions contained in the preceding sentence
shall be inapplicable to an Award granted within six (6) months before the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event if the holder of such
Award is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and no exception from liability under Section 16(b)
of the Exchange Act is otherwise available to such holder.
Article 13. Duration, Amendment, Modification, Suspension, and Termination

13.1 Duration of the Plan. Unless sooner terminated as provided in Section 13.2, the Plan shall terminate on the tenth (10th)
anniversary of the Effective Date.

13.2 Amendment, Modification, Suspension, and Termination of Plan. The Committee may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue,
or terminate (for purposes of this Section 13.2, an �Action�) the Plan or any portion thereof or any Award (or Award Agreement)
thereunder at any time; provided that no such Action shall be made, other than as permitted under Article 11 or 12, (i) without shareholder
approval (A) if such approval is necessary to comply with any tax or regulatory requirement applicable to the Plan, (B) if such Action
increases the number of Shares available under the Plan (other than an increase permitted under Article 5 absent shareholder approval),
(C) if such Action results in a material increase in benefits permitted under the Plan (but excluding increases that are immaterial or that
are minor and to benefit the administration of the Plan, to take account of any changes in legislation, or to obtain or maintain favorable
tax, exchange, or regulatory treatment for the Company, a Subsidiary, and/or an Affiliate) or a change in eligibility requirements under
the Plan, or (D) for any Action that results in a reduction of the Option Price or grant price per Share, as applicable, of any outstanding
Options or Stock Appreciation Rights or cancellation of any outstanding Options or Stock Appreciation Rights in exchange for cash, or
for other Awards, such as other Options or Stock Appreciation Rights, with an Option Price or grant price per Share, as applicable, that is
less than such price of the original Options or Stock Appreciation Rights, and (ii) without the written consent of the affected Participant,
if such Action would materially diminish the rights of any Participant under any Award theretofore granted to such Participant under
the Plan; provided, however, that the Committee may amend the Plan, any Award or any Award Agreement without such consent of the
Participant in such manner as it deems necessary to comply with applicable laws.
Article 14. General Provisions

14.1 No Right to Service. The granting of an Award under the Plan shall impose no obligation on the Company, any Subsidiary
or any Affiliate to continue the Service of a Participant and shall not lessen or affect any right that the Company, any Subsidiary or
any Affiliate may have to terminate the Service of such Participant. No Participant or other Person shall have any claim to be granted
any Award, and there is no obligation for uniformity of treatment of Participants, or holders or beneficiaries of Awards. The terms and
conditions of

Awards and the Committee�s determinations and interpretations with respect thereto need not be the same with respect to each Participant
(whether or not such Participants are similarly situated).

14.2 Settlement of Awards; Fractional Shares. Each Award Agreement shall establish the form in which the Award shall be
settled. The Committee shall determine whether cash, Awards, other securities or other property shall be issued or paid in lieu of fractional
Shares or whether such fractional Shares or any rights thereto shall be rounded, forfeited or otherwise eliminated.

14.3 Tax Withholding. The Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold automatically from any amount
deliverable under the Award or otherwise, or require a Participant to remit to the Company, the minimum statutory amount to satisfy
federal, state, and local taxes, domestic or foreign, required by law or regulation to be withheld with respect to any taxable event arising
as a result of the Plan. With respect to required withholding, Participants may elect (subject to the Company�s automatic withholding
right set out above), subject to the approval of the Committee, to satisfy the withholding requirement, in whole or in part, by having the
Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value on the date the tax is to be determined equal to the minimum statutory total tax
that could be imposed on the transaction.

14.4 No Guarantees Regarding Tax Treatment. Participants (or their beneficiaries) shall be responsible for all taxes with respect
to any Awards under the Plan. The Committee and the Company make no guarantees to any Person regarding the tax treatment of Awards
or payments made under the Plan. Neither the Committee nor the Company has any obligation to take any action to prevent the assessment
of any tax on any Person with respect to any Award under Section 409A of the Code or Section 457A of the Code or otherwise and none
of the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or any of their employees or representatives shall have any liability to a Participant
with respect thereto.

14.5 Non-Transferability of Awards. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, an Award shall not be transferable or
assignable by the Participant except in the event of his death (subject to the applicable laws of descent and distribution) and any such
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purported assignment, alienation, pledge, attachment, sale, transfer or encumbrance shall be void and unenforceable against the Company
or any Affiliate. No transfer shall be permitted for value or consideration. An award exercisable after the death of a Participant may be
exercised by the legatees, personal representatives or distributees of the Participant. Any permitted transfer of the Awards to heirs or
legatees of the Participant shall not be effective to bind the Company unless the Committee shall have been furnished with written notice
thereof and a copy of such evidence as the Committee may deem necessary to establish the validity of the transfer and the acceptance by
the transferee or transferees of the terms and conditions hereof.

14.6 Conditions and Restrictions on Shares. The Committee may impose such other conditions or restrictions on any Shares
received in connection with an Award as it may deem advisable or desirable. These restrictions may include, but shall not be limited to,
a requirement that the Participant hold the Shares received for a specified period of time or a requirement that a Participant represent and
warrant in writing that the Participant is acquiring the Shares for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such
Shares. The certificates

for Shares may include any legend which the Committee deems appropriate to reflect any conditions and restrictions applicable to such
Shares.

14.7 Compliance with Law. The granting of Awards and the issuance of Shares under the Plan shall be subject to all applicable
laws, rules, and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies, or any stock exchanges on which the Shares are
admitted to trading or listed, as may be required. The Company shall have no obligation to issue or deliver evidence of title for Shares
issued under the Plan prior to:

(a) Obtaining any approvals from governmental agencies that the Company determines are necessary or advisable; and

(b)
Completion of any registration or other qualification of the Shares under any applicable national, state or foreign law or ruling
of any governmental body that the Company determines to be necessary or advisable.

The restrictions contained in this Section 14.7 shall be in addition to any conditions or restrictions that the Committee may impose
pursuant to Section 14.6. The inability of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory body having jurisdiction, which authority
is deemed by the Company�s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder, shall relieve the Company
of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite authority shall not have been obtained.

14.8 Awards to Non-U.S. Employees or Directors. To comply with the laws in countries other than the United States in which
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates operates or has Employees or Directors, the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall
have the power and authority to:

(a) Determine which Subsidiaries or Affiliates shall be covered by the Plan;

(b) Determine which Employees or Directors outside the United States are eligible to participate in the Plan;

(c)
Modify the terms and conditions of any Award granted to Employees or Directors outside the United States to comply
with applicable foreign laws;

(d)
Take any action, before or after an Award is made, that it deems advisable to obtain approval or comply with any
necessary local government regulatory exemptions or approvals; and

(e)
Establish subplans and modify exercise procedures and other terms and procedures, to the extent such actions may be
necessary or advisable. Any subplans and modifications to Plan terms and procedures established under this Section 14.8
by the Committee shall be attached to this Plan document as appendices.

14.9 Rights as a Shareholder. Except as otherwise provided herein or in the applicable Award Agreement, a Participant shall have
none of the rights of a shareholder with respect to Shares covered by any Award until the Participant becomes the record holder of such
Shares.

14.10 Severability. If any provision of the Plan or any Award is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
in any jurisdiction, or as to any Person or Award, or would disqualify the Plan or any Award under any law deemed applicable by the
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Committee, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed
amended without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the intent of the Plan or the Award, such provision shall be
stricken as to such jurisdiction, Person, or Award, and the remainder of the Plan and any such Award shall remain in full force and effect.

14.11 Unfunded Plan. Participants shall have no right, title, or interest whatsoever in or to any investments that the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates may make to aid it in meeting its obligations under the Plan. Nothing contained in the Plan, and
no action taken pursuant to its provisions, shall create or be construed to create a trust of any kind, or a fiduciary relationship between
the Company and any Participant, beneficiary, legal representative, or any other Person. To the extent that any Person acquires a right
to receive payments from the Company under the Plan, such right shall be no greater than the right of an unsecured general creditor of
the Company. All payments to be made hereunder shall be paid from the general funds of the Company and no special or separate fund
shall be established and no segregation of assets shall be made to assure payment of such amounts. The Plan is not subject to the U.S.
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time.

14.12 No Constraint on Corporate Action. Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to (a) limit, impair, or otherwise affect the
Company�s right or power to make adjustments, reclassifications, reorganizations, or changes of its capital or business structure, or to
merge or consolidate, or dissolve, liquidate, sell, or transfer all or any part of its business or assets, or (b) limit the right or power of the
Company to take any action which such entity deems to be necessary or appropriate.

14.13 Successors. All obligations of the Company under the Plan with respect to Awards granted hereunder shall be binding on any
successor to the Company, whether the existence of such successor is the result of a direct or indirect purchase, merger, consolidation, or
otherwise, of all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company.

14.14 Governing Law. The Plan and each Award Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, excluding
any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer construction or interpretation of the Plan to the substantive law
of another jurisdiction.

14.15 Waiver of Certain Claims. By participating in the Plan, the Participant waives all and any rights to compensation or
damages in consequence of the termination of his or her office or Service with the Company, any Subsidiary or Affiliate for any reason
whatsoever, whether lawfully or otherwise, insofar as those rights arise or may arise from his or her ceasing

to have rights under the Plan as a result of such termination, or from the loss or diminution in value of such rights or entitlements,
including by reason of the operation of the terms of the Plan, any determination by the Board or Committee pursuant to a discretion
contained in the Plan or any Award Agreement or the provisions of any statute or law relating to taxation.

14.16 Data Protection. By participating in the Plan, the Participant consents to the collection, processing, transmission and storage
by the Company in any form whatsoever, of any data of a professional or personal nature which is necessary for the purposes of
introducing and administering the Plan. The Company may share such information with any Subsidiary or Affiliate, the trustee of any
employee benefit trust, its registrars, trustees, brokers, other third party administrator or any Person who obtains control of the Company
or acquires the company, undertaking or part-undertaking which employs the Participant, wherever situated.

14.17 Effective Date. The Plan shall be effective as of the date of adoption by the Board, which date is set forth below (the
�Effective Date�).

14.18 Shareholder Approval. The Plan will be submitted for approval by the shareholders of the Company at an annual meeting
or any special meeting of shareholders of the Company within twelve (12) months of the Effective Date. Any Awards granted under the
Plan prior to such approval of shareholders shall be effective as of the date of grant, but no such Award may be exercised or settled and
no restrictions relating to any Award may lapse prior to such shareholder approval, and if shareholders fail to approve the Plan as
specified hereunder, the Plan and any Award shall be terminated and cancelled without consideration.

* * *
This Plan was duly adopted and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company by resolution at a meeting held on the ____

day of _________, 2013.
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Information contained herein is subject to completion or amendment. A Registration Statement on Form
10 relating to these securities has been filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Preliminary and Subject to Completion, dated January 28, 2013

INFORMATION STATEMENT

Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.

This information statement is being furnished in connection with the distribution by Leucadia National Corporation
(�Leucadia�) to its shareholders of all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. (�Crimson�),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leucadia that is engaged in the production and sale of premium, ultra-premium and luxury
wines. To implement the distribution, Leucadia will distribute as a dividend all of its shares of Crimson Common Stock (as
defined below) on a pro rata basis to Leucadia�s shareholders in a manner that is intended to be tax-free. After the distribution
is completed, Crimson will be a separate publicly held company.

Following the distribution, Crimson will have one class of common stock outstanding, voting common stock (�Common
Stock�), all of which will have been distributed to Leucadia shareholders. Approximately 24.5 million shares of Common
Stock will be distributed in the distribution. Holders of record of Leucadia�s common shares as of the close of business on
(the �record date�) will receive one share of Common Stock for every 10 Leucadia common shares held on the record date.
Leucadia shareholders will receive cash in lieu of any fractional shares. The distribution will occur on . As discussed under
�The Distribution�Trading Between the Record Date and Distribution Date,� if you sell your common shares of Leucadia in
the �regular-way� market after the record date and before the distribution, you also will be selling your right to receive shares
of Crimson Common Stock in connection with the distribution. Following the distribution, Leucadia will not own any of
Crimson�s Common Stock.

No vote of Leucadia�s shareholders is required in connection with the distribution. We Are Not Asking You for a Proxy
and You are Requested Not to Send Us a Proxy. You do not need to pay any consideration, exchange or surrender your
existing common shares of Leucadia or take any other action to receive your shares of Crimson Common Stock.

Prior to the distribution, there has been no public market for Crimson�s Common Stock, and there is no guarantee that an
active trading market will develop. Crimson�s Common Stock will not be listed on any securities exchange. Following the
distribution, it is expected that our Common Stock will be quoted on OTC Link under the symbol � .�

Crimson is an �emerging growth company� as defined under the federal securities laws and, as such, may elect to comply
with certain reduced public company reporting requirements in future reports that we file with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission.

In reviewing this information statement you should carefully consider the matters described in the section entitled
��Risk Factors�� beginning on page 6.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this information statement. Any
representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
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This information statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities.

The date of this information statement is , 2013.

This information statement is expected to be mailed to the shareholders of Leucadia on or about , 2013.
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INFORMATION STATEMENT SUMMARY

The following is a summary of material information discussed in this information statement. This summary may not
contain all the details concerning the distribution or other information that may be important to you. To better understand
Crimson Wine Group�s business and financial position and Crimson Wine Group�s separation from Leucadia National
Corporation, you should carefully review this entire information statement. Except as otherwise indicated or unless the context
otherwise requires, the information included in this information statement, including the consolidated financial statements of
Crimson Wine Group, assumes the completion of all the transactions referred to in this information statement in connection
with the separation and distribution. Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this information statement to
�Crimson,� �we,� �us,� �our� and �our company� refer to Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. and its subsidiaries. References in this
information statement to �Leucadia� refer to Leucadia National Corporation, a New York corporation, and its consolidated
subsidiaries (other than Crimson and its subsidiaries), unless the context otherwise requires.

Our Business

Crimson is a Delaware company whose business has been operating since 1991. Crimson operates in one segment, the
production and sale of premium, ultra premium and luxury wines (i.e., wines that retail for $10 to $14, $14 to $25 and over
$25 per 750ml bottle, respectively). Crimson is headquartered in Napa, California and through its wholly-owned subsidiaries
owns four wineries: Pine Ridge Vineyards, Archery Summit, Chamisal Vineyards and Seghesio Family Vineyards. Pine Ridge
Vineyards was acquired in 1991 and has been conducting operations since 1978, Archery Summit was started in 1993,
Chamisal Vineyards was acquired in 2008 and has been conducting operations since 1973, and Seghesio Family Vineyards
was acquired in 2011 and has been conducting operations since 1895. Additionally, in 2005 and 2006, Double Canyon
Vineyards was acquired, consisting of an aggregate of 611 acres of land in the Horse Heaven Hills of Washington�s Columbia
Valley.

Risks Associated with Our Business

You should carefully consider the matters discussed in the �Risk Factors� section beginning on page 6 of this information
statement.

Executive Offices

Our principal executive offices are located at 5901 Silverado Trail, Napa, CA 94558. Our main telephone number is
800-486-0503. Our website address is www.crimsonwinegroup.com. None of the information on our website or any other
website identified herein is part of this information statement.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE DISTRIBUTION

Q: What is the distribution?

A: The distribution is the method by which Leucadia shareholders will become Crimson stockholders. Crimson will consist
principally of Leucadia�s winery businesses, which we also refer to as the Crimson Business.

Prior to the distribution, all of our Common Stock is held by Leucadia. To effect the distribution, Leucadia will distribute
to each of its shareholders one share of our Common Stock for every 10 Leucadia common shares held as of the close of
business on . Immediately after the distribution, Leucadia�s shareholders will continue to have an interest in all of Leucadia�s
businesses (other than Crimson) to the extent they continue to own Leucadia shares.

Q: Why is Leucadia distributing Crimson Common Stock?

A: As previously announced, the separation is a condition precedent to the completion of the transactions contemplated by the
Agreement and Plan of Merger dated November 11, 2012, among Leucadia and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Limestone
Merger Sub, LLC, and Jefferies Group, Inc. (�Jefferies�) and its subsidiaries, JSP Holdings, Inc., and Jasper Merger Sub, Inc.
Jefferies has advised Leucadia that Jefferies� management deemed Crimson as less strategically relevant than Leucadia�s
other subsidiaries, ascribing a value to Crimson no greater than approximately its book carrying value. As such, in assessing
and negotiating the terms of the transaction with Leucadia, Jefferies� management advised Leucadia that Jefferies viewed the
pre-transaction divestiture of Crimson through the Leucadia winery business separation an efficient and desirable method of
divesting Crimson, as compared with a post-transaction sale or other divestiture. It was therefore agreed between Jefferies and
Leucadia that that the separation occur prior to consummation of the transactions, without reducing the book value of
Leucadia by more than $197 million and that it be effected without Leucadia retaining any material liability with respect to
Crimson.

In addition, Leucadia believes that the separation will ultimately enhance Crimson�s ability to raise debt or equity capital
should it need to do so, as the business and value proposition will be more clearly defined. Crimson owns wineries engaged in
the production and sale of premium, ultra-premium and luxury wines, with different physical, operating, geographic and
strategic characteristics than Leucadia�s other businesses. The distribution will enable investors or lenders to separately value
Crimson as a stand-alone entity. Investors will have the flexibility to own both Leucadia and Crimson separately or in
combination.

In approving the Jefferies transaction, the Leucadia board of directors understood that the distribution was a condition to
consummation of the Jefferies transaction and agreed to distribute Crimson shares to Leucadia shareholders prior to
consummation of the Jefferies transaction. The reasons for the board of directors� decision are described above.

The distribution is subject to a number of conditions. For a complete discussion of the conditions to the distribution, see
�The Distribution�Separation Agreement�Conditions to the Separation and Distribution.�

Q: Why am I receiving this document?

A: Leucadia is delivering this document to you because you are a holder of common shares of Leucadia. If you are a holder of
Leucadia common shares on , you are entitled to receive one share of Crimson Common Stock for every 10 common shares
of Leucadia that you held at the close of business on the record date. Crimson will not issue fractional shares of its Common
Stock in the distribution. Instead, you will receive cash in lieu of any fractional shares. This document will help you
understand how the separation and distribution will affect your investment in Leucadia and your investment in Crimson after
the separation.

Q: What are the conditions to the distribution?

A: The distribution is subject to a number of conditions, including, among others,
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�
the receipt of an opinion from Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP, to the effect that the distribution will qualify as a
transaction that is described in Sections 355(a) and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the �Code�); and

�
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) declaring effective the registration statement of which this
information statement forms a part.

We cannot assure you that any or all of these conditions will be met. For a complete discussion of all of the conditions to
the distribution, see �The Distribution�Separation Agreement�Conditions to the Separation and Distribution.�

Q: What will I receive in the distribution?

A: For every 10 Leucadia common shares that you hold at the close of business on , the record date, you will receive 1 share
of our Common Stock. For example, if you own 1,000 Leucadia common shares, you would be entitled to receive 100 shares
of our Common Stock; fractional shares will not be distributed. Fractional shares will be aggregated and, after the distribution,
sold in the secondary market by the distribution agent and the aggregate net cash proceeds will be distributed ratably to those
holders of record otherwise entitled to fractional interests. See �The Distribution�Manner of Effecting the Distribution.�

Q: What will happen to my existing Leucadia common shares as a result of the distribution?

A: Immediately after the distribution, you will own our Common Stock and you will continue to own all of the Leucadia
securities that you own on the distribution date. Leucadia�s common shares will continue to trade on the NYSE under the
symbol �LUK.�

Q: What are the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the distribution?

A: The distribution is conditioned on the receipt by Leucadia of an opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP, to the effect that
no gain or loss will be recognized in connection with the distribution by Leucadia or by you, except to the extent that you
receive cash in lieu of a fractional share of our Common Stock. The opinion will be based on the assumption that, among other
things, the facts, representations or undertakings made, and information submitted, in connection with it are accurate.

Your aggregate basis in your Leucadia common shares and our Common Stock that you receive in the distribution
(including any fractional share interest in our Common Stock for which cash is received) will equal the aggregate basis in the
common shares of Leucadia held by you immediately before the distribution, allocated between your common shares of
Leucadia and our Common Stock in proportion to the relative fair market value of each on the distribution date.

For more information regarding the potential U.S. federal income tax consequences to Leucadia and to you of the
distribution, see �Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences.�

Q: What do I have to do to participate in the distribution?

A: Nothing. Holders of Leucadia common shares on the record date for the distribution do not have to do anything to
participate in the distribution, but you are urged to read this entire information statement carefully. No shareholder
approval is required. You are not being asked for a proxy. You do not need to pay any consideration, exchange or surrender
your existing common shares of Leucadia or take any other action to receive your shares of Crimson Common Stock. Please
do not send in your Leucadia share certificates.

Q: What is the record date for the distribution?

A: The record date for the distribution will be .
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Q: When will the distribution occur?

A: The distribution is expected to be completed on or around , the distribution date.

Q: Will the shares of Crimson Common Stock be subject to any transfer restrictions?

A: Yes. In order to protect our net operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes, our Common Stock is subject to
certain transfer restrictions contained in our certificate of incorporation. The transfer restrictions impose restrictions on the
transfer of our capital shares to designated persons or the delivery of our capital shares to certain target shareholders in
connection with acquisition transactions. All certificates representing Crimson Stock will bear the following legend:

��THE TRANSFER OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY IS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IX OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF CRIMSON WINE GROUP,
LTD. REPRINTED IN ITS ENTIRETY ON THE BACK OF THIS CERTIFICATE.��

See �Description of Capital Stock�Transfer Restrictions on our Common Stock.�

Q: Can Leucadia decide to cancel the distribution of Crimson Common Stock even if all the conditions are met?

A: Yes. The distribution is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions. See the section entitled �The
Distribution�Separation Agreement�Conditions to the Separation and Distribution.� Until the distribution has occurred,
Leucadia has the right to terminate the distribution, even if all of the conditions are satisfied, if at any time the board of
directors of Leucadia determines that the distribution is not in the best interests of Leucadia and its shareholders or that market
conditions or other circumstances are such that it is not advisable at that time to separate the Crimson Business from the
remainder of Leucadia.

Q: What is ��regular-way�� and ��ex-distribution�� trading relating to Leucadia��s Common Shares?

A: Beginning shortly before the record date and continuing up to and through the distribution date, it is expected that common
shares of Leucadia will trade on the �regular-way� market. Common shares of Leucadia that trade in the �regular-way�
market will trade with an entitlement to shares of Crimson Common Stock distributed pursuant to the distribution. In addition,
it is expected that �ex-distribution� trading for Leucadia common shares will commence the first business day after the
distribution date. Leucadia common shares that trade on the �ex-distribution� market will trade without an entitlement to our
Common Stock distributed pursuant to the distribution. Shares that trade in the �ex-distribution� market will trade without an
entitlement to shares of Crimson Common Stock distributed pursuant to the distribution.

Q: Where will Crimson Common Stock be traded or quoted?

A: We expect that our Common Stock will be quoted on OTC Link under the symbol � .� Prior to the distribution, there has
been no public market for Crimson�s Common Stock, and there is no guarantee that an active trading market will develop.
Crimson�s Common Stock will not be listed on any securities exchange. We cannot predict the trading prices of our Common
Stock before, on or after the distribution date. See �Risk Factors�Risks Relating to Our Common Stock Generally.�

Q: What will happen to the listing of common shares of Leucadia?

A: Common shares of Leucadia will continue to be listed and trade on the NYSE after the distribution.
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Q: Will the number of common shares of Leucadia that I own change as a result of the distribution?

A: No. The number of common shares of Leucadia that you own will not change as a result of the distribution.

Q: What will the relationship between Crimson and Leucadia be after the distribution?

A: Leucadia will provide certain administrative services to Crimson. See �The Distribution�Our Relationship with Leucadia
following the Distribution.�

Q: Who will manage Crimson after the separation?

A: Crimson benefits from having in place a management team with an extensive background in the winery business. This
management team, led by Erle Martin, who will be Crimson�s President and Chief Executive Officer after the separation, is
expected to continue to manage Crimson upon the separation. For more information regarding Crimson�s management, see
�Management.�

Q. Are there any risks associated with owning Crimson Common Stock?

A: We will face both general and specific risks and uncertainties relating to our business and our separation from Leucadia
and our being an independent, publicly-traded company following the distribution. You should read carefully the section
entitled �Risk Factors� beginning on page 6.

Q: Does Crimson plan to pay dividends?

A: Crimson does not have a regular dividend policy and whether or not to pay dividends will be determined each year by the
board of directors. As a result, your return on your investment in our Common Stock will be determined by increases and
decreases in the market price of its Common Stock if you decide to sell or otherwise monetize your Crimson shares. See
�Dividend Policy.�

Q: Will Crimson incur any debt prior to or at the time of the distribution?

A: Crimson is seeking to enter into a revolving credit facility in an aggregate amount available of $60 million (the
�Revolving Credit Facility�) for working capital and other general corporate purposes following the separation. The funding
under this facility will be subject to several conditions, which, along with a summary of covenants, events of default and other
material terms, are described in more detail under �Description of Indebtedness.� There is no guarantee that Crimson will
enter into the Revolving Credit Facility on favorable terms or at all.

Q: Who can I contact for information regarding the distribution?

A: You should direct inquiries relating to the distribution to:

315 Park Avenue South
New York, New York 10010
Tel: 212-460-1900
Attention: Investor Relations

After the distribution, the transfer agent and registrar for our Common Stock will be:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11219
Phone: 1-866-627-2643 Website: www.amstock.com/main
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RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a number of risks. You should carefully consider the following risk factors, together with all of
the other information included in this information statement. If any of the following risks occur, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of our Common
Stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to our Business

Current economic conditions have adversely affected our sales and profitability. A worsening of current economic
conditions could cause a decline in estimated future cash flows, potentially resulting in impairment charges for long-lived
assets.

Since 2008, economic conditions have resulted in reduced demand and lower revenues for certain of our products,
resulting in lower operating cash flows. As required, we have reviewed our long-lived assets for potential impairment and
have recorded adjustments to the book value of long-lived assets as appropriate. If operating revenues deteriorate in the future,
and/or we lower our estimates of future cash flows, significant impairment charges might have to be recorded.

We are dependent on certain key personnel.

Our success depends to some degree upon the continued service of Erle Martin, our President and Chief Executive
Officer, and Patrick DeLong, our Chief Financial & Operating Officer, and our winemakers at our various facilities. The loss
of the services of one or more of our key employees could harm our business and our reputation and negatively impact our
profitability, particularly if one or more of our key employees resigns to join a competitor or to form a competing company.

We could experience significant increases in operating costs and reduced profitability due to competition for skilled
management and staff employees.

We compete with other entities for skilled management and staff employees, including entities that operate in different
market sectors than us. Costs to recruit and retain adequate personnel could adversely affect results of operations.

Various diseases, pests and certain weather conditions could affect quality and quantity of grapes.

Various diseases, pests, fungi, viruses, drought, frosts and certain other weather conditions could affect the quality and
quantity of grapes, decreasing the supply of our products and negatively impacting our operating results. Future government
restrictions regarding the use of certain materials used in grape growing may increase vineyard costs and/or reduce production.
We cannot guarantee that our grape suppliers will succeed in preventing disease in their existing vineyards or that we will
succeed in preventing disease in our existing vineyards or future vineyards we may acquire. For instance, Pierce�s disease is a
vine bacterial disease which kills grapevines and there is no known cure. Small insects called sharpshooters spread this
disease. A new strain of the sharpshooter was discovered in Southern California and is believed to be migrating north. If our
vineyards become contaminated with this or other diseases, operating results would decline, perhaps significantly.

We may not be able to grow or acquire enough quality fruit for our wines.

While we believe that we can secure sufficient supplies of grapes from a combination of our own production and from
grape supply contracts with independent growers, we cannot be certain that grape supply shortages will not occur. Grape
supply shortages resulting from a poor harvest can be caused by a variety of factors outside our control, resulting in reduced
product that is available for sale. If revenues decline as a result of inadequate grape supplies, cash flows and profitability
would also decline.
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We face significant competition which could adversely affect our profitability.

The wine industry is intensely competitive and highly fragmented. Our wines compete in several wine market segments
with many other domestic and foreign wines. Our wines also compete with popular priced generic wines and with other
alcoholic and, to a lesser degree, non-alcoholic beverages. A result of this intense competition has been and may continue to
be upward pressure on our selling and promotional expenses. Many of our competitors have greater financial, technical,
marketing and public relations resources than we do. There can be no assurance that in the future we will be able to
successfully compete with our competitors or that we will not face greater competition from other wineries and beverage
manufacturers.

We compete for shelf space in retail stores and for marketing focus by our independent distributors, most of whom carry
extensive product portfolios.

Nationwide we sell our products primarily through independent distributors and brokers for resale to retail outlets,
restaurants, hotels and private clubs across the U.S. and in some overseas markets. Sales to distributors are expected to
continue to represent a substantial portion of our net revenues in the future. A change in our relationship with any of our
significant distributors could harm our business and reduce our sales. The laws and regulations of several states prohibit
changes of distributors, except under certain limited circumstances, making it difficult to terminate a distributor for poor
performance without reasonable cause, as defined by applicable statutes. Any difficulty or inability to replace distributors,
poor performance of our major distributors or our inability to collect accounts receivable from our major distributors could
harm our business. There can be no assurance that the distributors and retailers we use will continue to purchase our products
or provide our products with adequate levels of promotional support. Consolidation at the retail tier, among club and chain
grocery stores in particular, can be expected to heighten competitive pressure to increase marketing and sales spending or
constrain or reduce prices.

Contamination of our wines would harm our business.

We are subject to certain hazards and product liability risks, such as potential contamination, through tampering or
otherwise, of ingredients or products. Contamination of any of our wines could cause us to destroy our wine held in inventory
and could cause the need for a product recall, which could significantly damage our reputation for product quality. We
maintain insurance against certain of these kinds of risks, and others, under various insurance policies. However, our insurance
may not be adequate or may not continue to be available at a price or on terms that are satisfactory to us and this insurance
may not be adequate to cover any resulting liability.

A reduction in consumer demand for wines could harm our business.

There have been periods in the past in which there were substantial declines in the overall per capita consumption of wine
products in our markets. A limited or general decline in consumption in one or more of our product categories could occur in
the future due to a variety of factors, including: a general decline in economic conditions; changes in consumer spending
habits; increased concern about the health consequences of consuming alcoholic beverage products and about drinking and
driving; a trend toward a healthier diet including lighter, lower calorie beverages such as diet soft drinks, juices and water
products; the increased activity of anti-alcohol consumer groups; and increased federal, state or foreign excise and other taxes
on alcoholic beverage products. Reductions in demand and revenues would reduce profitability and cash flows.

A decrease in wine score ratings by important rating organizations could have a negative impact on our ability to create
greater demand and pricing.

Many of Crimson�s brands are issued ratings or scores by local and national wine rating organizations, and higher scores
usually translate into greater demand and higher pricing. Although some of Crimson�s brands have been highly rated in the
past, and Crimson believes its farming and
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winemaking activities are of a quality to generate good ratings in the future, Crimson has no control over ratings issued by
third parties which may not be favorable in the future.

Climate change, or legal, regulatory or market measures to address climate change, may negatively affect our business,
operations or financial performance, and water scarcity or poor quality could negatively impact our production costs and
capacity.

Our business depends upon agricultural activity and natural resources, including the availability of water. There has been
much public discussion related to concerns that carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases in the atmosphere may have an
adverse impact on global temperatures, weather patterns and the frequency and severity of extreme weather and natural
disasters. Severe weather events and climate change may negatively affect agricultural productivity in our vineyards. The
quality and quantity of water available for use is important to the supply of grapes and our ability to operate our business.
Adverse weather, measures enacted to address climate change, and other environmental factors beyond our control could
reduce our grape production and adversely impact our cash flows and profitability.

Environmental issues or hazardous substances on our properties could result in us incurring significant liabilities.

We are subject to environmental regulations with respect to our operations, including those related to wastewater, air
emissions, and hazardous materials use, storage and disposal. In addition, we own substantial amounts of real property that are
critical to our business. If hazardous substances are discovered on any of our properties and the concentrations are such that
the presence of such hazardous substances presents an unreasonable risk of harm to public health or the environment, we may
be held strictly liable for the cost of investigation and remediation of hazardous substances. The cost of environmental
remediation could be significant and adversely impact our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our indebtedness could have a material adverse effect on our financial health.

We are negotiating the Revolving Credit Facility with a bank group that will be secured by substantially all of our assets.
We plan to rely upon the Revolving Credit Facility for working capital funding and in the future may use it for acquisitions. It
is expected that the credit agreement governing the Revolving Credit Facility will include covenants that require the
maintenance of specified debt and equity ratios, limit the incurrence of additional indebtedness, limit dividends and other
distributions to shareholders and limit certain mergers, consolidations and sales of assets. If we were to be unable to comply
with these covenants, outstanding amounts could become immediately due and/or there could be a substantial increase in the
rate of borrowing. In addition, there is no guarantee that we will enter into the Revolving Credit Facility on favorable terms or
at all. If we do not enter into the Revolving Credit Facility, there could be a negative impact on our ability to finance
acquisitions and working capital requirements in the future.

Changes in domestic laws and government regulations or in the implementation and/or enforcement of government rules
and regulations may increase our costs or restrict our ability to sell our products into certain markets.

Government laws and regulations result in increased farming costs, and the sale of wine is subject to taxation in various
state, federal and foreign jurisdictions. The amount of wine that we can sell directly to consumers outside of California is
regulated, and in certain states we are not allowed to sell wines directly to consumers and/or the amount that can be sold is
limited. Changes in these laws and regulations could have an adverse impact on sales and/or increase costs to produce and/or
sell wine. The wine industry is subject to extensive regulation by the Federal Alcohol Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (�TTB�)
and various foreign agencies, state liquor authorities, such as the California Alcoholic Beverage Control (�CABC�), and local
authorities. These regulations and laws dictate such matters as licensing requirements, trade and pricing practices, permitted
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distribution channels, permitted and required labeling, and advertising and relations with wholesalers and retailers. Any
expansion of our existing facilities or development of new vineyards or wineries may be limited by present and future zoning
ordinances, environmental restrictions and other legal requirements. In addition, new regulations or requirements or increases
in excise taxes, income taxes, property and sales taxes or international tariffs, could affect our financial condition or results of
operations. Recently, many states have considered proposals to increase, and some of these states have increased, state alcohol
excise taxes. New or revised regulations or increased licensing fees, requirements or taxes could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

We may not be able to insure certain risks economically.

We may experience economic harm if any damage to our properties is not covered by insurance. We cannot be certain that
we will be able to insure against all risks that we desire to insure economically or that all of our insurers will be financially
viable if we make a claim.

We may be subject to litigation, for which we may be unable to accurately assess our level of exposure and which if
adversely determined, may have a significant adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of
operations.

Although our current assessment is that there is no pending litigation that could reasonably be expected to have a
significant adverse impact, if our assessment proves to be in error, then the outcome of litigation could have a significant
impact on our financial condition or results of operations or cash flows.

The payment of dividends in the future is subject to the discretion of our board of directors.

We do not have a regular dividend policy and whether or not to pay any dividends will be determined each year by our
board of directors.

If our intangible assets or goodwill become impaired, we may be required to record significant charges to earnings.

We have substantial intangible assets and goodwill on our balance sheet as a result of acquisitions we have completed, in
particular the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards. We review intangible assets and goodwill for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that these assets might be impaired.

Application of impairment tests requires judgment. A significant deterioration in a key estimate or assumption or a less
significant deterioration to a combination of assumptions or the sale of a part of a reporting unit could result in an impairment
charge in the future, which could have a significant adverse impact on our reported earnings.

Risks Related to the Separation

After the separation, we will initially rely on Leucadia to meet certain financial reporting requirements of a public
company, and should Leucadia cease to provide these functions we would have to build our own capability to meet these
requirements.

In connection with our separation from Leucadia and the distribution of our Common Stock, we will become subject to
the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the �Exchange Act�) and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and will
be required to prepare and file our financial statements according to the rules and regulations required by the SEC.
Historically, we have prepared our own financial and tax information and provided it to Leucadia so that Leucadia could meet
its SEC and tax filing requirements, but do not currently have the ability to meet these reporting requirements on our own.
Compliance with these rules may be costly, and failure to prepare and disclose required information or otherwise comply with
applicable law could subject us
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to penalties under federal securities laws, expose us to lawsuits and restrict our ability to access financing.

We will rely on Leucadia for these and other services pursuant to the administrative services agreement that we expect to
enter into with Leucadia. The administrative services agreement will have an initial term of one year, an evergreen renewal for
subsequent annual periods and will be terminable by either party on six months prior notice. See �The Distribution�Our
Relationship with Leucadia Following the Distribution.� If Leucadia becomes unwilling or unable to provide these services in
the future, we will have to establish these functions in-house to ensure we meet the reporting requirements of a stand-alone
public company.

The agreements related to the separation that we expect to enter into with Leucadia involve conflicts of interest.

Because the distribution involves the separation of certain of Leucadia�s existing businesses into an independent
company, we expect to enter into certain agreements with Leucadia to provide a framework for our relationship with Leucadia
following the distribution. See �The Distribution�Our Relationship with Leucadia following the Distribution.� The terms of
the distribution agreed to in the separation agreement, the administrative services agreement and the tax matters agreement
between us and Leucadia were determined by persons who were at the time employees, officers or directors of Leucadia or its
subsidiaries and, accordingly, had a conflict of interest.

After our separation from Leucadia, we may experience increased costs as a stand-alone company.

After the distribution, the Company may incur certain new and incremental costs as a stand-alone public company
including director fees and expenses for its new board of directors, stand-alone Delaware franchise tax, increased legal and
accounting fees for reviews of the Company�s publicly filed financial statements, proxy and other filings and other services.
The Company will enter into an Administrative Services Agreement with Leucadia whereby Leucadia or its subsidiaries will
provide services principally related to the Company�s public filings and financial analysis. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires
that we, among other things, establish and maintain effective internal controls and procedures for financial reporting and
disclosure purposes. Establishing and monitoring these controls could result in additional costs to us and require us to divert
important resources, including management time, from other activities. Increased costs that we incur as a stand-alone public
company will reduce our profitability.

Our historical and pro forma financial information is not necessarily representative of the results we would have achieved
as a stand-alone company and may not be a reliable indicator of our future results.

The historical and pro forma financial information included herein does not necessarily reflect the financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows we would have achieved as a stand-alone company during the periods presented or those
we will achieve in the future.

The distribution could result in significant tax liability to Leucadia shareholders.

The distribution is conditioned on the receipt by Leucadia of an opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP to the effect that
the distribution will be treated as a tax-free reorganization and will not result in the recognition, for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, of gain or loss to Leucadia or its shareholders, except to the extent of cash that they receive in lieu of fractional
shares. The opinion will rely on certain facts, assumptions, representations and undertakings from Leucadia and us regarding
the past and future conduct of the companies� respective businesses and other matters. If any of these facts, assumptions,
representations or undertakings are incorrect or not otherwise satisfied, it would jeopardize the conclusions reached by counsel
in its opinion. In addition, notwithstanding the opinion of counsel, the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the �IRS�) could
determine on audit that the distribution is taxable if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions, representations or
undertakings are not correct or have been violated or if it disagrees
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with the conclusions in the opinion. If the distribution is determined to be taxable for U.S. federal income tax purposes,
Leucadia shareholders could incur significant U.S. federal income tax liabilities. For more detail, see �Material United States
Federal Income Tax Consequences.�

We may not be able to engage in certain corporate transactions after the distribution.

Under the tax matters agreement that we will enter into with Leucadia, we will covenant not to take actions that would
jeopardize the tax-free nature of the distribution. Additionally, we will be required to indemnify Leucadia and its affiliates
against all tax-related liabilities caused by the failure of the distribution to qualify for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal
income tax purposes (including as a result of events subsequent to the distribution that caused Leucadia to recognize gain
under Section 355(e) of the Code) to the extent these liabilities arise as a result of actions taken by us or our affiliates (other
than Leucadia) or as a result of changes in ownership of our Common Stock. If the distribution is taxable to Leucadia,
Leucadia would recognize gain, if any, equal to the difference between Leucadia�s tax basis in our Common Stock distributed
in the distribution and the fair market value of our Common Stock. Leucadia does not expect that there would be significant
gain, if any, recognized on the distribution even if it were found to be taxable. This covenant (and, to some extent, this
indemnification obligation) may limit our ability to pursue certain strategic transactions, including being acquired in a
transaction for cash consideration or from engaging in certain tax-free combinations in which our shareholders do not
ultimately possess a majority ownership interest in the combined entity. For more information, see the section entitled �The
Distribution�Tax Matters Agreement.�

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock Generally

Our Common Stock will not be listed on any securities exchange.

We expect that prices for our Common Stock will be quoted on OTC Link. Securities whose prices are quoted on OTC
Link do not have the same liquidity as securities that trade on a recognized market or securities exchange. As a result,
stockholders may find it more difficult to dispose of or obtain accurate quotations as to the market value of the securities.

There may be a limited public market for our Common Stock, and/or our stock price may experience volatility.

An active trading market for our Common Stock may not develop as a result of the distribution or be sustained in the
future. Alternatively, the market price of our Common Stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of
our Common Stock in the market after the distribution or the perception that these sales could occur. In addition, the stock
market has from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated to the
operating performance of particular companies. Changes in earnings estimates by analysts, if any, and economic and other
external factors may have a significant effect on the market price of our Common Stock. Fluctuations or decreases in the
trading price of our Common Stock may adversely affect the liquidity of the trading market for our Common Stock.

Future sales of our shares could depress the market price of our Common Stock.

The market price of our Common Stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our Common
Stock in the market after the distribution or the perception that these sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility that these
sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we
deem appropriate. Upon completion of the distribution, approximately 24.5 million shares of our Common Stock will be
outstanding. By virtue of the registration statement of which this information statement is a part, all such shares will be freely
tradable without restriction under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�) except for any such
shares held at any time by any of our �affiliates,� as such term is defined under Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities
Act. See �Description of Capital Stock�Shares Eligible for Future Sale.� Any disposition by any of our
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substantial shareholders of our Common Stock in the public market, or the perception that such dispositions could occur,
could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our Common Stock.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the �Dodd-Frank Act�), are
creating uncertainty for companies such as ours. We are committed to maintaining appropriate corporate governance and
public disclosure. As a result, we may see an increase in general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management
time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities, which could harm our business prospects.

We are an ��emerging growth company�� and we cannot be certain if we will be able to maintain such status or if the
reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth companies will make our Common Stock less attractive to
investors.

We are an �emerging growth company,� as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the �JOBS Act�) and we
intend to take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public
companies that are not emerging growth companies, including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the
auditor attestation requirements of Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirement of holding a
nonbinding stockholder advisory vote on executive compensation, frequency of approval of executive compensation and any
golden parachute payments not previously approved. We will retain emerging growth company status until the earliest of: (1)
the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date we first sold securities pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act; (2) the last day of the fiscal year in which we first had total annual gross
revenues of $1 billion or more (indexed pursuant to the JOBS Act); (3) the date on which we are deemed to be a �large
accelerated filer� as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2 (i.e., an SEC registered company with a public float of at least $700
million that satisfies other tests); or (4) the date on which we have, within the previous three years, issued more than $1 billion
of nonconvertible debt. Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting
standards until such time as those standards apply to private companies. However, we are irrevocably electing not to avail
ourselves of this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards and, therefore, we will be
subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as other public companies that are not emerging growth companies.

Additionally, we cannot predict if investors will find our Common Stock less attractive because we may rely on these
exemptions. If some investors find our Common Stock less attractive as a result of our reduced disclosures, there may be less
active trading in our Common Stock (assuming a market ever develops) and our stock price may be more volatile.

Significant influence over our affairs may be exercised by our principal stockholders.

After the distribution, our significant stockholders will be our Chairman, Ian M. Cumming (approximately 8.7%
beneficial ownership, including ownership by certain family members, but excluding Mr. Cumming�s charitable foundation)
and one of our directors, Joseph S. Steinberg (approximately 9.7% beneficial ownership, including ownership by trusts for the
benefit of his respective family members, but excluding Mr. Steinberg�s private charitable foundation). Accordingly, Messrs.
Cumming and Steinberg could exert significant influence over all matters requiring approval by our stockholders, including
the election or removal of directors and the approval of mergers or other business combination transactions.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This information statement contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-
looking statements give our current expectations relating to our financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives,
future performance and business. You can identify forward- looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to
current or historical facts. These statements may include words such as �anticipate,� �estimate,� �expect,� �project,�
�forecast,� �plan,� �intend,� �believe,� �may,� �should,� �would,� �could,� �likely,� and other words of similar expression.

Forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon. They give our expectations about the future and are not
guarantees. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual
results, performance and achievements to materially differ from any future results, performance and achievements expressed
or implied by such forward-looking statements. We caution you, therefore, not to rely on these forward-looking statements.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements include:

� worsening economic conditions causing a decline in estimated future cash flows;

� our dependence on certain key personnel;

�
significant increases in operating costs and reduced profitability due to competition for skilled management and staff
employees;

� various diseases, pests and weather conditions affecting the quality and quantity of grapes;

� our inability to grow or acquire enough quality fruit for our wines;

� significant competition adversely affecting our profitability;

� competition for shelf space in retail stores and for marketing focus by our independent distributors;

� the contamination of our wine;

� a reduction in consumer demand for our wines;

� a decrease in wine score ratings by important rating organizations;

�
climate change, or legal, regulatory or market measures to address climate change, negatively affecting our business,
operations or financial performance, and water scarcity or poor quality negatively impacting our production costs and
capacity;

� environmental issues or hazardous substances on our properties resulting in us incurring significant liabilities;

� our indebtedness materially affecting our financial health;

� the failure to enter into the Revolving Credit Facility on favorable terms or at all;

�
changes in laws and government regulations or in the implementation and/or enforcement of government rules and
regulations increasing our costs or restricting our ability to sell our products into certain markets;

� our inability to insure certain risks economically;

�
being subject to litigation which may have a significant adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results
of operations;

� not paying dividends currently or in the future;

�
our inability to establish our own financial, administrative and other support functions to operate as a stand-alone public
company; and

� the other risks described in �Risk Factors.�
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These forward-looking statements present our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this information statement.
Except as may be required by law, we undertake no obligation to modify or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances occurring after the date of this information statement.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our actual and as adjusted capitalization as of September 30, 2012. Prior to the distribution,
Leucadia will cause the �due to Leucadia and its affiliates� balance to be contributed to capital. After the distribution,
Leucadia will make a cash capital contribution estimated to be approximately $13,000,000. The as adjusted capitalization
reflects these contributions.

The information below is not necessarily indicative of what our capitalization would have been had the separation,
distribution and related financing transactions been completed as of September 30, 2012. This table should be read in
conjunction with �Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data,� �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,� and our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and notes included
elsewhere in this information statement.

As of September 30, 2012

Actual As
Adjusted(1)

(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $8,329 $21,329
Debt, including current and long-term:

Due to Leucadia and its affiliates $151,874 $0
Total equity 26,405 191,279

Total capitalization $178,279 $191,279

(1)

Does not include $60 million of availability that we are seeking to obtain under the Revolving Credit Facility at the time of
distribution. See �Description of Indebtedness.� There is no guarantee that we will enter into the Revolving Credit Facility
on favorable terms or at all.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We do not have a regular dividend policy and whether or not to pay dividends will be determined each year by our board
of directors. As a result, your return on your investment in our Common Stock will be determined by increases and decreases
in the market price of our Common Stock if you decide to sell or otherwise monetize your Crimson shares. As discussed
below under �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Liquidity and
Capital Resources,� Crimson is currently negotiating a Revolving Credit Facility with a bank group. If Crimson is successful
in obtaining the Revolving Credit Facility, it will be subject to covenants that include limitations on dividends and other
distributions to shareholders.
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BUSINESS

Overview

Crimson is a Delaware company whose business has been operating since 1991. As used herein, the term, �Company�
refers to Crimson and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, except as the context may otherwise require. Prior to the distribution,
Crimson is a subsidiary of Leucadia National Corporation (�Leucadia�).

Crimson operates in one segment, the production and sale of premium, ultra premium and luxury wines (i.e., wines that
retail for $10 to $14, $14 to $25 and over $25 per 750ml bottle, respectively). Crimson is headquartered in Napa, California
and through its subsidiaries owns four wineries: Pine Ridge Vineyards, Archery Summit, Chamisal Vineyards and Seghesio
Family Vineyards. Pine Ridge Vineyards was acquired in 1991 and has been conducting operations since 1978, Crimson
started Archery Summit in 1993, Chamisal Vineyards was acquired in 2008 and has been conducting operations since 1973,
and Seghesio Family Vineyards was acquired in 2011 and has been conducting operations since 1895. Additionally, in 2005
and 2006 Crimson acquired Double Canyon Vineyards, an aggregate of 611 acres of land in the Horse Heaven Hills of
Washington�s Columbia Valley. References to cases of wine herein refer to nine-liter equivalent cases.

Pine Ridge Vineyards

Pine Ridge Vineyards owns 168 acres and controls through leasing arrangements an additional 20 acres of estate
vineyards in five Napa Valley appellations�Stags Leap District, Rutherford, Oakville, Carneros and Howell Mountain.
Approximately 173 acres are currently planted and producing grapes. The winery and production facilities at Pine Ridge
Vineyards have a permitted annual wine production capacity of up to 300,000 gallons, which equates to approximately
126,000 cases of wine; however, current fermentation and processing capacity is limited to approximately 80,000 cases. The
facility includes areas and equipment for traditional crush, fermentation, aging and bottling processes, and also has a tasting
room, hospitality center and administrative offices. Built into the hillside for wine barrel storage are approximately 34,000
square feet of underground caves with a capacity to store over 4,000 barrels. In addition, there are special event dining areas
both indoors and outdoors as well as in the underground caves.

The Pine Ridge Vineyards estate business is focused primarily on the production of high quality Cabernet Sauvignon and
bordeaux-style blends sold by Crimson under the Pine Ridge Vineyards brand name. Pine Ridge Vineyards also produces
Chenin Blanc + Viogner, a wine made from purchased grapes and processed at a third party custom winemaking facility,
which is sold by Crimson under the Pine Ridge Vineyards brand name.

Archery Summit

Archery Summit owns 100 acres and controls through leasing arrangements an additional 20 acres of estate vineyards in
the Willamette Valley, Oregon. Approximately 100 acres are currently planted and producing grapes. The winery and
production facilities at Archery Summit have a permitted annual wine production capacity of up to 50,000 gallons, which
equates to approximately 21,000 cases of wine; however, current fermentation and processing capacity is limited to
approximately 15,000 cases. The facility includes areas and equipment for gravity flow of wine with quality oriented crush,
fermentation, aging and bottling processes, and also has a tasting room, hospitality center and administrative offices. The
facility has approximately 8,300 square feet of underground caves for wine barrel storage with a capacity to store over 600
barrels. In addition, there are special event dining areas indoors as well as in the underground caves.

Archery Summit is focused primarily on producing estate grown, expressive single vineyard Pinot Noir from tightly
spaced vines sold by Crimson under the Archery Summit brand name.
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Chamisal Vineyards

Chamisal Vineyards owns 97 acres of vineyards in the Edna Valley, California, of which 74 acres are currently planted
and producing grapes. The Chamisal Vineyard was the first vineyard planted in the Edna Valley in 1973. The winery and
production facilities at Chamisal have a permitted annual wine production capacity of up to 100,000 gallons which equates to
42,000 cases of wine and expects to complete a project in 2013 that will increase permitted capacity to 238,000 gallons which
equates to approximately 100,000 cases of wine. The facility includes areas and equipment for quality oriented modern crush,
fermentation, aging and bottling processes, as well as a tasting room, hospitality center and administrative offices. There are
special event dining areas outdoors.

Chamisal is focused on producing estate grown, expressive single vineyard Chardonnay and Pinot Noir as well as a
Stainless Chardonnay produced from both purchased and estate grown grapes. The wines are sold by Crimson under the
Chamisal Vineyards brand name.

Seghesio Family Vineyards

Seghesio Family Vineyards owns 299 acres of estate vineyards in two Sonoma County, California appellations, the
Alexander Valley and the Russian River Valley, of which approximately 267 acres are planted and producing grapes. Seghesio
Family Vineyards has a long history of growing and producing Zinfandel and Italian varietal wines in the Sonoma region of
California. The winery and production facilities at Seghesio Family Vineyards have a permitted annual wine production
capacity of up to 404,000 gallons which equates to approximately 170,000 cases of wine; however, current fermentation and
processing capacity is limited to approximately 120,000 cases. Crimson expects to complete a project in 2013 that will
increase fermentation and processing capacity to 170,000 cases. The facility includes areas and equipment for traditional
crush, fermentation, aging, bottling and warehousing processes, as well as a tasting room, private hospitality areas and
administrative offices. There are indoor and outdoor special event dining areas. In Alexander Valley, Seghesio Family
Vineyards also owns a historic non-operating winery, mansion and train station, which Crimson intends to convert into
educational, tasting, hospitality and potentially incremental production facilities.

Seghesio Family Vineyards is focused on producing estate grown Zinfandel and Italian varietal wines as well as a
Sonoma County Zinfandel produced from both purchased and estate grown grapes. The wines are sold by Crimson under the
Seghesio Family Vineyards brand name.

Double Canyon Vineyards

Double Canyon Vineyards owns 462 acres of vineyards in the Horse Heaven Hills, Washington, of which 87 acres are
currently planted and producing grapes. Crimson continues to evaluate the best use of the remaining acres; currently most are
leased to a farming company for growing vegetables. Currently, Double Canyon Vineyards sells the majority of its grapes to
third parties and does not have any wine production facilities. Starting with the 2010 vintage, Double Canyon Vineyards
produced and bottled, at an offsite custom crush winery, the first wine under the Double Canyon Vineyards brand name which
was released in the Fall of 2012.

Competition

The premium, ultra premium and luxury market segments of the wine industry are intensely competitive. Crimson�s
wines compete domestically and internationally, and premium or higher quality wines are produced in Europe, South America,
South Africa, Australia and New Zealand, as well as in the United States. Crimson competes on the basis of quality, price,
brand recognition and distribution capability, and the ultimate consumer has many choices of products from both domestic and
international producers. A result of the intense competition has been and may continue to be upward pressure on Crimson�s
selling and promotional expenses. In addition, due to competitive factors, Crimson may not be able to increase the prices of its
wines to keep pace with grape, winemaking, selling and promotional costs. Many of Crimson�s competitors are significantly
larger
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with greater financial, production, distribution and marketing resources. Wine production in the U.S. is dominated by three
large California wineries that represent over 60% of the domestic U.S. case sales volume. Further, Crimson�s wines may be
considered to compete with all alcoholic and nonalcoholic beverages.

Demand for wine in the premium, ultra premium and luxury market segments can rise and fall with general economic
conditions, and is also significantly affected by grape supply. Based on industry wide volume increases in this wine category,
Crimson believes more people are drinking wine than in the past; however, in the current economic climate, consumer demand
has shifted away from the higher priced luxury segment to wines in the lower priced premium and ultra premium categories.
Currently, the fastest growing segment in the domestic wine market is for wines priced in the $14 to $25 retail price range.
Crimson has adjusted its strategy to address lower consumer spending levels, and has been successful in selling its wine at
price points in the fast growing $14 to $25 price range. However, if conditions worsen and Crimson is forced to reduce prices
further, it may not be able to do so profitably.

Sales and Marketing

During the past few years Crimson has focused on brand development and distribution to increase revenues and
profitability, which has included acquisitions of vineyards and wineries and the development of new brands with existing
assets.

Crimson�s sales and marketing team coordinates the sales and distribution of its various brands, is responsible for
maintaining domestic and export distributor relationships and oversees the timing and allocation of new releases. The sales
team has employees in certain key markets in the U.S. and internationally as well as brokers in certain markets. Its wines are
available through many principal retail channels for premium table wines, including fine wine restaurants, hotels, specialty
shops, supermarkets and club stores, in all states domestically and in over 40 countries throughout the world.

Generally, Crimson will enter into agreements with brokers for those markets where it would not be cost effective to have
an employee, or if the products are being sold to a customer who usually purchases products from brokers. Crimson may also
use brokers if they represent the best distribution channel after considering local regulatory requirements. On an on-going
basis the Company continues to evaluate the use of brokers in its various markets; during 2011, brokers were used by Crimson
in 10 states in the U.S. and in certain export markets. Revenues generated through broker relationships represented
approximately 9% of wine revenues during 2011. Agreements with brokers are generally terminable by either party upon
notice.

Crimson�s wines are primarily sold to distributors, who then sell to retailers and restaurants. Domestic sales of Crimson�s
wines are made through more than 70 independent wine and spirits distributors. International sales are made through
independent importers and brokers.

As permitted under federal and local regulations, Crimson has been placing increasing emphasis on direct sales to
consumers, which it is able to do through the Internet, wine clubs, and at the wineries� tasting rooms. During 2011, direct
sales to consumers represented 14% of case sales and 43% of wine revenues. Approximately half of the direct to consumer
sales were through wine clubs, 30% were through the wineries� tasting rooms and the balance from the Internet. Members
typically join our wine clubs after visiting our tasting rooms at our various facilities, or after hearing about our wine clubs
from other members. Our tasting rooms are located in vacation areas that typically attract consumers interested in wine
making and touring the area. Direct sales to consumers are more profitable for Crimson as it is able to sell its products at a
price closer to retail prices rather than the wholesale price received from distributors.

Crimson�s wines are distributed in California, Illinois, Colorado, Oregon, Hawaii, New Mexico, Arizona, Washington
and Nevada by Southern Wine and Spirits. During 2011, sales to Southern Wine and Spirits accounted for 21% of case volume
and 15% of wine sales. Sales for the top ten distributors accounted for 59% of volume and 42% of wine sales. These
distributors also offer premium table wines of other companies that directly compete with Crimson�s products.
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Domestic distributor wine sales are concentrated in certain states, with California accounting for 18% of case volume and
13% of wine sales during 2011. Other major domestic markets include Texas, New Jersey, Florida, Massachusetts, Minnesota
and Illinois where sales represented 33% of case volume and 23% of wine sales during 2011. The acquisition of Seghesio
Family Vineyards significantly increased Crimson�s export sales. Historically, Seghesio�s export sales were 20% of case
volume and 15% of its wine sales and Crimson is currently expanding the export of products from its other wineries through
Seghesio�s international distribution channels.

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, export sales were 8% of case volume and 7% of wine sales as
compared to the nine month period ended September 30, 2011, when exports sales were 2% of case volume and 2% of wine
sales, an increase that reflects the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards in May 2011.

Crimson believes that the quality and locations of its wineries and tasting facilities help to create demand for its brands at
the consumer level which positively impacts sales to distributors as well. Crimson participates in many wine tasting and other
promotional events throughout the country in order to increase awareness and demand for its products. Many of Crimson�s
brands are issued ratings or scores by local and national wine rating organizations, and higher scores will usually translate into
greater demand and higher pricing. Although some of Crimson�s brands have been highly rated in the past, and Crimson
believes its farming and winemaking activities are of a quality to generate good ratings in the future, Crimson has no control
over ratings issued by third parties which may not be favorable in the future.

Grape Supply

Crimson controls approximately 1,166 acres of vineyards in the Napa Valley, Sonoma County and Edna Valley in
California, the Willamette Valley in Oregon and Horse Heaven Hills in Washington; approximately 706 acres of these
vineyards are planted, with the majority of the unplanted acres in Washington. While Crimson does not have any immediate
plans to plant the Washington vineyards, it does expect to continue vineyard development plans for the non-producing
California and Oregon properties. Additionally, on an annual basis, excluding the Washington property, Crimson has typically
had 4% to 6% development of vineyard acreage. Newly planted vines take approximately four to five years to reach maturity
and vineyards can be expected to have a useful life of 25 years before replanting is necessary. Depending on the site, soil and
water conditions and spacing, Crimson�s experience has been that it costs approximately $30,000 to $65,000 per acre over a
three to four year period to develop open land into a producing premium wine grape vineyard, before taking into account the
cost of the land. With over 700 acres of planted estate holdings, Crimson could have annual capital investment requirements of
$800,000 to $1,000,000 to replace existing vineyard sites as their economic useful life expires.

In 2011, approximately 35% of Crimson�s total grape supply came from Crimson controlled vineyards; however,
substantially all of the grape supply for Pine Ridge Vineyards Napa and Archery Summit is from Crimson controlled
vineyards. Crimson purchases the balance of its California supply from approximately 65 independent growers. The grower
contracts range from one-year spot market purchases to intermediate and long term-agreements. No one grower represents
more than 10% of Crimson�s grape supply. The top ten growers represent 38% of Crimson�s total grape supply.

Winemaking and grape growing are subject to a variety of agricultural risks. Various diseases, pests and certain weather
conditions can materially and adversely affect the quality and quantity of grapes available to Crimson thereby materially and
adversely affecting the supply of Crimson�s products and its profitability.
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The table below summarizes Crimson�s wine grape supply and production from the current and prior three harvests:

Harvest Year
2012 2011 2010 2009

Estate Grapes(1):
Producing acres 619 616 339 365
Tons harvested 2,554 1,655 1,039 1,160
Tons per acre 4.1 2.7 3.1 3.2

All grapes and purchased juice (in equivalent tons):
Estate grapes 2,554 1,655 1,039 1,160
Purchased grapes and juice 4,072 3,051 1,250 1,202

6,626 4,706 2,289 2,362
Total cases produced 296,000(2) 257,000 124,000 117,000

(1) Excludes acres and tons produced from Double Canyon Vineyards.

(2) 2012 case production considers scheduled bottling for December 2012.

Cases sold were 212,000, 111,000 and 92,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Cases
sold are disclosed for comparative purposes, but do not necessarily correspond to the vintage year the grapes are grown and
crushed. Depending on the wine, the production cycle to bottled sales is anywhere from one to three years. The large increase
in production in 2012 was due to a much larger crop load in 2012 as well as planned production increases for certain brands.
The large increase in 2011 as compared to 2010 and 2009 was due to the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards.

Winemaking

Crimson�s winemaking philosophy includes both the use of the latest in current industry winemaking advances to
complement making wine in the traditional manner by starting with high quality fruit and handling it as gently and naturally as
possible all the way to the bottle. Each of Crimson�s wineries is equipped with modern crush, fermentation and storage
equipment as well as technology that is focused on producing the highest quality wines for each of the varietals it produces.

Government Regulation

Wine production and sales are subject to extensive regulation by the Federal Trade and Tax Bureau, the California
Department of Alcohol Beverage Control and other state and federal governmental authorities that regulate interstate sales,
licensing, trade and pricing practices, labeling, advertising and other activities. In recent years, federal and state authorities
have required warning labels on beverages containing alcohol. Restrictions or taxes imposed by government authorities on the
sale of wine could increase the retail price of wine, which could have an adverse effect on demand for wine in general. New or
revised regulations or increased licensing fees or excise taxes on wine, if enacted, could reduce demand for wine and have an
adverse effect on Crimson�s business, negatively impacting Crimson�s results of operations and cash flows.

Crimson is subject to a broad range of federal and state regulatory requirements regarding its operations and practices.
Crimson�s operations are subject to regulations governing the storage and use of fertilizers, fungicides, herbicides, pesticides,
fuels, solvents and other chemicals. These regulations are subject to change and conceivably could have a significant impact
on operating practices, chemical usage, and other aspects of Crimson�s business.

Seasonality

There is a degree of seasonality in the growing cycles, procurement and transportation of grapes. The wine industry in
general historically experiences seasonal fluctuations in revenues and
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net income. Typically, Crimson has lower sales and net income during the first quarter and higher sales and net income during
the third and fourth quarters. Crimson expects this trend to continue. Sales can also fluctuate significantly between quarters
depending on the timing of certain holidays and promotional periods, timing of wine club shipments and on the rate at which
distributor inventories are depleted through sales to wine retailers.

Employees

At September 30, 2012, Crimson employed approximately 148 regular, full-time employees. Crimson also employs part-
time and seasonal workers for its vineyard, production and hospitality operations. None of Crimson�s employees are
represented by a collective bargaining unit and Crimson believes that its relationship with its employees is good.

Properties

Crimson�s vineyards and winemaking facilities are described above. Included at the owned Pine Ridge Vineyards
winemaking facility are approximately 9,000 square feet of executive and administrative offices.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, Crimson may be involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. Crimson is not
currently involved in any legal or administrative proceedings individually or together that it believes are likely to have a
significant adverse effect on its business, results of operations or financial condition.

Trademarks

Crimson maintains federal trademark registrations for its brands, proprietary products and certain logos, motifs and
vineyard names. International trademark registrations are also maintained where it is appropriate to do so. Each of the United
States trademark registrations is renewable indefinitely so long as the Company is making a bona fide usage of the trademark.

Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

Our Status as an Emerging Growth Company

We qualify as an �emerging growth company� as defined in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company is defined as a
company with total annual gross revenues of less than $1 billion in its most recently completed fiscal year. An emerging
growth company will retain such status until the earliest of: (1) the last day of the fiscal year of the emerging growth company
following the fifth anniversary of the date it first sold securities pursuant to an effective registration statement under the
Securities Act; (2) the last day of the fiscal year in which the emerging growth company first had total annual gross revenues
of $1 billion or more (indexed pursuant to the JOBS Act); (3) the date on which the emerging growth company is deemed to
be a �large accelerated filer� as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2 (i.e., an SEC registered company with a public float of at
least $700 million that satisfies other tests); or (4) the date on which the emerging growth company has, within the previous
three years, issued more than $1 billion of nonconvertible debt.

Exemptions Available to Us as an Emerging Growth Company

For as long as we remain an emerging growth company as defined in the JOBS Act, we intend to take advantage of
certain exemptions from various reporting requirements, including, but not limited to:
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Financial and Audit Requirements

Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies may: (1) be exempted from compliance with Section 404(b) of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires companies to receive an outside auditor�s report attesting to the effectiveness of the
issuer�s internal control over financial reporting; and (2) be exempted from compliance with certain auditing standards
promulgated by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, unless the SEC determines otherwise.

In addition, we have elected to opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting
standards pursuant to Section 107(b) of the JOBS Act. This election is irrevocable.

Other Public Company Requirements

Emerging growth companies are also exempt from other ongoing obligations of most public companies, such as: (1) the
requirements under Sections 14A(a) and (b) of the Exchange Act to hold stockholder advisory votes on executive
compensation and golden parachute payments; (2) the requirements under Section 14(i) of the Exchange Act and Section
953(b)(1) of the Dodd-Frank Act to disclose executive compensation information on pay-versus-performance and the ratio of
median employee compensation to CEO compensation; and (3) certain other executive compensation disclosure requirements,
such as the compensation discussion and analysis, under Item 402 of Regulation S-K.
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SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data have been summarized from Crimson�s consolidated financial statements and are
qualified in their entirety by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, such consolidated financial statements and
Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The selected historical
consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this information statement. The
selected historical consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2009 have been derived from our unaudited
consolidated financial statements which are not contained in this information statement. The selected historical consolidated
financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 have been derived from our unaudited consolidated
financial statements which are not contained in this information statement. The selected historical consolidated financial data
as of September 30, 2012 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 have been derived from our unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements contained elsewhere in this information statement. Subsidiaries and operations are
reflected in the consolidated results from the date of acquisition, which was May 31, 2011 for Seghesio Family Vineyards and
August 29, 2008 for Chamisal Vineyards.

Nine Months Ended
September 30, Year Ended December 31,

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
2012 2011 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

SELECTED INCOME STATEMENT
DATA:
Revenues $34,270 $25,426 $39,306 $23,762 $21,700 $22,803 $21,129
Gross profit 17,796 11,718 15,861 9,144 5,115 11,265 10,013
Income (loss) from operations 4,486 1,006 (123 ) (812 ) (4,177 ) 911 1,860
Net income (loss) 783 (2,010 ) (4,310 ) (4,318 ) (7,260 ) (4,383 ) (5,728 )
Net income (loss) per share(a) 783 (2,010 ) (4,310 ) (4,318 ) (7,260 ) (4,383 ) (5,728 )

At
September 30, At December 31,

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

SELECTED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Current assets $ 55,766 $49,922 $30,724 $30,502 $32,984 $26,948
Property and equipment 108,485 110,783 64,263 66,924 69,341 51,524
Goodwill and intangible assets 21,456 22,593 177 187 197 �

Total assets 185,707 183,298 95,164 97,613 102,682 78,632
Due to Leucadia and its affiliates 151,874 151,441 103,421 101,660 98,482 96,881
Long-term debt, including current

maturities
� � 66 224 371 171

Equity (deficit) 26,405 25,622 (11,224 ) (6,906 ) 354 (20,887)

(a)
There were 1,000 common shares outstanding at all times and there were no dilutive or complex equity instruments or
securities outstanding at any time during the periods presented.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Data

The unaudited pro forma financial data presented below have been adjusted to reflect the contribution to capital of the due
to Leucadia and its affiliates balance which will be made prior to the distribution, and the cash capital contribution estimated
to be approximately $13,000,000 which will be made after the distribution. In addition, the unaudited pro forma financial data
for the year ended December 31, 2011 has been adjusted to reflect the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards as if it had
occurred on January 1, 2011. See Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements of Crimson beginning on page F-36.

The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial data should be read in conjunction with Crimson�s historical
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and the historical combined financial statements and notes thereto of
Seghesio Family Vineyards, both included herein. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are presented for
informational purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of actual results had the foregoing transactions occurred as
described above, nor does it purport to represent results of future operations. In particular, after the distribution, Crimson may
incur certain new and incremental costs as a stand-alone public company that it did not incur as a subsidiary of Leucadia.
Crimson estimates that these costs could be approximately $900,000 per year. For more information, see note 3 of Crimson�s
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included herein.

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012

Year Ended
December 31, 2011

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA:

Shares outstanding(a) 24,458 24,458
Net income(b) $ 4,534 $ 3,061
Net income per share(c) 0.19 0.13
Equity(d) 191,279 190,063
Book value per share(e) 7.82 7.77

(a) Pro forma outstanding shares reflect the distribution ratio of one share issued for every 10 Leucadia shares outstanding.

(b)

Pro forma net income reflects the elimination of interest expense to Leucadia and its affiliates of $3,886,000 and
$4,494,000 for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 and year ended December 31, 2011, respectively, as a
result of the planned contribution to capital of the due to Leucadia and its affiliates balance prior to the distribution. Pro
forma net income reflects additional expenses for the administrative services agreement to be entered into with Leucadia,
estimated to be $135,000 and $180,000 for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended
December 31, 2011, respectively, as if that agreement had been in effect during the periods presented. No additional tax
provision has been included in calculating pro forma net income due to the availability of net operating loss carryforwards
that have been fully reserved for in the net deferred tax valuation allowance.

(c) Pro forma income per share reflects pro forma net income divided by pro forma shares outstanding.

(d) Pro forma equity reflects the contribution to capital of $13,000,000 in cash and of the due to Leucadia and its affiliates
balance as of the end of each of the periods.

(e) Pro forma book value per share reflects pro forma equity divided by pro forma shares outstanding.
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MANAGEMENT��S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview��Introduction

The purpose of this section is to discuss and analyze Crimson�s consolidated financial condition, liquidity and capital
resources and results of operations. This analysis should be read in conjunction with Crimson�s consolidated financial
statements, related footnote disclosures, �Risk Factors� and �Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.�

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Crimson�s principal sources of liquidity are its available cash and funds generated from operations. Crimson is currently
negotiating a $60,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility with a bank group, comprised of an A facility and a B facility, which
together would be secured by substantially all of Crimson�s assets. Revolving credit facility A would be for up to $10,000,000
of availability for a 5 year term, collateralized by accounts receivable, inventory and intangibles. Term revolving credit facility
B would be for up to $50,000,000, collateralized by real property, including vineyards and certain winery facilities of
Crimson. Covenants are expected to include the maintenance of specified debt and equity ratios, limitations on the incurrence
of additional indebtedness, limitations on dividends and other distributions to shareholders and restrictions on certain mergers,
consolidations and sales of assets. In addition to commitment fees ranging from 0.25% to 0.375%, rates for the borrowings
will be priced based on a performance grid tied to certain financial ratios. If Crimson is successful in obtaining this Revolving
Credit Facility, it could be used to fund acquisitions and working capital requirements. There is no guarantee that Crimson will
enter into the Revolving Credit Facility on favorable terms or at all.

Prior to the distribution, Crimson relied upon Leucadia for debt financing and equity contributions for all of its liquidity
needs. These needs included $86,018,000 for the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards in May 2011 and $19,200,000 for
the acquisition of Chamisal Vineyards in August 2008. As of September 30, 2012, the aggregate amount payable by Crimson
to Leucadia and its affiliates was $151,874,000, all of which will be contributed to capital before the distribution. As a result,
in future periods Crimson will not record interest expense relating to this borrowing. Crimson�s positive cash flows from
operating activities have improved during the last three years as a result of growth through winery acquisitions, increased sales
from new product launches, improved brand recognition of its existing portfolio and increased higher margin direct to
consumer sales. Crimson would have reported greater cash flows from operating activities for certain periods presented in this
information statement if the interest expense paid to Leucadia were excluded. Crimson�s ability to continue to grow and
generate increasing cash flows from operating activities is not certain.

As of September 30, 2012, Crimson�s commitments for capital expenditures were not material. Crimson expects, but has
not yet committed, to spend approximately $6,000,000 for capital expenditures over the next twelve months, of which
$2,000,000 is for the expansion of the Seghesio Family Vineyards fermentation and processing capacity and $300,000 for the
increase in Chamisal Vineyard�s permitted capacity. These expenditures are focused on expanding and improving our
facilities for additional growth, and do not relate to required maintenance or similar costs to sustain our existing operations.
The remaining $3,700,000 is for vineyard development, barrel purchases and other winery and facility improvements.
Crimson expects to use its available cash and cash flows generated from operating activities to fund its capital expenditures.

Cash Flows

Nine Months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

Net cash provided by operating activities was $7,022,000 and $7,008,000 for the nine month periods ended September 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Although operating results improved significantly in 2012 as compared to 2011, cash flows from
operating activities did not increase to the
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same extent, due to the timing of the payment of grape purchase payables, most significantly at Seghesio Family Vineyards,
and in order to support growth for other Crimson brands as well. Seghesio Family Vineyards, which was acquired in May
2011, entered into grape purchase agreements for delivery during the 2011 harvest, some of which did not require payment
until 2012. While this had a positive impact on 2011 annual cash flows from operating activities, the payments required in
2012 under these agreements, along with those for other Crimson brands, had a corresponding negative impact on cash flows
from operating activities aggregating $1,800,000 during 2012.

Cash flows from operating activities were also negatively impacted by increased interest paid to Leucadia, which
increased as a result of the debt financing incurred to purchase Seghesio Family Vineyards. Interest paid to Leucadia was
$1,138,000 and $388,000, for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which reduced
operating cash flow by these amounts.

Net cash used for investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $1,824,000, which primarily
consists of $1,847,000 related to the acquisition of property and equipment. Net cash used for investing activities in the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 was $88,464,000, which includes $86,018,000 for the acquisition of Seghesio Family
Vineyards in 2011. The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets and liabilities at the date of that acquisition:

Inventory $11,826,000
All other current assets 3,181,000
Property, plant and equipment 48,503,000
Goodwill and intangible assets 23,303,000
Other assets 82,000

Total assets acquired 86,895,000
Current liabilities acquired 877,000

Net assets acquired $86,018,000

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, net cash used for financing activities was $2,500,000 for principal
payments on debt to Leucadia. For the nine month period ended September 30, 2011, net cash provided by financing activities
of $86,122,000 principally includes the funds provided by Leucadia as a capital contribution and loan for the acquisition of
Seghesio Family Vineyards.

Years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4,998,000, $2,017,000 and $1,087,000 for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Operating cash flows reflect funds used for increased investment in inventory of
$1,389,000, $205,000 and $2,527,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, necessary for the growth of Crimson�s
business. In addition, 2011 operating cash flows were favorably impacted by the timing of increases in accounts payable due
to greater grape purchase payables, principally following the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards, as discussed above.
Assuming the same level of grape purchase payable contracts at the end of 2012, the favorable impact on operating cash flows
in 2011 related to the timing of payments of accounts payable would not continue and would have a negative impact in 2012.

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities during 2010 as compared to 2009 principally reflected a much
larger investment in inventory during 2009. The increase in inventory in 2009 resulted from the general economic slowdown
that began in 2008, and the launch of a new brand, ForeFront by Pine Ridge, in the fall of 2009.

Cash flows from operating activities were also negatively impacted by interest paid to Leucadia. Interest paid to Leucadia
was $972,000, $1,383,000 and $0 for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Acquisition of property, equipment and leasehold improvements increased in 2011, principally due to capital expenditures
at Seghesio Family Vineyards following the acquisition. Proceeds from
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disposals of property and equipment include $1,386,000 in 2010 from the sale of a non-strategic vineyard, $517,000 in 2009
from the sale of equipment, and sales of used barrels for all periods.

Net cash provided by financing activities of $86,090,000 principally reflects a contribution and a loan from Leucadia
during 2011. In 2011, the substantial increase in funds provided by Leucadia was used for the acquisition of Seghesio Family
Vineyards. Net cash used for financing activities was $158,000 and $147,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively, for the reduction of debt.

As shown below, at December 31, 2011, Crimson�s contractual cash obligations totaled $168,225,000.

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)
Contractual Obligations Total Less than

1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years After
5 Years

Due to Leucadia and its affiliates $151,441 $151,441 $� $� $�
Grape purchase contracts 16,648 5,158 7,835 2,388 1,267
Operating Leases, net of sublease income 136 20 43 42 31
Total Contractual Obligations $168,225 $156,619 $ 7,878 $ 2,430 $1,298

The estimated interest expense on debt includes interest related to variable rate debt which Crimson determined using
rates in effect at December 31, 2011. As discussed above, all of the amounts due to Leucadia and its affiliates in the table
above will be contributed to capital prior to the distribution.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

None.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Crimson�s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon its consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.
(�GAAP�). The preparation of these financial statements requires Crimson to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis,
Crimson evaluates all of these estimates and assumptions. The following areas have been identified as critical accounting
estimates because they have the potential to have a significant impact on Crimson�s financial statements, and because they are
based on assumptions that are used in the accounting records to reflect, at a specific point in time, events whose ultimate
outcome won�t be known until a later date. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Inventory�Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined on the first-in, first-out
method. Costs associated with winemaking, and other costs associated with the manufacturing of products for resale, are
recorded as inventory. In accordance with general practice within the wine industry, wine inventories are included in current
assets, although a portion of such inventories may be aged for periods longer than one year. As required, Crimson reduces the
carrying value of inventories that are obsolete or in excess of estimated usage to estimated net realizable value. Crimson�s
estimates of net realizable value are based on analyses and assumptions including, but not limited to, historical usage, future
demand and market requirements. Reductions to the carrying value of inventories are recorded in cost of sales. If future
demand and/or pricing for Crimson�s products are less than previously estimated, then the carrying value of the inventories
may be required to be reduced, resulting in additional expense and reduced profitability. Inventory write-downs of $51,000,
$1,513,000 and $4,662,000 were recorded during 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Vineyard Development Costs�Crimson capitalizes internal vineyard development costs when developing new vineyards or
replacing or improving existing vineyards. These costs consist primarily of the costs of the vines and expenditures related to
labor and materials to prepare the land and construct vine trellises. Amortization of such costs as annual crop costs is recorded
on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic useful life of the vineyard, which can be as long as 25 years. As
circumstances warrant, Crimson re-evaluates the recoverability of capitalized costs, and will record
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impairment charges if required. Crimson has not recorded any significant impairment charges for its vineyards during the last
three years.

Review of Long-lived Assets for Impairment�For intangible assets with definite lives, impairment testing is required if
conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. For intangible assets with indefinite lives and for
goodwill, impairment testing is required at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that these
assets might be impaired. Crimson currently has no intangible assets with indefinite lives. Substantially all of Crimson�s
goodwill and other intangible assets result from the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards in May 2011. Amortization of
intangible assets is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 7 to 17
years. Crimson evaluates goodwill for impairment at the end of each year, and has concluded that goodwill is not impaired.
Although the operating results and cash flows from Seghesio Family Vineyards have been as expected, Crimson has only
owned Seghesio Family Vineyards for more than one year. Should revenues deteriorate in the future, impairment charges for
goodwill and other intangible assets could be recorded.

The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets consist primarily of property and
equipment. Circumstances that might cause the Company to evaluate its long-lived assets for impairment could include a
significant decline in the prices the Company or the industry can charge for its products, which could be caused by general
economic or other factors, changes in laws or regulations that make it difficult or more costly for the Company to distribute its
products to its markets at prices which generate adequate returns, natural disasters, significant decrease in the demand for the
Company�s products or significant increases in the costs to manufacture the Company�s products.

Recoverability of assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset group to future net cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset group. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company groups
its long-lived assets with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities (or asset group). This would typically be at the winery level which
is described above.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company changed its development strategy at Double Canyon Vineyards,
determined that it would sell its winemaking equipment and related assets, and recorded an impairment charge of $351,000,
principally to reduce the carrying amount of these assets to be sold to fair value. Except for that charge, there were no events
or circumstances that caused the Company to review its long-lived assets for impairment during the three year period ended
December 31, 2011.

Depletion Allowances�Crimson pays depletion allowances to its distributors based on their sales to their customers. These
allowances are set on a monthly basis by Crimson, and estimated allowances are accrued as a reduction of revenues.
Subsequently, distributors will bill Crimson for actual depletions, which may be different from Crimson�s estimate. Any such
differences are recognized in revenues when the bill is received. Crimson has historically been able to accurately estimate
depletion allowances.
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Results of Operations

Overview

The Company generates revenues from sales of wine to wholesalers and direct to consumers, sales of bulk wine and
grapes, special event fees, tasting fees and retail sales. Revenues and gross profit for the nine month periods ended September
30, 2012 and 2011 and the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are as follows (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2011 2010 2009
(Unaudited)

Revenues:
Wholesalers $19,999 $13,961 $20,431 $9,335 $7,805
Direct to consumers 12,255 9,654 15,363 12,383 11,844
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 2,016 1,811 3,512 2,044 2,051

$34,270 $25,426 $39,306 $23,762 $21,700
Gross profit:

Wholesalers $10,104 $5,395 $6,555 $3,150 $2,052
Direct to consumers 7,217 5,766 9,075 7,545 7,185
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 475 557 282 (38 ) 540
Inventory write-down � � (51 ) (1,513 ) (4,662 )

$17,796 $11,718 $15,861 $9,144 $5,115
Operating Expenses:

Sales and marketing $8,141 $6,194 $9,280 $6,474 $5,545
General and administrative 5,169 4,518 6,704 3,482 3,747

Income (loss) from operations $4,486 $1,006 $(123 ) $(812 ) $(4,177 )

Crimson�s wines are primarily sold to distributors, who then sell to retailers and restaurants. As permitted under federal
and local regulations, Crimson has also been placing increased emphasis on generating revenue from direct sales to consumers
which occur through wine clubs, at the wineries� tasting rooms and through the internet. Direct sales to consumers are more
profitable for Crimson as it is able to sell its products at a price closer to retail prices rather than the wholesale price received
from distributors. During 2011, direct sales to consumers represented 14% of case sales and 43% of wine revenues. From time
to time Crimson may sell grapes or bulk wine, because the wine does not meet the quality standards for Crimson�s products,
market conditions have changed resulting in reduced demand for certain products, or because Crimson may have produced too
much of a particular varietal than it can use. When these sales occur they may result in a loss.

Cost of sales includes grape and bulk wine costs, whether purchased or produced from Crimson�s controlled vineyards,
crush costs, winemaking and processing costs, bottling, packaging, warehousing and shipping and handling costs. For
vineyard produced grapes, grape costs include annual farming costs and amortization of vineyard development expenditures.
For wines that age longer than one year, winemaking and processing costs continue to be incurred and capitalized to the cost
of wine, which can range from 3 to 24 months. Reductions to the carrying value of inventories to estimated net realizable
value are also included in costs of sales.

At September 30, 2012, wine inventory includes approximately 487,000 cases of bottled and bulk wine in various stages
of the aging process. Case wine is expected to be sold over the next 12 to 24 months and generally before the release date of
the next vintage.

Consolidated Operations�Nine Months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

Revenues and gross profit increased in the nine month 2012 period as compared to the corresponding period in 2011,
principally due to the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards in May 2011. Revenues were $34,270,000 in the nine month
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$4,468,000 in 2011; however, revenues from other Crimson brands declined by $913,000 (or 4%) while gross profit from
these brands increased by $776,000 (or 8%). The decline in revenues for other Crimson brands reflects a $165,000 decrease in
revenue due to the timing of shipments for Pine Ridge Chenin Blanc+Viognier, a lower priced product that had greater sales
during the first nine months of 2011 than the corresponding period in 2012. Full year 2012 sales of Pine Ridge Chenin
Blanc+Viognier are expected to be approximately at the same level as 2011. Additionally, revenues from remaining Pine
Ridge brands declined $771,000 primarily due to a private label wine sold during the first six months of 2011 which was not
repeated in 2012. These decreases were offset by a $354,000 increase in sales for Chamisal Vineyards, which had growth in
both wholesale and direct to consumer sales. The remaining change results from reduced sales of bulk wine of $491,000 and
increased non-wine revenue of $164,000.

Gross profit was $17,796,000 in the nine month 2012 period and $11,718,000 in the nine month 2011 period. Gross profit
related to Seghesio Family Vineyards was $7,691,000 in the nine month 2012 period and $2,389,000 in the nine month 2011
period. The increase in gross profit for Seghesio Family Vineyards primarily relates to nine months of activity in 2012 as
compared to four months of activity in 2011, as well as improved gross margins related to lower cost of goods sold per case.
Excluding Seghesio Family Vineyards, gross profit increased $776,000 reflecting the increase in case good sales as well as
lower cost of goods sold per case for comparable brands.

Sales and marketing expenses were $8,141,000 for the nine month 2012 period and $6,194,000 for the nine month 2011
period. Sales and marketing expenses related to Seghesio Family Vineyards were $1,628,000 in the nine month 2012 period
and $707,000 in the corresponding period in 2011. Crimson�s sales and marketing expenses have a fixed component and a
variable component that tends to correspond to changes in sales volume. Excluding Seghesio Family Vineyards, sales and
marketing expenses increased $1,026,000 (or 19%), of which $330,000 resulted from variable cost increases and $696,000
from fixed cost increases. Variable cost increases resulted from increased costs for promotions and distributor trade events,
partially offset by declines in distributor commissions and credit card fees in proportion to volume. Fixed sales and marketing
expenses increased primarily due to $606,000 related to overhead costs due to expanding the business including total
compensation, travel, contract services and office expenses and $46,000 related to increased insurance costs.

General and administrative expenses were $5,169,000 in the nine month 2012 period and $4,518,000 in the nine month
2011 period. General and administrative expenses related to Seghesio Family Vineyards were $1,869,000 in the nine month
2012 period and $1,574,000 in the corresponding period in 2011. Excluding Seghesio Family Vineyards, general and
administrative expenses increased $356,000 (or 12%), principally due to $211,000 of greater management salaries, $73,000 of
higher recruiting fees, in order to add and enhance staff for anticipated growth, and $65,000 in legal fees primarily related to
label litigation that resulted in a favorable outcome.

Interest expense reflects the costs of funds borrowed from Leucadia, which funds will be contributed to capital prior to
the distribution.

Subsequent to September 30, 2012, the Company entered into a contract to sell a non-strategic vineyard for $1,850,000
that had a book value of $1,039,000 at September 30, 2012.

Consolidated Operations�Years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Revenues were $39,306,000 in 2011 and $23,762,000 in 2010. Revenues and gross profit increased in 2011 as compared
to 2010, principally due to the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards. Revenues from Seghesio Family Vineyards were
$9,899,000, and revenues from other Crimson products increased by $5,645,000 in 2011. Excluding Seghesio Family
Vineyards, revenues increased by 24% reflecting an increase in sales of Pine Ridge Chenin Blanc+Viognier of $1,812,000, an
increase in sales at Chamisal Vineyards of $1,162,000, revenue from the sale of a private label wine in 2011 of $942,000, and
volume growth in all other brands except for Archery Summit, which had slower wine club sales in 2011.

Revenues were $23,762,000 in 2010 and $21,700,000 in 2009. Revenues increased by $2,062,000 or approximately 10%
in 2010 as compared to 2009, due mostly to the launch of a new brand, ForeFront by Pine Ridge, in the fall of 2009. ForeFront
by Pine Ridge, which consists primarily of
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$24 retail priced Cabernet Sauvignon and Pinot Noir, was launched in response to generally poor economic conditions
beginning in 2008 and a new value conscious consumer. During 2010, its first full year in the market place, ForeFront volume
was over 21,000 cases which grew to 28,000 cases in 2011. Since industry high-end wine sales have been improving, future
growth of ForeFront is uncertain.

Gross profits were $15,861,000, $9,144,000 and $5,115,000 for the years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In
addition to changes in revenues, gross profit also reflects losses from inventory write-downs of $51,000, $1,513,000 and
$4,662,000, and the net loss on sale of bulk wine and grapes of $395,000, $332,000 and $336,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The large inventory write-downs in 2010 and 2009 principally resulted from
the declassification of wine intended for higher priced luxury wine programs. This wine was eventually sold as bulk wine,
under the ForeFront program and under private label programs.

Sales and marketing expenses were $9,280,000, $6,474,000 and $5,545,000 for the years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Sales and marketing expenses related to Seghesio Family Vineyards were $1,580,000 in 2011. Excluding
Seghesio Family Vineyards, sales and marketing expenses increased $1,226,000 (or 19%) as compared to 2010, of which
$388,000 resulted from variable cost increases and $838,000 from fixed cost increases. Variable cost increases resulted from
increased costs of $308,000 for distributor commissions, incentives, and national sales promotions, and $73,000 for marketing
design, photography and special events. Fixed costs increases resulted from increased compensation for the expansion of the
sales force given the larger product portfolio and anticipated growth. Sales and marketing expense increased $929,000 (or
17%) in 2010 as compared to 2009, principally due to a $348,000 increase in compensation expenses, a $190,000 increase in
distributor samples and promotional activities and a $161,000 increase in special event expenses.

General and administrative expenses were $6,704,000, $3,482,000 and $3,747,000 for the years ended 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. General and administrative expenses related to Seghesio Family Vineyards were $2,276,000 in 2011.
Excluding Seghesio Family Vineyards, general and administrative expenses increased $946,000 (or 27%) as compared to
2010, primarily due to a $662,000 increase in compensation, $74,000 additional bad debt reserve, $58,000 increased
accounting fees and $56,000 in increased recruiting costs coinciding with growth expectations. General and administrative
expenses decreased $265,000 (or 7%) in 2010 as compared to 2009 principally due to a $67,000 decrease in information
technology costs after a change in service providers, a $73,000 decrease in temporary labor, a $35,000 decrease in legal fees, a
$32,000 decrease in property taxes and a $32,000 decrease in 401(k) matching costs as Crimson�s 401(k) matching payment
was suspended in 2010.

Interest expense reflects the costs of funds borrowed from Leucadia, which funds will be contributed to capital prior to
the distribution.

Historically, Crimson has been included in the consolidated federal income tax return of Leucadia. Crimson has not
recorded a federal or state income tax benefit for its pre-tax losses, as sufficient evidence does not exist to enable Crimson to
conclude that it is more likely than not that it can generate sufficient taxable income in the future to realize such benefits. As a
result, Crimson recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax asset, which is the primary reason for the
difference between the effective income tax rate and the federal statutory rate for all periods presented. Crimson pays
California and Oregon state minimum income taxes aggregating $2,800 per year.

Seghesio Family Vineyards�Five Months ended May 31, 2011 and Year ended December 31, 2010

We acquired Seghesio Family Vineyards on May 31, 2011. We provide additional analysis below regarding the periods
prior to acquisition. This analysis should be read in connection with the financial statements for Seghesio Family Vineyards
that appear elsewhere within this Information Statement. The financial statements presented include statements of operations
data for the five month period ended May 31, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, which periods are not directly
comparable.
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Revenues were $7,722,000 for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and $16,174,000 for 2010. Revenues during these
periods consisted primarily of wholesale revenue, which is wine sold to distributors who then sell to retailers and restaurants.
Direct to consumer revenue occurs through the wine club and at the winery tasting room, which represented approximately
30% and 35% of total revenue for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively.
Gross profits were $3,249,000 (or 42.1% of revenues) for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and $9,098,000 (or 56.3% of
revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Prior to acquisition, Seghesio historically accounted for bottled wine and bulk wine inventories at the lower of cost or
market, with cost being determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. Under the LIFO method, if future demand or
pricing for Seghesio�s products was determined to be less than previously estimated, then the carrying amount of inventories
might have to be adjusted, with such adjustment reflected as an increase to cost of sales and reduced profitability. During the
five month period ended May 31, 2011, Seghesio recorded a LIFO adjustment that resulted in an increase to cost of sales of
$1,143,000, which significantly accounted for the decrease in gross profit percentage from 2010.

Sales and marketing expenses were $1,375,000 (or 17.8% of revenues) for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and
$3,130,000 (or 19.4% of revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2010. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of
revenue were higher in 2010 as compared to 2011, primarily related to compensation. General and administrative expenses
were $925,000 (or 12.0% of revenues) for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and $2,471,000 (or 15.3% of revenues) for the
year ended December 31, 2010. General and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue were higher in 2010 as
compared to 2011, primarily related to costs for quality control, legal, credit card fees and fringe benefits.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Crimson does not currently have any exposure to financial market risk. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 sales to international customers were denominated in U.S. dollars, therefore, we were not exposed to market risk
related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we did not have
any significant outstanding debt instruments other than amounts due to Leucadia, therefore, we were not exposed to market
risk relating to interest rates.

As discussed above under ��Liquidity and Capital Resources,� Crimson is currently negotiating a Revolving Credit
Facility. Upon entering into that Revolving Credit Facility, Crimson will be exposed to interest rate risk. Any amount
borrowed is expected to bear interest at floating rates.

32

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


MANAGEMENT

As of January 28, 2013, the current director and executive officers of Crimson, their ages, the positions with Crimson
held by each of them, the periods during which they have served in such positions and a summary of their recent business
experience is set forth below. In addition, set forth below are the ages and a summary of the recent business experience of the
additional directors that we expect to serve on the board of directors at the time of the distribution.

Board of Directors

Our board of directors currently consists of 1 member, Ian M. Cumming.

The following table sets forth the names, ages, positions and starting date for each of the directors who serve on or who
we expect will serve on the board of directors at the time of the distribution. Each of the biographies of the directors listed
below also contains information regarding such person�s service as a director, business experience, director positions with
other public companies held currently or at any time during the past five years, and the experience, qualifications, attributes
and skills that the board of directors considered in selecting each of them to serve as a director of Crimson.

Name Age Director
Since Position

Ian M. Cumming 72 March 1994 Chairman of the Board of Directors
Joseph S. Steinberg 68 � Director
John D. Cumming 45 � Director
Avraham M. Neikrug 43 � Director

Ian M. Cumming. Mr. Cumming has served as a director since March 1994 and Chairman of Crimson since April 2008.
He has been a director and Chairman of the Board of Leucadia since June 1978, a director of Skywest, Inc., a Utah-based
regional air carrier, since June 1986, and a director of HomeFed Corporation (�HomeFed�), a California residential real estate
development company, since May 1999. Mr. Cumming is also a director of Jefferies, a publicly traded full service global
investment bank and institutional securities firm serving companies and other investors in which Leucadia currently has an
approximate 29% interest. Mr. Cumming currently serves as a director of Cumming Investment Company, a family-owned
investment company with diversified holdings. Mr. Cumming previously served as a director of Fortescue Metals Group Ltd.
(�Fortescue�), AmeriCredit Corp. and Mueller Industries, Inc. (�Mueller�), the Chairman of the Board of The FINOVA Group
Inc. (�Finova�), and a member of the Board of Managers of Premier Entertainment Biloxi, LLC. (�Premier�). Mr. Cumming
has managerial and investing experience in a broad range of businesses through his more than 30 years as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Leucadia. He also has experience serving on the boards of directors and committees of both public and
private entities.

Joseph S. Steinberg. Mr. Steinberg has been President of Leucadia since January 1979 and a director of Leucadia since
December 1978. Mr. Steinberg has been a director of HomeFed since August 1998 and Chairman of the Board of Homefed
since December 1999. Mr. Steinberg is also a director of Jefferies. Mr. Steinberg had previously served as a director of Jordan
Industries, Inc., White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd, Finova, Fortescue and Mueller, and was a member of the Board of
Managers of Premier. Mr. Steinberg has managerial and investing experience in a broad range of businesses through his more
than 30 years as President and a director of Leucadia. He also has experience serving on the boards and committees of both
public and private companies.

John D. Cumming. Mr. Cumming has been the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of Powdr Corporation,
a private company engaged in the development of ski resorts, since 1994. Mr. Cumming has also been the President of the
United States Ski and Snowboard Team Foundation since 2010. Mr. Cumming previously served in several senior roles at the
Park City Foundation, including as a member of the Board of Trustees and Chairman. Mr. Cumming currently serves as a
director of Cumming Investment Company, a family-owned investment company with diversified holdings. Mr. Cumming has
managerial and investing experience in a broad range of
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businesses through his service as a senior executive and director of Powdr, his involvement as a founding shareholder of
Mountain Hardwear and his tenure on various boards of directors.

Avraham M. Neikrug. Mr. Neikrug has been the Managing Partner of Goldenhill Ventures, a private investment firm
that specializes in buying and building businesses in partnership with management, since June 2011. Mr. Neikrug has served
as Vice President in Goldenhill Ventures LLC since June 2011 and Spin Holdings LLC since December 1999. Mr. Neikrug has
managerial and investing experience in a broad range of businesses through his founding and operating of JIR Inc., a company
involved in the development of regional cable television throughout Russia, JIRP, a business-to-business internet service
provider (ISP) based in Austria, and M&A Argentina, a private equity effort in Argentina.

Ian M. Cumming is the father of John D. Cumming. Avraham M. Neikrug�s father is a first cousin to Joseph S. Steinberg.

Director Independence

Mr. Cumming, currently our sole director, and Mr. Steinberg, one of the persons who is expected to become one of our
directors at the time of the distribution, will not qualify as independent directors under the NASDAQ listing standards by
virtue of their respective executive positions with Leucadia. We anticipate that of the remaining two persons expected to
become directors at the time of the distribution, Mr. Neikrug will qualify as independent under NASDAQ listing standards
with respect to director independence.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has the authority to appoint committees to perform certain management and administration
functions. Ian M. Cumming is the chairman of the board of directors.

Following the distribution, there will not be any standing committees of the board of directors; the board of directors in its
entirety performs such functions as would otherwise be performed by an audit committee, compensation committee and
nominating and corporate governance committee. The Company believes that standing committees are not necessary or cost
efficient for a company its size and will continue to evaluate this in the future.

The board of directors has not concluded that any of the directors qualifies as an �audit committee financial expert� as
such term has been defined by the SEC in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Following the distribution, none of our executive officers will serve on the compensation committee or board of directors
of any other company of which any of our directors is an executive officer.

Code of Business Practice

Following the distribution, we will have a Code of Business Practice which will apply to all of our employees, officers
and directors, including our Chief Executive Officer. Our Code of Business Practice will require the avoidance of conflicts of
interest, which are broadly defined to include any situation where a person�s private interest interferes in any way with the
interests of Crimson. In addition, this code prohibits direct or indirect personal loans to executive officers and directors to the
extent required by law. The code does not attempt to cover every issue that may arise, but instead sets out basic principles to
guide all of our employees, officers, and directors. Any waivers of the code for any executive officer, principal accounting
officer, or director may be made only by the board of directors or a board committee and will be publicly disclosed. The code
will include a process and a toll- free telephone number for reports of potentially inappropriate conduct or potential violations
of the code. Currently our executive officers are subject to the Code of Business Practice of Leucadia.
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Director Compensation

Our current director is not receiving compensation for his services to us. Following the completion of the distribution, our
non-employee directors, including the chairman of the board, may be entitled to be paid an annual retainer comprised of cash
and, if applicable, restricted stock, which amounts are yet to be determined by the board.

Executive Officers

Set forth below is information concerning the individuals we currently expect will serve as our executive officers upon
the separation.

Name Age Position
Erle Martin 49 President and Chief Executive Officer
Patrick M. DeLong 47 Chief Financial & Operating Officer
Mike S. Cekay 41 Senior Vice President of Global Sales
Natasha K. Hayes 41 Vice President of Marketing
Vida A. Dion 40 Vice President of Consumer Sales

Erle Martin. Mr. Martin has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Crimson since August 2007. Mr. Martin
has over 25 years experience in the wine business. Mr. Martin was at the Francis Ford Coppola companies from 1996 to 2007,
working mainly as the President of the Wine Division. Mr. Martin was at Young�s Market, the fourth largest wine and spirits
distributor in the U.S., from 1988 to 1996, working mainly as the Vice President of the State Fine Wine division.

Patrick M. DeLong. Mr. DeLong has served as Chief Financial & Operating Officer of Crimson since July 2007. Mr.
DeLong served as the Senior Vice President & CFO of Icon Estates, which was a fine wine division of Constellation Brands,
Inc., from 2004 to 2006. Mr. DeLong was at the Robert Mondavi Corporation in a variety of roles from 1998 to 2004,
including Senior Vice President of Finance & Planning.

Mike S. Cekay. Mr. Cekay has served as Senior Vice President of Global Sales of Crimson since May 2012. Mr. Cekay
served as the Executive Vice President, Global Sales Manager of Don Sebastiani & Sons from 2009 to 2012. Mr. Cekay was
Vice President Off Premise National Accounts at Future Brands LLC from 2007 to 2009. Mr. Cekay was Divisional Vice
President, Central for Beam Wine Estates from 2005 to 2007.

Natasha K. Hayes. Mrs. Hayes has served as Vice President of Marketing of Crimson since May 2012. Mrs. Hayes was
Marketing Director at Jackson Family Wines from 2010 to 2011. Mrs. Hayes was a consultant at Hayes Consulting from 2011
to May 2012, specializing in marketing. Mrs. Hayes was Group Marketing Director at Constellation Wine US from 2007 to
2010. Mrs. Hayes served as the Group Brand Manager of Fosters Wine Group, from 2001 to 2007.

Vida A. Dion. Ms. Dion has served as Vice President of Consumer Sales of Crimson since March 2010. Ms. Dion served
as Director of Consumer Sales and E-Commerce at Foley Family Wines from 2009 to March 2010. Ms. Dion served as the
Director of Communications of Patz & Hall, a California winery, from 2005 to 2009. Ms. Dion was Director of
Communications and Direct Sales at Stag�s Leap Wine Cellars from 2001 to 2005.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus All Other
Compensation Total

Erle Martin 2012 $405,781 $300,000 $ 4,718 $710,499
President and Chief Executive Officer 2011 $374,400 $200,000 $ 1,012 $575,412

Patrick M. DeLong 2012 $266,731 $162,500 $ 4,718 $433,949
Chief Financial & Operating Officer 2011 $225,000 $100,000 $ 1,552 $326,552

Mike S. Cekay 2012 $195,673 $� $ 12,277 (1) $207,950
Senior Vice President of Global Sales

(1) In 2012, Mr. Cekay received $12,277 as a car allowance.

Crimson determines bonuses subject to a number of factors, including company earnings performance vs. budget,
individual department performance vs. budget, annual key performance incentives and, in some cases, the discretion of the
board of directors.

Employment Agreements

Patrick M. DeLong and Mike S. Cekay have entered into employment agreements with us. These employment
agreements are briefly described below.

Patrick DeLong. On June 27, 2007, we entered into an agreement with Mr. DeLong. The agreement continues until
terminated by us or Mr. DeLong, or due to his death or disability which renders him unable to perform his duties under the
agreement for 90 consecutive days in any 12-month period. Mr. DeLong�s annual base salary under the agreement was
$225,000 per year. On March 1, 2012, Mr. DeLong�s annual base salary was increased to $275,000 per year. Mr. DeLong is
entitled to an annual bonus opportunity based on performance goals established by us and Mr. DeLong at the beginning of
each calendar year. Mr. DeLong�s target bonus was 40% of his annual base salary for the first full calendar year, 45% for the
second full calendar year and 50% for the third full calendar year and subsequent calendar years. We will notify Mr. DeLong if
the bonus target becomes different than 50% of his base salary. Notwithstanding the provisions of the agreement, the board of
directors may make a determination as to bonus payable to Mr. DeLong in its discretion. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr.
DeLong is also eligible to participate in and receive any stock option grants and to participate in any standard company
benefits. Mr. DeLong is also eligible to share a percentage of our pre-tax income, subject to terms determined by us pursuant
to any long-term incentive or deferred compensation program. Mr. DeLong is entitled to certain benefits if his employment is
terminated or upon other events. See ��Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control.�

Mike Cekay. On March 26, 2012, we entered into an agreement with Mr. Cekay. The agreement continues until
terminated by us or Mr. Cekay at any time and for any reason or for no reason with or without notice. Mr. Cekay�s annual
base salary under the agreement is $275,000 per year. Mr. Cekay is eligible for an annual bonus in an amount to be determined
by us in our discretion up to 30% bonus target of base salary plus an accelerator to be determined annually. The amount of any
annual bonus will be based upon our performance and Mr. Cekay�s performance, as determined by us, against mutually
agreed upon goals between Mr. Cekay and us. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Cekay is also eligible to participate in a long
term incentive plan, receive a car allowance benefit of $1,400 per month and participate in standard company benefits. Mr.
Cekay is not entitled to any benefits if his employment is terminated or upon other events.

Crimson Compensation Plans

In connection with the distribution, our board of directors will adopt an equity compensation plan prior to the separation,
which will allow Crimson to grant incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, and other stock-based awards, and
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performance-based compensation awards to its officers, employees, and non-employee directors. The equity compensation
plan will be administered by our board of directors (in the absence of a compensation committee or other designated
committee of the board), which is authorized to select the officers, employees and non-employee directors to whom awards
will be granted, and to determine the type and amount of such awards. The maximum number of shares available for issuance
under the plan is 1 million. To the extent permitted by Section 162(m) of the Code, our board of directors is authorized to
design any award so that the amounts or shares payable or distributed pursuant to such award are treated as �qualified
performance-based compensation� within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and related regulations. The equity
compensation plan is included as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this information statement forms a part. This
summary of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the plan, which is incorporated by reference into
the registration statement on Form 10.

Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control

The information below describes and quantifies certain compensation that would become payable under each named
executive officer�s employment agreement if, as of December 31, 2012, his employment had been terminated (including
termination in connection with a change in control). Due to the number of factors that affect the nature and amount of any
benefits provided upon the events discussed below, any actual amounts paid or distributed may be different. Factors that could
affect these amounts include the timing during the year of any such event.

Patrick DeLong. In the event Mr. DeLong�s employment is terminated by us without cause, by him with good reason or
by a successor (whether direct, indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) before a change in control, he shall
be entitled to continue to receive as severance, payment, in accordance with our current payroll practices, of his base salary in
effect at the time of termination for 12 months.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Our Relationship with Leucadia following the Distribution

For a discussion of the relationship between Leucadia and us following the distribution, see �The Distribution�Our
Relationship with Leucadia following the Distribution.�

Related Person Transaction Policy

We will adopt a written policy relating to the approval of related person transactions. Our board of directors will review
and approve or ratify all relationships and related person transactions between us and (i) our directors, director nominees,
executive officers or their immediate family members, (ii) any 5% record or beneficial owner of our Common Stock or (iii)
any immediate family member of any person specified in (i) and (ii) above. Our controller will be primarily responsible for the
development and implementation of processes and controls to obtain information from our directors and executive officers
with respect to related person transactions and for determining, based on the facts and circumstances, whether we or a related
person have a direct or indirect material interest in the transaction.

As will be set forth in the related person transaction policy, in the course of its review and approval or ratification of a
related person transaction, the board will consider:

� the nature of the related person�s interest in the transaction;

� the availability of other sources of comparable products or services;

� the material terms of the transaction, including, without limitation, the amount and type of transaction; and

� the importance of the transaction to us.

Any member of the board who is a related person with respect to a transaction under review will not be permitted to
participate in the discussions or approval or ratification of the transaction. However, such member of the board will provide all
material information concerning the transaction to the board.

Related Person Transactions

Amounts Due to Leucadia and its Affiliates

Amounts due to Leucadia and its affiliates were $151,874,000, $151,441,000, $103,421,000 and $101,660,000 as of
September 30, 2012, December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively. Amounts due to Leucadia
and its affiliates bear interest at a specified bank prime rate plus 0.125%. All amounts are payable on demand, except for the
$45,000,000 note issued to Leucadia in connection with the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards that is due May 13,
2013. Unpaid interest, if any, is added to the principal balance on a quarterly basis. Prior to the distribution, the remaining
balance due to Leucadia and its affiliates will be contributed to capital. Interest expense to affiliates was $3,886,000,
$4,494,000, $3,470,000 and $3,389,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, and the year ended December 31,
2011, December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 respectively.

Wine Sales

Officers, directors and employees are eligible to purchase our wine at various discounts. For the year ended December 31,
2009, Joseph S. Steinberg, one of our directors, purchased $122,372 of wine through corporate discounts for charitable and
other purposes.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
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Before the distribution, all of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock are owned beneficially and of record by
Leucadia. Immediately following the distribution, we expect to have approximately 24.5 million shares of Common Stock
issued and outstanding.
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The following table sets forth estimated information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock
immediately following the distribution. The table below sets forth such estimated beneficial ownership for:

�
each stockholder that, based on the assumptions described below, is expected to be a beneficial owner of more than 5%
of the Common Stock immediately following the consummation of the distribution;

� each named director and nominee for director;

� each named executive officer;

� all of such directors, nominees for director and executive officers as a group.

Except as otherwise noted below, we based the share amounts shown on each person�s beneficial ownership of
Leucadia�s common shares as of , and a distribution ratio of one share of our Common Stock for every 10 Leucadia common
shares held by such person. The actual number of shares of our Common Stock outstanding following the distribution will be
determined on , the record date.

To the extent our directors and executive officers own Leucadia common shares at the record date, they will participate in
the distribution on the same terms as other holders of Leucadia common shares.

Beneficial ownership of shares is determined under rules of the SEC and generally includes any shares over which a
person exercises sole or shared voting or investment power. We have based each of our footnotes on publicly available
information as of November 29, 2012. Except as noted by footnote, and subject to community property laws where applicable,
we believe based on the information provided to us that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and
investment power with respect to all shares of our Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by them. The address of each
director and executive officer shown in the table below is c/o Crimson Wine Group, 5901 Silverado Trail, Napa, CA 94558.

Name and Address

Number of
Shares
and Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership

Percent of
Class

Group consisting of Fairholme Capital
Management, L.L.C, Fairholme Funds, Inc.
and Bruce R. Berkowitz(a)(b)

1,813,939 7.4 %

Ian M. Cumming 2,135,930 (c) 8.7 %
Joseph S. Steinberg 2,369,345 (d) 9.7 %
Cumming Foundation 18,321 (e) *
Cumming Philanthropic Organization 10,166 (f) *
John D. Cumming 25,833 0.1 %
John D. Cumming Family Foundation 9,166 (g) *
Avraham M. Neikrug 30 *
Erle Martin � �

Patrick M. DeLong � �

Mike S. Cekay � �

All directors and executive officers as a group
(9 persons)

4,531,138 (h) 18.5 %

* Less than .1%.

(a) The business address of these beneficial owners is c/o Fairholme Capital Management, L.L.C., 4400 Biscayne Boulevard,
9th Floor, Miami, Florida 33137.

(b) The following information is based upon a Schedule 13G filed February 14, 2012, by Fairholme Capital Management,
L.L.C., Fairholme Funds, Inc. and Bruce R. Berkowitz (together, �Fairholme�). Other than 139,147 common shares
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beneficially owned by Mr. Berkowitz (the �Berkowitz shares�), the securities reported in Fairholme�s Schedule 13G are
owned by various investment vehicles managed by Fairholme Capital Management, L.L.C. (�FCM�). Because Mr.
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Berkowitz, in his capacity as the Managing Member of FCM or as President of Fairholme Funds, Inc., has voting or
dispositive power over all shares beneficially owned by FCM, he is deemed to have beneficial ownership of all such
shares so reported in Fairholme�s Schedule 13G. FCM and Fairholme Funds, Inc. disclaim beneficial ownership of the
common shares reported by them in Fairholme�s Schedule 13G; Mr. Berkowitz disclaims beneficial ownership of all of
the common shares reported in Fairholme�s Schedule 13G, other than the Berkowitz shares.

(c) Includes 21,600 (less than .1%) common shares beneficially owned by Mr. Cumming�s wife, as to which Mr. Cumming
may be deemed to be the beneficial owner.

(d)

Includes 13,920 (less than .1%) common shares beneficially owned by Mr. Steinberg�s wife and daughter, 1,876,239
(7.7%) common shares held by corporations that are wholly owned by Mr. Steinberg, or by corporations that are wholly
owned by a family trust as to which Mr. Steinberg has sole voting and dispositive control, 233,970 (1.0%) common shares
held in a trust for the benefit of Mr. Steinberg�s children as to which Mr. Steinberg may be deemed to be the beneficial
owner.

(e) Mr. Ian Cumming is a trustee and President of the Cumming Foundation and disclaims beneficial ownership of the
common shares held by the foundation.

(f) Mr. Ian Cumming is a director and President of Cumming Philanthropic Organization and disclaims beneficial ownership
of the common shares held by the organization.

(g) Mr. John D. Cumming is President and a director of the John D. Cumming Family Foundation and disclaims beneficial
ownership of the common shares held by the foundation.

(h) Includes 30 common shares owned of record by the son of a director.

Our Common Stock is subject to certain transfer restrictions. See �Description of Capital Stock�Transfer Restrictions on
our Common Stock.�
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DESCRIPTION OF INDEBTEDNESS

Crimson currently has no outstanding indebtedness.

Revolving Credit Facility

Crimson is currently negotiating a $60,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility with a bank group, comprised of an A facility
and a B facility, which together would be secured by substantially all of Crimson�s assets. Revolving credit facility A would
be for up to $10,000,000 of availability for a 5 year term, collateralized by accounts receivable, inventory and intangibles.
Term revolving credit facility B would be for up to $50,000,000, collateralized by real property, including vineyards and
certain winery facilities of Crimson. Covenants are expected to include the maintenance of specified debt and equity ratios,
limitations on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, limitations on dividends and other distributions to shareholders and
restrictions on certain mergers, consolidations and sales of assets. In addition to commitment fees ranging from 0.25% to
0.375%, rates for the borrowings will be priced based on a performance grid tied to certain financial ratios. If Crimson is
successful in obtaining this Revolving Credit Facility, it could be used to fund acquisitions and working capital requirements.
There is no guarantee that Crimson will enter into the Revolving Credit Facility on favorable terms or at all.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws will be amended and restated prior to the distribution. The following is a
summary of the material terms of our capital stock that will be contained in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation (the �certificate of incorporation�) and amended and restated bylaws (the �bylaws�), and is qualified in its
entirety by reference to these documents. You should refer to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are included
as exhibits to the registration statement of which this information statement is a part, along with the applicable provisions of
the Delaware General Corporation Law (the �DGCL�).

General

We were incorporated as a Delaware corporation on February 28, 1991 under the name �Leucadia Cellars, Ltd.� On
November 16, 2007, our name was changed to �Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.� Our authorized capital stock consists of 150
million shares of Common Stock, par value of $0.01. Following the distribution, we expect that approximately 24.5 million
shares of our Common Stock will be issued and outstanding.

Common Stock

Each holder of our Common Stock is entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon by the common
stockholders, and there are no cumulative voting rights. Holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably, the
dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to time by our board of directors out of funds legally available for that
purpose. If there is a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our company, holders of our Common Stock, would be entitled
to ratable distribution of our assets remaining after the payment in full of liabilities.

Under the terms of our certificate of incorporation, the holders of our Common Stock have no preemptive or conversion
rights or other subscription rights, and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the Common Stock.
After the distribution, all outstanding shares of our Common Stock will be fully paid and non-assessable. The rights,
preferences and privileges of the holders of our Common Stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of
the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock that we may designate and issue in the future.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Various Provisions of Delaware Law and our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

Provisions of the DGCL and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could make it more difficult to acquire us by
means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or otherwise, or to remove incumbent officers and directors. These provisions,
summarized below, are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and takeover bids that our board of
directors may consider inadequate and to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to first negotiate with our board
of directors. We believe that the benefits of increased protection of our ability to negotiate with the proponent of an unfriendly
or unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure us outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging takeover or acquisition
proposals because, among other things, negotiation of these proposals could result in improved terms for our stockholders.

Delaware Anti-Takeover Statute. In the event that we, in the future, become listed on a national securities exchange and/or
have more than 2,000 stockholders of record, we would become subject to Section 203 of the DGCL, an anti-takeover statute.
We do not anticipate having more than 2,000 stockholders of record at the time of the distribution. In general, Section 203 of
the DGCL prohibits a publicly-held Delaware corporation from engaging in a �business combination� with an �interested
stockholder� for a period of three years following the time the person became an interested stockholder, unless the business
combination or the acquisition of shares that resulted in a stockholder becoming an interested stockholder is approved in a
prescribed manner. Generally, a �business combination� includes a merger, asset or stock sale, or other transaction resulting in
a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. Generally, an �interested stockholder� is a person who, together with affiliates
and associates, owns (or within three years prior to the determination of
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interested stockholder status did own) 15% or more of a corporation�s voting stock. The existence of this provision would be
expected to have an anti-takeover effect with respect to transactions not approved in advance by the board of directors,
including discouraging attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares of Common Stock held by
stockholders.

Undesignated Preferred Stock. The authority possessed by our board of directors to issue preferred stock pursuant to our
certificate of incorporation could potentially be used to discourage attempts by third parties to obtain control of our company
through a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise by making such attempts more difficult or more costly. Our board of
directors may issue preferred stock with voting rights or conversion rights that, if exercised, could adversely affect the voting
power of the holders of common stock.

Size of Board and Vacancies. Our bylaws provide that the number of directors on our board of directors will be fixed
exclusively by our board of directors. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock then outstanding,
newly created directorships resulting from any increase in our authorized number of directors will be filled by a majority of
our board of directors then in office, provided that a majority of the entire board of directors, or a quorum, is present and any
vacancies in our board of directors resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other
cause will be filled generally, subject to the rights of certain parties, by the majority vote of our remaining directors in office,
even if less than a quorum is present.

Special Stockholder Meetings. Under our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, our board of directors may call special
meetings of our stockholders. Stockholders may not call a special meeting.

Stockholder Action by Unanimous Written Consent. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws expressly eliminate the
right of our stockholders to act by written consent other than by unanimous written consent. Stockholder action must take
place at the annual or a special meeting of our stockholders or be effected by unanimous written consent.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Stockholder Nominations and Proposals. Our bylaws establish advance notice
procedures with respect to stockholder proposals and nomination of candidates for election as directors other than nominations
made by or at the direction of our board of directors or a committee of our board.

No Cumulative Voting. The DGCL provides that stockholders are denied the right to cumulate votes in the election of
directors unless our certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Our certificate of incorporation does not provide for
cumulative voting.

Transfer Restrictions on our Common Stock

General. In order to protect our net operating loss carryforwards (�NOLs�) and other tax attributes, our Common Stock is
subject to certain transfer restrictions contained in our certificate of incorporation. The transfer restrictions impose restrictions
on the transfer of our capital shares to designated persons or the delivery of our capital shares to certain target shareholders in
connection with acquisition transactions.

Tax Law Limitations. The benefit of a company�s existing tax loss and credit carryovers, as well as the benefit of built-in
losses, can be reduced or eliminated under Section 382 of the Code. Section 382 limits the use of losses and other tax benefits
by a company that has undergone an �ownership change,� as defined in Section 382 of the Code. Generally, an �ownership
change� occurs if one or more shareholders, each of whom owns 5% or more in value of a company�s capital shares, increase
their aggregate percentage ownership by more than 50 percentage points over the lowest percentage of stock owned by such
shareholders over the preceding three-year period. For this purpose, all holders who each own less than 5% of a company�s
capital shares are generally treated together as one 5% shareholder. In addition, certain attribution rules, which generally
attribute ownership of shares to the ultimate beneficial owner thereof without regard to ownership by nominees, trusts,
corporations, partnerships or other entities and also attribute ownership between and among certain family members, are
applied in determining the level of share ownership of a particular shareholder. Options (including warrants and other rights)
to acquire capital shares may be treated as if they had been exercised, on an option-by-option basis, if the issuance, transfer or
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structuring of the option meets certain tests. All percentage determinations are based on the fair market value of a company�s
capital shares, including any preferred shares that are voting or convertible (or otherwise participate in corporate growth).

If an �ownership change� were to occur in respect of the company or any of its subsidiaries or subsidiary groups, the
amount of taxable income in any year (or portion of a year) subsequent to the ownership change that could be offset by NOLs
or other tax attributes existing (or �built-in�) prior to such �ownership change� could not exceed an amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying (1) the aggregate value of the company, the subsidiary or the subsidiary group that underwent
the �ownership change� by (2) the federal long-term tax exempt rate. Because the aggregate value of the company or any of
its subsidiaries, as well as the federal long-term tax-exempt rate, fluctuate, it is impossible to predict with any accuracy the
annual limitation upon the amount of taxable income that could be offset by such NOLs or other tax attributes (and �built-in�
losses) were an �ownership change� to occur in the future. However, if such limitation were to exceed the taxable income
against which it otherwise would be applied for any year following an �ownership change,� the limitation for the ensuing year
would be increased by the amount of such excess.

Description of Transfer Restrictions. Our certificate of incorporation generally restricts until December 31, 2022 (or
earlier, in certain events) any (1) attempted transfer of our Common Stock or any other securities that would be treated as our
�stock� under the applicable tax regulations (which we refer to as �Crimson Stock�) or (2) issuance of Crimson Stock by us to
a target shareholder in connection with an acquisition transaction (which we refer to as an �acquisition issuance�) if any
person or group of persons would become a �5% shareholder� under the tax regulations or would be treated as owning 5% or
more of our Common Stock as a result of such transfer or issuance. The transfer restrictions also restrict any attempted
transfer of Crimson Stock if such attempted transfer would increase the ownership percentage, as determined under applicable
tax regulations, of any person or group of persons who is a �5% shareholder� or treated as owning 5% or more of our
Common Stock. This would include, among other things, an attempted acquisition of Crimson Stock from an existing 5%
shareholder. For these purposes, numerous rules of attribution, aggregation and calculation prescribed under the Code (and
related regulations) will be applied in determining whether the 5% thresholds have been met and whether a group exists. The
transfer restrictions may also apply to proscribe the creation or transfer of certain �options,� which are broadly defined, in
respect of the Crimson Stock.

The transfer restrictions will restrict a shareholder�s ability to acquire additional Crimson Stock in excess of the specified
limitations. Furthermore, in the case of certain large shareholders, the ability to dispose of Crimson Stock currently held, or
any other Crimson Stock which the shareholder may acquire, may be restricted as a result of the transfer restrictions.

Generally, the restriction is imposed only with respect to the number of shares of Crimson Stock, or options with respect
to Crimson Stock (the �Excess Stock�), purportedly transferred or otherwise deliverable in an acquisition issuance in excess
of the thresholds established in the transfer restrictions. In any event, the restriction does not prevent a valid transfer if either
the transferor or the purported transferee, in the case of a transfer, or the company or the applicable target shareholder, in the
case of an acquisition issuance, obtains the approval of our board of directors.

Except for acquisition issuances, acquisitions of Crimson Stock directly from us, whether by way of option exercise or
otherwise, are not subject to the transfer restrictions. Consequently, persons or entities that are able to acquire Crimson Stock
directly from us, other than in an acquisition issuance, including our employees, officers and directors, may do so without
application of the transfer restrictions, irrespective of the number of shares of Crimson Stock they are acquiring. As a result,
those persons or entities dealing directly with us may be seen to receive an advantage over persons or entities who are not able
to acquire Crimson Stock directly from us and, therefore, are restricted by the terms of the transfer restrictions. It should be
noted, however, that any direct acquisitions of Crimson Stock from us first requires board approval and in granting such
approval, the board will review the implications of any such issuance for our NOLs and other tax attributes.
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Our board of directors has the discretion to approve a transfer or acquisition issuance of Crimson Stock that would
otherwise violate the transfer restrictions. Nonetheless, if the board of directors decides to permit a transfer or acquisition
issuance that would otherwise violate the transfer restrictions, that transfer or delivery or later transfers or deliveries would,
under the tax rules, be aggregated with other transfers or deliveries and could result in a later �ownership change� that would
limit the use of the tax attributes of Crimson. The board of directors intends to consider any attempted transfer or acquisition
issuance individually and determine at the time whether it is in the best interest of our company, after consideration of any
factors that the board deems relevant, to permit the transfer or acquisition issuance notwithstanding that an �ownership
change� may occur.

Our certificate of incorporation further provides that all certificates representing Crimson Stock bear the following
legend:

�THE TRANSFER OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY IS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IX OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
REPRINTED IN ITS ENTIRETY ON THE BACK OF THIS CERTIFICATE.�

In accordance with the transfer restrictions, we will not permit any of our employees or agents, including the transfer
agent, to record any transfer or acquisition issuance of Excess Stock. As a result, requested transfers of Crimson Stock may be
delayed or refused.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that any transfer or acquisition issuance attempted in violation of the restrictions
would be void ab initio, even if the transfer or acquisition issuance has been recorded by the transfer agent and new
certificates issued. The purported transferee or holder of the Crimson Stock would not be entitled to any rights of shareholders
with respect to the Excess Stock, including the right to vote the Excess Stock, or to receive dividends or distributions in
liquidation in respect thereof, if any.

If an acquisition issuance would result in the delivery of Excess Stock to a target shareholder, the company would deliver
the Excess Stock to the agent instead of the target shareholder who would otherwise receive the Excess Stock in connection
with the acquisition issuance (referred to as a �purported holder�). Similarly, if our board of directors determines that a
purported transfer or acquisition issuance has violated the transfer restrictions, we will require the purported transferee or
purported holder to surrender the Excess Stock, and any dividends the purported transferee or purported holder has received
on the Excess Stock, to an agent designated by the board of directors. In each case, the agent will then sell the Excess Stock in
one or more arm�s-length transactions, executed on the over-the-counter market or any stock exchange on which the
applicable Crimson Stock is listed, if possible, to a buyer or buyers, which may include us; provided that nothing will require
the agent to sell the Excess Stock within any specific time frame if, in the agent�s discretion, the sale would disrupt the market
for the Crimson Stock or have an adverse effect on the value of the Crimson Stock. If the purported transferee or purported
holder has sold the Excess Stock before receiving our demand to surrender the Excess Stock, the purported transferee or
purported holder generally will be required to transfer to the agent the proceeds of the sale and any distributions the purported
transferee or purported holder has received on the Excess Stock. From any net sales proceeds or amounts received from a
purported transferee or purported holder, which in certain circumstances may be reduced by the agent�s expenses, the agent
will reimburse the purported transferee or purported holder for the price paid for the Excess Stock or the fair market value of
the Excess Stock as of the close of the day prior to the acquisition issuance (or the attempted transfer to the purported
transferee by gift, inheritance or similar transfer). Any remaining proceeds will then be paid to one or more charities selected
by our board of directors.

The transfer restrictions and related provisions contained in our bylaws may be deemed to have an �anti-takeover� effect
because they restrict the ability of a person or entity, or group of persons or entities, from accumulating in the aggregate at
least 5% of the total value of the Crimson Stock or 5% of our Common Stock and the ability of persons, entities or groups
whose ownership of Crimson Stock meets either of these thresholds from acquiring additional Crimson Stock. The transfer
restrictions discourage or prohibit accumulations of substantial blocks of shares for which shareholders might receive a
premium above market value.
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Notwithstanding the restrictions, however, there remains a risk that certain changes in relationships among shareholders
or other events will cause a change of ownership to occur under Section 382 of the Code. Further, there can be no assurance,
in the event transfers or acquisition issuances in violation of the transfer restrictions are attempted, that the IRS will not assert
that those transfers or acquisition issuances have federal income tax significance notwithstanding the transfer restrictions. As a
result, the transfer restrictions serve to reduce, but not necessarily eliminate, the risk that Section 382 of the Code will cause
the limitations described above on the use of tax attributes of Crimson.

The determination of 5% shareholder status is based upon a holder�s percentage ownership, taking into account certain
rules of attribution, of the total value of the outstanding Crimson Stock, which currently consists of only our Common Stock.
Future changes in the capitalization of Crimson may affect who will be deemed a 5% shareholder, thereby affecting the
applicability of the transfer restrictions to future transfers or acquisition issuances of Crimson Stock.

Holders are advised to carefully monitor their ownership of Common Stock (and any future securities of Crimson that
may constitute Crimson Stock for purposes of the transfer restrictions) and should consult their own legal advisors and/or
Crimson to determine whether their ownership approaches the prohibited level.

Limitations on Liability, Indemnification of Officers and Directors, and Insurance

The DGCL authorizes corporations to limit or eliminate the personal liability of directors to corporations and their
stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of directors� fiduciary duties as directors and our certificate of incorporation
includes such an exculpation provision. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws include provisions that indemnify, to the
fullest extent allowable under the DGCL, the personal liability of directors and officers for monetary damages for actions
taken as a director or officer of us, or for serving at our request as a director or officer or another position at another
corporation or enterprise, as the case may be. Our bylaws also provide that we must indemnify and advance reasonable
expenses to our directors and officers, subject to our receipt of an undertaking from the indemnified party as may be required
under the DGCL. We are also expressly authorized to carry directors� and officers� insurance to protect us, our directors,
officers and certain employees for some liabilities. The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions in our certificate
of incorporation and bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against directors for breach of their
fiduciary duty. These provisions may also have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors
and officers, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. However, these
provisions do not limit or eliminate our rights, or those of any stockholder, to seek non-monetary relief such as injunction or
rescission in the event of a breach of a director�s duty of care. The provisions do not alter the liability of directors under the
federal securities laws. In addition, your investment may be adversely affected to the extent that, in a class action or direct suit,
we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions.
There is currently no pending material litigation or proceeding against any of our directors, officers or employees for which
indemnification is sought.

Crimson expects to maintain standard policies of insurance that provide coverage (i) to its directors and officers against
loss rising from claims made by reason of breach of duty or other wrongful act and (ii) to Crimson with respect to
indemnification payments that it may make to such directors and officers. Currently, such insurance coverage is provided
through Leucadia�s coverage.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

None.

Authorized but Unissued Shares

Our authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock will be available for future issuance without your approval. We
may use additional shares for a variety of purposes, including future

46

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


public offerings to raise additional capital, to fund acquisitions and as employee compensation. The existence of authorized
but unissued shares of Common Stock could render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of
a proxy contest, tender offer, merger or otherwise.

Shares Eligible for Future Sale

Shares of our Common Stock distributed to holders in connection with the distribution will be transferable without
registration under the Securities Act except for shares received by persons who may be deemed to be our affiliates. Persons
who may be deemed to be our affiliates after the distribution generally include individuals or entities that control, are
controlled by or are under common control with us, which may include certain of our executive officers, directors or principal
stockholders. Securities held by our affiliates will be subject to resale restrictions under the Securities Act. Our affiliates will
be permitted to sell shares of our Common Stock only pursuant to an effective registration statement or an exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemption afforded by Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

Quotation

We expect that our Common Stock will be quoted on OTC Link under the symbol � .� Before our Common Stock can be
quoted on OTC Link, a market maker who desires to initiate the quotation must complete a Form 211 application (unless there
is an applicable exemption) and by doing so, will have to represent that it has satisfied all applicable requirements of
Exchange Act Rule 15c2-11 and the filing and information requirements promulgated under the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority (�FINRA�) Rule 6432. FINRA will review the market maker�s application before permitting our Common Stock to
be quoted on OTC Link.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our Common Stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC.
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THE DISTRIBUTION

Reasons for the Distribution

As previously announced, the separation is a condition precedent to the completion of the transactions contemplated by
the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated November 11, 2012, among Leucadia and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Limestone
Merger Sub, LLC, and Jefferies and its subsidiaries, JSP Holdings, Inc., and Jasper Merger Sub, Inc. Jefferies has advised
Leucadia that Jefferies� management deemed Crimson as less strategically relevant than Leucadia�s other subsidiaries,
ascribing a value to Crimson no greater than approximately its book carrying value. As such, in assessing and negotiating the
terms of the transaction with Leucadia, Jefferies� management advised Leucadia that Jefferies viewed the pre-transaction
divestiture of Crimson through the Leucadia winery business separation an efficient and desirable method of divesting
Crimson, as compared with a post-transaction sale or other divestiture. It was therefore agreed between Jefferies and Leucadia
that that the separation occur prior to consummation of the transactions, without reducing the book value of Leucadia by more
than $197 million and that it be effected without Leucadia retaining any material liability with respect to Crimson.

In addition, Leucadia believes that the separation will ultimately enhance Crimson�s ability to raise debt or equity capital
should it need to do so, as the business and value proposition will be more clearly defined. Crimson owns wineries engaged in
the production and sale of premium, ultra-premium and luxury wines, with different physical, operating, geographic and
strategic characteristics than Leucadia�s other businesses. The distribution will enable investors or lenders to separately value
Crimson as a stand-alone entity. Investors will have the flexibility to own both Leucadia and Crimson stock separately or in
combination.

In approving the Jefferies transaction, the Leucadia board of directors understood that the distribution was a condition to
consummation of the Jefferies transaction and agreed to distribute Crimson shares to Leucadia shareholders prior to
consummation of the Jefferies transaction. The reasons for the board of directors� decision are described above.

The distribution is subject to a number of conditions. For a complete discussion of the conditions to the distribution, see
��Separation Agreement�Conditions to the Separation and Distribution.�

Distribution Structure and Distribution Ratio

Prior to the distribution, all of our Common Stock is held by Leucadia. To effect the distribution, Leucadia will distribute
to its shareholders all of its shares of our Common Stock.

For every 10 Leucadia common shares that is held at the close of business on , the record date, you will receive one share
of our Common Stock. For example, if you own 1,000 Leucadia common shares, you will receive 100 shares of our Common
Stock. Immediately after the distribution, you will own our Common Stock as well as continue to own Leucadia shares.
Fractional shares will not be distributed. Fractional shares will be aggregated and, after the distribution, sold in the public
market by the distribution agent and the aggregate net cash proceeds will be distributed ratably to those stockholders of record
otherwise entitled to fractional interests. See �Manner of Effecting the Distribution� below.

Distribution Agent

The distribution agent is American Stock Trust & Transfer Company, LLC.

Manner of Effecting the Distribution

The distribution will be made, at no charge, on , the distribution date, to each holder of Leucadia�s common shares who
is a record holder on , the record date. Prior to the distribution date, Leucadia will deliver all outstanding shares of our
Common Stock to the distribution agent for distribution. For Leucadia shareholders who own Leucadia common shares in
certificated form as of the close of business on the record date, the distribution agent will mail to
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such shareholders a share certificate representing shares of our Common Stock that such shareholders are entitled to receive in
the distribution. For Leucadia shareholders who hold Leucadia common shares as of the close of business on the record date in
a brokerage account, the broker will see that such shareholder�s holdings are properly adjusted for the distribution. Additional
shares will be directly deposited in book-entry form into such shareholder�s brokerage account. Each Leucadia common
shareholder will receive one share of our Common Stock for every 10 Leucadia common shares owned by it of record on the
record date, subject to the treatment of fractional shares described below.

Leucadia shareholders will not be required to pay for the shares of our Common Stock received in the distribution, or to
surrender or exchange Leucadia securities in order to receive our Common Stock. No vote of Leucadia shareholders is
required or sought in connection with the distribution, and Leucadia shareholders have no appraisal rights in connection with
the distribution.

No certificates representing fractional shares will be issued to Leucadia shareholders as part of the distribution. In lieu of
receiving fractional shares of our Common Stock, each record holder of common shares of Leucadia who would otherwise be
entitled to receive a fractional interest in our Common Stock will receive cash. The distribution agent will, as soon as
practicable after the distribution date, aggregate and sell all such fractional interests on OTC Link at then-prevailing market
prices and distribute the aggregate proceeds (net of brokerage fees) ratably to Leucadia shareholders of record otherwise
entitled to fractional interests. See �Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences� below for a discussion of the
U.S. federal income tax treatment of fractional interests.

IN ORDER TO BE ENTITLED TO RECEIVE OUR COMMON STOCK IN THE DISTRIBUTION, LEUCADIA
SHAREHOLDERS MUST BE HOLDERS OF RECORD AT THE CLOSE OF BUSINESS ON THE RECORD DATE, .

Results of the Distribution

Immediately after the distribution we expect to have approximately holders of record of our Common Stock and
approximately 24.5 million shares of our Common Stock outstanding, based on the number of holders of record of outstanding
Leucadia common shares on , and the distribution ratio of one share of our Common Stock for every 10 Leucadia common
shares outstanding. The actual number of shares of Common Stock to be distributed will be determined as of the record date.
The distribution will not affect the number of outstanding Leucadia common shares or any rights of Leucadia security holders.

Quotation of Our Common Stock

We expect that our Common Stock will be quoted on OTC Link under the symbol � .� Before our Common Stock can be
quoted on OTC Link, a market maker who desires to initiate the quotation must complete a Form 211 application (unless there
is an applicable exemption) and by doing so, will have to represent that it has satisfied all applicable requirements of
Exchange Act Rule 15c2-11 and the filing and information requirements promulgated under FINRA Rule 6432. FINRA will
review the market maker�s application before permitting our Common Stock to be quoted on OTC Link.

Trading Between the Record Date and Distribution Date

Beginning shortly before the record date and continuing up to and including through the distribution date, we expect that
Leucadia common shares will trade on the �regular-way� market. Leucadia common shares that trade on the �regular-way�
market will trade with an entitlement to our Common Stock distributed pursuant to the separation. Therefore, if you sell shares
of Leucadia common shares in the �regular-way� market up to and including through the distribution date, you will be selling
your right to receive our Common Stock in the distribution. In addition, it is expected that �ex- distribution� trading for
Leucadia common shares will commence the first business day after
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the distribution date. Leucadia common shares that trade on the �ex-distribution� market will trade without an entitlement to
our Common Stock distributed pursuant to the distribution.

Furthermore, beginning on or shortly before the record date and continuing up to and including the distribution date, there
may be a �when-issued� market in our Common Stock. �When-issued� trading refers to a sale or purchase made conditionally
because the security has been authorized but not yet issued. The �when-issued� trading market will be a market for our
Common Stock that will be distributed to holders of Leucadia common shares on the distribution date. If you owned Leucadia
common shares at the close of business on the record date, you would be entitled to our Common Stock distributed pursuant to
the distribution. You may trade this entitlement to shares of our Common Stock, without the Leucadia common shares you
own, on the �when-issued� market. On the first trading day following the distribution date, �when-issued� trading with
respect to our Common Stock will end, and �regular-way� trading will begin.

Our Relationship with Leucadia Following the Distribution

Following the distribution, we and Leucadia will operate our businesses separately, each as an independent company. We
and Leucadia will enter into certain agreements that effect the separation of Crimson from Leucadia, provide a framework for
our relationship with Leucadia after the separation and provide for the allocation between us and Leucadia of certain assets,
liabilities, employees and obligations attributable to periods prior to, at and after the separation. The following is a summary
of the terms of the material agreements that we expect to enter into with Leucadia prior to or in connection with the
separation. When used in this section, �distribution date� refers to the date on which the distribution occurs.

The material agreements described below are exhibits to the registration statement of which this information statement
forms a part and the summary of each of these agreements sets forth the terms of the agreements that we believe are material.
These summaries are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of the applicable agreements, which are
incorporated by reference into the registration statement.

Separation Agreement

We will enter into a separation agreement with Leucadia which will set forth, among other things, our agreements with
Leucadia regarding the principal transactions necessary to separate us from Leucadia. It will also set forth the other
agreements that govern certain aspects of our relationship with Leucadia after the distribution date. These other agreements
are described in additional detail below.

Conditions to the Separation and Distribution

The separation agreement will provide that the separation and the distribution are subject to the satisfaction of the
following material conditions (each of which can be waived by the party entitled to do so under the separation agreement):

� the contribution to capital of the due to Leucadia and its affiliates balance prior to the distribution;

�
the SEC declaring effective a registration statement and no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the registration
statement in effect, no proceedings for such purpose pending before or threatened by the SEC and the mailing of this
information statement to holders of Leucadia common shares as of the record date;

� the transaction agreements relating to the separation having been duly executed and delivered by the parties;

�
no order, injunction or decree issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition
preventing consummation of the distribution or any of the related transactions in effect; and
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�
no event or development having occurred or existing that, in the judgment of Leucadia�s board of directors, in its sole
discretion, makes it inadvisable to effect the distribution and other related transactions.

In addition, the separation agreement will provide that Leucadia will be required to make a cash capital contribution to
Crimson after the distribution, in the maximum amount (estimated to be approximately $13 million, but in no event exceeding
$20 million) such that, when taken together with the contribution of the due to Leucadia and its affiliates balance referred to
above, the distribution would not reduce the book value of Leucadia by more than $197 million.

Leucadia will have the sole and absolute discretion to determine (and change) the terms of, and whether to proceed with,
the distribution and, to the extent it determines to so proceed, to determine the record date and the distribution date. Leucadia
does not intend to notify its shareholders of any modifications to the terms of the separation that, in the judgment of its board
of directors, are not material. To the extent that the Leucadia board of directors determines that any modifications by Leucadia
materially change the material terms of the distribution, Leucadia will notify its shareholders in a manner reasonably
calculated to inform them about the modification as may be required by law, by, for example, publishing a press release, filing
a current report on Form 8-K, or circulating a supplement to the information statement.

Legal Matters

Each party to the separation agreement will assume the liability for, and control of, all pending, threatened and unasserted
legal matters related to its own business or its assumed or retained liabilities and will indemnify the other party for any
liability arising out of or resulting from such assumed legal matters. In the event of any third-party claims that name both
companies as defendants but that do not primarily relate to either our business or Leucadia�s business, each party will
cooperate with the other party to defend against such claims. Each party will cooperate in defending any claims against the
other for events that are related to the separation, but may have taken place prior to, on or after such date.

Insurance

The separation agreement will provide for the allocation among the parties of rights and obligations under existing
insurance policies with respect to occurrences prior to the separation and sets forth procedures for the administration of
insured claims. In addition, the separation agreement will allocate between the parties the right to proceeds and the obligation
to incur certain deductibles under certain insurance policies. On the distribution date, Crimson will be required to have in
place all insurance programs to comply with its contractual obligations and as reasonably necessary for its business.

Other Matters

Other matters governed by the separation agreement will include, among others, access to financial and other records and
information, intellectual property, legal privilege, confidentiality and access to and provision of records.

Administrative Services Agreement

We and Leucadia will enter into the administrative services agreement whereby Leucadia or its subsidiaries will provide
to us certain administrative services following the separation. We may terminate certain specified services by giving prior
written notice to Leucadia of any such termination.

The administrative services agreement will have an initial term of one year, an evergreen renewal for subsequent annual
periods and will be terminable by either party on six months prior notice.

The services that Leucadia will provide to us include SEC and tax filing services and certain other corporate services. The
charges for the administrative services generally are intended to allow
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Leucadia to fully recover the costs directly associated with providing the services, plus out-of-pocket costs and expenses. The
charges of each of the administrative services will generally be fixed and pass-through out-of-pocket costs.

Tax Matters Agreement

We and Leucadia will enter into a tax matters agreement which will govern the parties� respective rights, responsibilities
and obligations with respect to taxes, the preparation and filing of tax returns, the control of audits and other tax proceedings
and assistance and cooperation in respect of tax matters (the �Tax Matters Agreement�). As a member of Leucadia�s
consolidated U.S. federal income tax group, we have (and will continue to have following the distribution) joint and several
liability with Leucadia for the consolidated U.S. federal income taxes of the Leucadia group relating to the taxable periods in
which we were part of the group. Under the Tax Matters Agreement, however, Leucadia will agree to indemnify us against
this liability and any similar liability for U.S. state or local income taxes that are determined on a consolidated, combined,
unitary or similar basis for each taxable period in which we are included in such consolidated, combined, unitary or similar
group with Leucadia. We will remain responsible for any income taxes that are not determined on a consolidated, combined,
unitary or similar basis with Leucadia.

Under the Tax Matters Agreement, we will covenant not to take actions that would jeopardize the tax-free nature of the
distribution. The Tax Matters Agreement will also provide rules for allocating tax liabilities in the event that the distribution is
not tax-free. We will agree to indemnify Leucadia for such tax liabilities that are attributable to the failure of certain
representations made by us or our affiliates to be true when made, certain actions by us or our affiliates or changes in
ownership of our Common Stock.

Our obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement will not be contractually limited in amount or subject to any cap.
Further, even if we are not responsible for tax liabilities of Leucadia and its subsidiaries under the Tax Matters Agreement, we
nonetheless could be liable under applicable tax law for such liabilities if Leucadia were to fail to pay them or to indemnify us
under the Tax Matters Agreement.
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MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following is a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to the holders of Leucadia common
shares in connection with the distribution. The discussion is based on the Code, the Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder and judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, in each case as in effect and available as of the date of this
information statement and all of which are subject to change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect. Any such change
could affect the tax consequences described below.

Except for the discussion below in �Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences�United States Real
Property Holding Corporation Status�, this summary is limited to holders of Leucadia common shares that are U.S. Holders,
as defined immediately below. A U.S. Holder is a beneficial owner of Leucadia common shares that is, for U.S. federal
income tax purposes:

� an individual who is a citizen or a resident of the United States;

�
a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized under
the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

� an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

�

a trust, if (i) a court within the United States is able to exercise primary jurisdiction over its administration and one or
more United States persons have the authority to control all of its substantial decisions, or (ii) in the case of a trust that
was treated as a domestic trust under the law in effect before 1997, a valid election is in place under applicable Treasury
Regulations.

This summary also does not discuss all tax considerations that may be relevant to shareholders in light of their particular
circumstances, nor does it address the consequences to shareholders subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income
tax laws, such as:

� dealers or traders in securities or currencies;

� tax-exempt entities;

� banks, financial institutions or insurance companies;

� real estate investment trusts, regulated investment companies or grantor trusts;

�
persons who acquired Leucadia common shares pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as
compensation;

� shareholders who own, or are deemed to own, at least 10% or more, by voting power or value, of Leucadia equity;

�
holders owning Leucadia common shares as part of a position in a straddle or as part of a hedging, conversion or other
risk reduction transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

� certain former citizens or long-term residents of the United States;

� holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar; or

� holders who are subject to the alternative minimum tax.

If a partnership (or any other entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds Leucadia common
shares, the tax treatment of a partner in such partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of
the partnership. Such a partner or partnership should consult its own tax advisor as to its tax consequences.

This summary does not address the U.S. federal income tax consequences to Leucadia shareholders who do not hold
Leucadia common shares as a capital asset. Moreover, this summary does not address any state, local or foreign tax
consequences or any estate, gift or other non-income tax consequences.
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YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR WITH RESPECT TO THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL
AND FOREIGN TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE DISTRIBUTION.

The distribution is conditioned upon Leucadia�s receipt of a favorable opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
confirming that the distribution will not result in the recognition, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, of gain or loss to
Leucadia or its shareholders, except to the extent of cash that they receive in lieu of fractional shares. Counsel�s tax opinion
does not address whether, in connection with the distribution, we, Leucadia or any of our respective affiliates will recognize
gains, if any, relating to prior intercompany transactions. The opinion will be based on the assumption that, the representations
and undertakings made, and information submitted, in connection with it are accurate. Subject to the qualifications and
limitations described in this information statement and the tax opinion, Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP, Leucadia�s tax counsel,
is of the opinion that for U.S. federal income tax purposes the consequences of the distribution will be as described below.

� The distribution generally will not result in any taxable income, gain or loss to Leucadia;

�
You will not recognize any gain or loss, or include any amount in income, in connection with the distribution, except
with respect to any cash that you receive in lieu of fractional shares;

�

Your aggregate tax basis in your Leucadia shares and our Common Stock that you receive in the distribution (including
any fractional shares to which you would be entitled) immediately after the distribution will equal your aggregate tax
basis that you had in your Leucadia common shares on which the distribution was made, allocated in proportion to the
fair market value of each on the date of the distribution; and

�

Your holding period of our Common Stock will include your holding period of your Leucadia common shares on which
the distribution was made, provided that you held such Leucadia common shares as a capital asset on the date of the
distribution.

If you have acquired different blocks of Leucadia common shares at different times or at different prices, you should
consult your tax advisors regarding the allocation of your aggregate adjusted basis among, and holding period of, shares of our
Common Stock distributed with respect to such blocks of Leucadia common shares.

Cash in Lieu of Fractional Shares

If you receive cash in lieu of a fractional share of our Common Stock in the distribution, you will be treated as though you
first received a distribution of the fractional share in the distribution and then sold it for the amount of cash you receive. You
will generally recognize capital gain or loss on that deemed sale of the fractional interest, provided that the fractional share is
considered to be held as a capital asset, measured by the difference between the cash you receive for such fractional share and
your tax basis in that fractional share, as determined above. Such capital gain or loss will be a long-term capital gain or loss if
your holding period for your Leucadia common shares on which the distribution was made is more than one year on the
distribution date. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations under the Code.

Tax Consequences if the Distribution Fails to Qualify for Tax-Free Treatment

Leucadia has not requested, and does not intend to request, a private letter ruling from the IRS confirming that the
distribution will be tax-free to shareholders of Leucadia for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Leucadia has made it a
condition to the distribution that Leucadia obtain an opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP confirming that the distribution
will not result in the recognition, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, of gain or loss to Leucadia or its shareholders, except
to the extent of cash received in lieu of fractional shares. The opinion will be based on various factual representations and
assumptions, as well as certain undertakings made by Leucadia and us. If any of those factual representations or assumptions
were untrue or incomplete in any material respect, any undertaking was not complied with, or the facts upon which the
opinion is based were materially different, the distribution may not qualify for tax-free treatment. Opinions of tax counsel are
not binding on the IRS. As a result, the conclusions expressed in the opinion of tax counsel could be
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challenged by the IRS, and if the IRS prevails in such challenge, the tax consequences to you could be materially less
favorable.

If the distribution were not to qualify as a tax-free transaction, Leucadia would recognize taxable gain equal to the excess,
if any, of the fair market value of our Common Stock distributed to Leucadia shareholders over Leucadia�s tax basis in our
Common Stock. In addition, you would generally be treated as receiving a distribution in an amount equal to the fair market
value of our Common Stock received, which would generally result in:

� a taxable dividend to the extent of your pro rata share of Leucadia�s current and accumulated earnings and profits;

�
a reduction in your basis (but not below zero) in Leucadia common shares to the extent the amount received exceeds
your share of Leucadia�s earnings and profits; and

�
a taxable gain from the exchange of Leucadia common shares to the extent the amount received exceeds both your
share of Leucadia�s earnings and profits and the basis in your Leucadia common shares.

Indemnification Obligation

Even if the distribution otherwise qualifies for tax-free treatment, it may be disqualified as tax-free to Leucadia under
Section 355(e) of the Code if 50% or more (by vote or value) of the stock of either Leucadia or us is acquired as part of a plan
or series of related transactions that include the distribution. For this purpose, any acquisitions of Leucadia or our stock within
two years before or after the distribution are presumed to be part of such a plan, although Leucadia or we may be able to rebut
that presumption. If such an acquisition of our stock or Leucadia shares triggers the application of Section 355(e) of the Code,
Leucadia would recognize taxable gain, if any, as described above with respect to the distribution, but the distribution would
generally be tax-free to each Leucadia shareholder.

Although taxes resulting from the distribution not qualifying for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes
generally would be imposed on Leucadia and shareholders of Leucadia, under the Tax Matters Agreement, we would be
required to indemnify Leucadia and its affiliates against all tax-related liabilities caused by the failure of the distribution to
qualify for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes (including as a result of events subsequent to the
distribution that caused Leucadia to recognize gain under Section 355(e) of the Code) to the extent these liabilities arise as a
result of an action taken by us or our affiliates (other than Leucadia), are attributable to changes in ownership of our Common
Stock or otherwise result from any breach of any representation, covenant or obligation of us or our affiliates (other than
Leucadia) under the Tax Matters Agreement or any other agreement entered into by us in connection with the distribution.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments of cash in lieu of a fractional share of our Common Stock may, under certain circumstances, be subject to
�backup withholding,� unless you provide proof of an applicable exemption or a correct taxpayer identification number, and
otherwise comply with the requirements of the backup withholding rules. Corporations and holders other than U.S. Holders
will generally be exempt from backup withholding, but may be required to provide a certification to establish their entitlement
to the exemption. Backup withholding does not constitute an additional tax, but is merely an advance payment that may be
refunded or credited against a holder�s U.S. federal income tax liability if the required information is supplied to the IRS.

U.S. Treasury Regulations require each U.S. Holder that immediately before the distribution owned 5% or more (by vote
or value) of the total outstanding shares of Leucadia to attach to such shareholder�s U.S. federal income tax return for the year
in which our Common Stock is received a statement setting forth certain information related to the distribution.
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United States Real Property Holding Corporation Status

A holder of our Common Stock that is not a U.S. Holder (�non-U.S. Holder�) could be subject to U.S. federal income tax
on gain from a disposition of our Common Stock if we are or have been a �United States real property holding corporation�
(�USRPHC�) for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time within the shorter of the five-year period preceding the
disposition or the non-U.S. Holders�s holding period for our Common Stock. We anticipate that we likely will be a USRPHC.
The determination of whether we are a USRPHC depends on the fair market value of our United States real property interests
relative to the fair market value of our other trade or business assets and our non-U.S. real property interests. Even if we are or
become a USRPHC, as long as our Common Stock is regularly traded on an established securities market (as determined for
these purposes), a non-U.S. Holder�s disposition of our Common Stock generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income
tax provided that such non-U.S. Holder does not actually or constructively hold more than 5 percent of our Common Stock
during the applicable period.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement on Form 10 with the SEC with respect to the shares of our Common Stock being
distributed as contemplated by this information statement. This information statement is a part of, and does not contain all of
the information set forth in, the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules to the registration statement. For further
information with respect to us and our Common Stock, please refer to the registration statement, including its exhibits and
schedules. Statements made in this information statement relating to any contract or other document are not necessarily
complete, and you should refer to the exhibits attached to the registration statement for copies of the actual contract or
document. You may review a copy of the registration statement, including its exhibits and schedules, at the SEC�s public
reference room, located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 as well as on
the Internet website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. Information contained on any website referenced in this
information statement is not incorporated by reference in this information statement.

As a result of the distribution, we will become subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Exchange Act
and, in accordance with the Exchange Act, we will file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC,
which will be available on the Internet website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov.

You should rely only on the information contained in this information statement or to which we have referred you. We
have not authorized any person to provide you with different information or to make any representation not contained in this
information statement.

You may obtain a copy of any of our filings, at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at:

Crimson Wine Group
5901 Silverado Trail

Napa, CA 94558
Attention: Investor Relations

(800) 486-0503
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
Crimson Wine Group, Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Crimson Wine Group, Ltd., as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Santa Rosa, California
January 11, 2013
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $5,631 $3,699
Accounts receivable, net 4,606 1,778
Inventory 39,006 24,846
Other current assets 679 401

Total current assets 49,922 30,724
Property and equipment, net 110,783 64,263
Goodwill 1,053 �

Other intangible assets, net 21,540 177
Total $183,298 $95,164

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $2,518 $767
Accrued expenses 3,389 1,815
Customer deposits 328 319
Due to Leucadia National Corporation and its affiliates 106,441 103,421
Debt due within one year � 44

Total current liabilities 112,676 106,366
Due to Leucadia National Corporation 45,000 �

Long-term debt � 22
Total liabilities 157,676 106,388

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 12 and 13)
EQUITY
Common shares, par value $1 per share, authorized 1,000 shares; 1,000 shares issued and

outstanding
1 1

Additional paid-in capital 112,546 71,390
Retained deficit (86,925 ) (82,615 )

Total equity 25,622 (11,224 )
Total $183,298 $95,164

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales $39,306 $23,762 $21,700
Cost of sales 23,445 14,618 16,585

Gross profit 15,861 9,144 5,115
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 9,280 6,474 5,545
General and administrative 6,704 3,482 3,747

Total operating expenses 15,984 9,956 9,292
Loss from operations (123 ) (812 ) (4,177 )
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (4,495 ) (3,479 ) (3,408 )
Other income (expense), net 311 (24 ) 180

Total other income (expense) (4,184 ) (3,503 ) (3,228 )
Loss before income taxes (4,307 ) (4,315 ) (7,405 )
Income tax provision (benefit) 3 3 (145 )
Net loss $(4,310 ) $(4,318 ) $(7,260 )
Basic and fully diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 1 1 1
Basic and fully diluted net loss per share $(4,310 ) $(4,318 ) $(7,260 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Net cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $(4,310 ) $(4,318) $(7,260)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operations:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 4,977 3,572 3,773
Leucadia National Corporation and its affiliates interest expense added to

principal
3,522 2,087 3,389

Loss on write-down of inventory 51 1,513 4,662
Amortization of intangible assets 887 10 10
Provision for doubtful accounts 74 � 7
Net loss (gain) related to disposals of property and equipment 51 (19 ) 7

Net change in:
Receivables (775 ) (486 ) (287 )
Inventory (1,389 ) (205 ) (2,527)
Other current assets (45 ) (77 ) 364
Accounts payable, expense accruals and due to Leucadia National Corporation

and its affiliates
1,946 (152 ) (1,074)

Customer deposits 9 (56 ) 171
Income taxes payable � 148 (148 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,998 2,017 1,087

Net cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (3,407 ) (2,498) (2,149)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 269 1,611 575
Acquisition of Seghesio, net of cash acquired (86,018) � �

Net cash used for investing activities (89,156) (887 ) (1,574)
Net cash flows from financing activities:

Capital contribution 41,156 � �

Issuance of debt to Leucadia National Corporation 45,000 � �

Reduction of debt (66 ) (158 ) (147 )
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 86,090 (158 ) (147 )
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,932 972 (634 )

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1, 3,699 2,727 3,361
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, $5,631 $3,699 $2,727

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $973 $1,392 $19
Income tax payments (refunds), net $1 $(147 ) $1

Non-cash financing activity:
Conversion of accrued interest to long-term debt $3,522 $2,087 $3,389

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Common Shares
$1 Par Value

Additional
Paid-In Capital

Retained
Deficit Total

(In thousands, except par value)
Balance, January 1, 2009 $ 1 $ 71,390 $(71,037) $354

Net loss (7,260 ) (7,260 )
Balance, December 31, 2009 1 71,390 (78,297) (6,906 )

Net loss (4,318 ) (4,318 )
Balance, December 31, 2010 1 71,390 (82,615) (11,224)

Net loss (4,310 ) (4,310 )
Capital contribution 41,156 41,156

Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1 $ 112,546 $(86,925) $25,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Explanatory Note:

The Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. (�Crimson�) is a Delaware company that has been operating since 1991. As used herein,
the term, �Company� refers to Crimson and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, except as the context may otherwise require.
Crimson is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leucadia National Corporation (�Leucadia�). Leucadia intends to distribute
Crimson to its shareholders in a tax free spinoff (the �Distribution�) upon the effectiveness of Crimson�s registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�).

Crimson qualifies as an �emerging growth company� as defined in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company is
defined as a company with total annual gross revenues of less than $1 billion in its most recently completed fiscal year. An
emerging growth company will retain such status until the earliest of: (1) the last day of the fiscal year of the emerging growth
company following the fifth anniversary of the date it first sold securities pursuant to an effective registration statement under
the Securities Act of 1933; (2) the last day of the fiscal year in which the emerging growth company first had total annual
gross revenues of $1 billion or more (indexed pursuant to the JOBS Act); (3) the date on which the emerging growth company
is deemed to be a �large accelerated filer� as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2 (i.e., an SEC registered company with a
public float of at least $700 million that satisfies other tests); or (4) the date on which the emerging growth company has,
within the previous three years, issued more than $1 billion of nonconvertible debt. Crimson has elected to opt out of the
extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards pursuant to Section 107(b) of the JOBS
Act. This election is irrevocable.

2. Nature of Operations:

The Company operates in one segment, the production and sale of premium, ultra premium and luxury wines (i.e., wines
that retail for $10 to $14, $14 to $25 and over $25 per 750ml bottle, respectively). Crimson is headquartered in Napa,
California and through its wholly-owned subsidiaries owns four wineries: Pine Ridge Vineyards, Archery Summit, Chamisal
Vineyards and Seghesio Family Vineyards. Pine Ridge was acquired in 1991 and has been conducting operations since 1978,
Archery Summit was started in 1993, Chamisal Vineyards was acquired during 2008 and has been conducting operations since
1973, and Seghesio Family Vineyards was acquired in 2011 and has been conducting operations since 1895. Additionally, in
2005 and 2006 Double Canyon Vineyards, a wholly owned subsidiary, was acquired, consisting of an aggregate of 611 acres
of land in the Horse Heaven Hills of Washington�s Columbia Valley, of which 462 are plantable to vineyards.

Pine Ridge Vineyards owns 168 acres and controls through leasing arrangements an additional 20 acres of estate
vineyards in five Napa Valley appellations�Stags Leap District, Rutherford, Oakville, Carneros and Howell Mountain.
Approximately 173 acres are currently planted and producing grapes. Archery Summit owns 100 acres and controls through
leasing arrangements an additional 20 acres of estate vineyards in the Willamette Valley, Oregon. Approximately 100 acres are
currently planted and producing grapes. Chamisal Vineyards owns 97 acres of vineyards in the Edna Valley, California, of
which 74 acres are currently planted and producing grapes. Seghesio Family Vineyards owns 299 acres of vineyards in two
Sonoma County appellations, the Alexander Valley and Russian River Valley, of which approximately 267 are currently
planted and producing grapes. Double Canyon Vineyards owns 462 plantable acres of vineyards in the Horse Heaven Hills,
Washington, of which 87 acres are currently planted and producing grapes.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Critical Accounting Estimates: The Company�s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (�GAAP�). The preparation of these financial statements
requires the Company to make estimates
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities.
On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates all of these estimates and assumptions. The following areas have been identified
as critical accounting estimates because they have the potential to have a significant impact on the Company�s financial
statements, and because they are based on assumptions which are used in the accounting records to reflect, at a specific point
in time, events whose ultimate outcome won�t be known until a later date. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Inventory�Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined on the first-in, first-out
method. Costs associated with winemaking, and other costs associated with the manufacturing of products for resale, are
recorded as inventory. In accordance with general practice within the wine industry, wine inventories are included in current
assets, although a portion of such inventories may be aged for periods longer than one year. As required, the Company reduces
the carrying value of inventories that are obsolete or in excess of estimated usage to estimated net realizable value. The
Company�s estimates of net realizable value are based on analyses and assumptions including, but not limited to, historical
usage, future demand and market requirements. Reductions to the carrying value of inventories are recorded in cost of sales. If
future demand and/or pricing for the Company�s products are less than previously estimated, then the carrying value of the
inventories may be required to be reduced, resulting in additional expense and reduced profitability. Inventory write-downs of
$51,000, $1,513,000 and $4,662,000 were recorded during 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Vineyard Development Costs�The Company capitalizes internal vineyard development costs when developing new
vineyards or replacing or improving existing vineyards. These costs consist primarily of the costs of the vines and
expenditures related to labor and materials to prepare the land and construct vine trellises. Amortization of such costs as
annual crop costs is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic useful life of the vineyard, which can be as
long as 25 years. As circumstances warrant, the Company re-evaluates the recoverability of capitalized costs, and will record
impairment charges if required. The Company has not recorded any significant impairment charges for its vineyards during the
last three years.

Review of Long-lived Assets for Impairment�For intangible assets with definite lives, impairment testing is required if
conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. For intangible assets with indefinite lives (the
Company has no intangible assets with indefinite lives) and for goodwill, impairment testing is required at least annually or
more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that these assets might be impaired. Substantially all of the Company�s
goodwill and other intangible assets result from the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards in May 2011. Amortization of
intangible assets is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 7 to 17
years. The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment at the end of each year, and has concluded that goodwill is not
impaired. Although the operating results and cash flows from Seghesio Family Vineyards have been as expected, the
Company has only owned Seghesio Family Vineyards for slightly more than one year. Should revenues deteriorate in the
future, impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets could be recorded.

The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets consist primarily of property and
equipment. Circumstances that might cause the Company to evaluate its long-lived assets for impairment could include a
significant decline in the prices the Company or the industry can charge for its products, which could be caused by general
economic or other factors, changes in laws or regulations that make it difficult or more costly for the Company to distribute its
products to its markets at prices which generate adequate returns, natural disasters, significant decrease in the demand for the
Company�s products or significant increases in the costs to manufacture the Company�s products.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

Recoverability of assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset group to future net cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset group. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company groups
its long-lived assets with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities (or asset group). This would typically be at the winery level which
is described in note 2 above.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company changed its development strategy at Double Canyon Vineyards,
determined that it would sell its winemaking equipment and related assets, and recorded an impairment charge of $351,000,
principally to reduce the carrying amount of these assets to be sold to fair value. Except for that charge, there were no events
or circumstances that caused the Company to review its long-lived assets for impairment during the three year period ended
December 31, 2011.

Depletion allowances�The Company pays depletion allowances to its distributors based on their sales to their customers.
These allowances are set on a monthly basis by the Company, and estimated allowances are accrued as a reduction of sales.
Subsequently, distributors will bill the Company for actual depletions, which may be different from the Company�s estimate.
Any such differences are recognized in sales when the bill is received. The Company has historically been able to accurately
estimate depletion allowances.

(b) Consolidation policy: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries,
all of which are wholly-owned. All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents: The Company considers short-term investments, which have maturities of less than three
months at the time of acquisition, to be cash equivalents. The Company had no short-term investments at December 31, 2011
and 2010.

(d) Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value. Interest is not accrued on past-due
amounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance to bad debt as they are deemed uncollectible based upon a periodic
review of the accounts.

(e) Property and equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the related assets estimated useful lives. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; significant
renewals and betterments are capitalized. Costs incurred developing vineyards are capitalized until the vineyard becomes
commercially productive.

(f) Concentrations of risk: The Company sells the majority of its wine through distributors and retailers. Receivables
arising from these sales are not collateralized. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, sales to one customer
accounted for approximately 15%, 15% and 13% of total sales, respectively. Amounts due from this customer represented
approximately 16% and 22% of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts that, at times, may exceed FDIC insurance thresholds.

(g) Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes revenue from product sales upon shipment or delivery provided that
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, which for sales to wholesalers is a purchase order, the price is fixed, title has
transferred, collection of resulting receivables is reasonably assured, there are no customer acceptance requirements, and there
are no remaining significant obligations. The cost of depletion allowances and price promotions are treated as reductions of
revenues and can be reasonably estimated based upon experience. Revenue from products sold through retail locations, wine
clubs and the Internet is recognized when the product is received by the customer and payment is received, based on published
retail prices and applicable
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

published discounts. Revenues include any shipping and handling costs billed to the customer, and such amounts are not
expected to be sufficient to cover actual costs.

(h) Cost of sales: Includes grape and bulk wine costs, whether purchased or grown, crush costs, winemaking and
processing costs, bottling, packaging, warehousing and shipping and handling costs. For vineyard produced grapes, grape
costs include annual farming costs and amortization of vineyard development expenditures. For wines that age longer than one
year, winemaking and processing costs continue to be incurred and capitalized to the cost of wine, which can range from 3 to
24 months.

(i) Taxes not on income: Excise taxes are levied by government agencies on the sale of alcoholic beverages, including
wine. These taxes are not collected from customers but are instead the responsibility of the Company. Excise taxes of
$760,000, $393,000 and $312,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, were recognized as a reduction to wine sales. Sales
taxes that are collected from customers and remitted to governmental agencies are not reflected as revenues.

(j) Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and were $82,000, $65,000 and $22,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(k) Income taxes: The Company and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated federal and certain consolidated or
combined state income tax returns of Leucadia. However, the provisions for income taxes in the consolidated statements of
operations have been determined on a theoretical separate-return basis. The Company does not have any unrecognized tax
benefits; however, if it did the Company would record accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as
income tax expense. See Note 10 for more information.

(l) Allocation of Expenses: For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the consolidated financial statements
include amounts billed by Leucadia for general corporate insurance ($335,000, $194,000 and $145,000, respectively), and for
internal audit procedures related to Leucadia�s consolidated audit of internal controls over financial reporting ($38,000,
$10,000 and $5,000, respectively). Amounts billed for insurance were determined either by the Company�s directly
determined share of third-party insurance premiums or, if an allocation of third-party insurance premiums, based on the
Company�s relative revenues and assets as compared to Leucadia�s consolidated revenues and consolidated assets. Costs
related to internal audit services were based on actual hours spent and the internal auditors� employment and travel costs.
After the Distribution the Company will be responsible for obtaining its own general corporate insurance policies and internal
audit services and expects that its costs will not be significantly different from its historical costs.

After the Distribution, the Company may incur certain new and incremental costs as a stand-alone public company
including director fees and expenses for its new board of directors, stand-alone Delaware franchise tax, increased legal and
accounting fees for reviews of the Company�s publicly filed financial statements, proxy and other filings and other services.
The Company estimates that these costs could be approximately $900,000 per year. In addition, the Company will enter into
an Administrative Services Agreement with Leucadia whereby Leucadia or its subsidiaries will provide services principally
related to the Company�s public filings and financial analysis. The charges for the administrative services will generally be
fixed and allow Leucadia to fully recover the costs directly associated with providing the services, plus out-of-pocket costs
and expenses. The estimated cost of these services is approximately $180,000, and the Company expects it will eventually
perform these services on its own in the future.

(m) Recent accounting pronouncements: In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued
authoritative guidance that revises the manner in which entities present comprehensive income in their financial statements.
The guidance requires entities to report comprehensive income in either a single, continuous statement or two separate but
consecutive statements. This guidance will become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

The Company does not expect the adoption of this new guidance will have a significant impact on the Company�s
consolidated financial condition and results of operations but may affect its presentation.

In May 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidance to amend the fair value measurement and disclosure requirements.
The guidance requires the disclosure of quantitative information about unobservable inputs used, a description of the valuation
processes used and a qualitative discussion around the sensitivity of the measurements. The guidance will become effective
for the Company at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2012. The Company does not expect the adoption of this new
guidance will have a significant impact on the Company�s consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued amended guidance creating new disclosure requirements about the nature of an
entity�s rights of setoff and related arrangements associated with its financial instruments and derivative instruments. The
Company is required to adopt this amended guidance for its annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2013. In
addition, this amended guidance requires retrospective application. The Company does not expect the adoption of this
amended guidance to have a significant impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued amended guidance for indefinite lived intangible asset impairment testing. The amended
guidance allows an entity to assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events and circumstances indicate
that it is more likely than not that an indefinite lived intangible asset is impaired. If an entity concludes it is not more likely
than not that an indefinite lived intangible asset is impaired, the entity is not required to take further action. If an entity
concludes otherwise, then the entity would be required to determine the fair value of the indefinite lived intangible asset and
compare the fair value with the carrying amount of the indefinite lived intangible asset. The Company is required to adopt this
amended guidance for its annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2013. The Company does not expect the adoption
of this amended guidance to have a significant impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

4. Acquisitions:

On May 31, 2011, a subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the assets and operations of Seghesio Winery, Inc.,
Seghesio Farms, Inc. and the Chianti Station Parcel (collectively, �Seghesio Family Vineyards�). This acquisition provided an
opportunity to expand operations in the Sonoma County region.

The cash purchase price was $86,018,000. The acquisition was financed by a $41,156,000 capital contribution (including
funds for expenses) and a $45,000,000 note payable from Leucadia.

In accordance with acquisition accounting, the acquired net assets were recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition.
The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition (in thousands):

Inventory $11,826
All other current assets 3,181
Property and equipment 48,503
Goodwill and intangible assets 23,303
Other assets 82

86,895
Current liabilities acquired 877

$86,018
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The methods used by the Company�s management to determine the fair values included estimating Seghesio Family
Vineyards� business enterprise value through the use of a discounted cash flow analysis. Property and equipment asset
valuations included an analysis of depreciated replacement cost and current market prices. The Company considered several
factors to determine the fair value of property and equipment, including local market conditions, recent market transactions,
the size, age, condition, utility and character of the property, the estimated cost to acquire replacement property, an estimate of
depreciation from use and functional obsolescence and the remaining expected useful life of the assets. Amounts allocated to
product inventories were principally based on an analysis of market values on the acquisition date. For other components of
working capital, the historical carrying values approximated fair values.

Amounts allocated to intangible assets, the amortization period and goodwill were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Amount Amortization
Years

Brand $17,500 17
Distributor relationships 2,600 14
Customer relationships 1,900 7
Legacy permits 250 14

Subtotal, intangible assets 22,250
Goodwill 1,053

Total $23,303

All of the goodwill is deductible for income tax purposes.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company expensed $603,000 of costs related to the acquisition of Seghesio
Family Vineyards.

Unaudited pro forma operating results for the Company, assuming the acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2010 are
as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Revenues and other income $47,028 $39,936
Net loss $(1,890 ) $(4,232 )

Pro forma adjustments principally reflect an increase to depreciation and amortization expenses related to the fair value of
property and equipment and amortizable intangible assets and retroactively reflecting acquisition related costs of $603,000
from 2011 to 2010. The unaudited pro forma data is not indicative of future results of operations or what would have resulted
if the acquisition had actually occurred as of January 1, 2010.

Operations of Seghesio Family Vineyards subsequent to May 31, 2011 are included in the accompanying financial
statements, which include revenue of $9,899,000. Earnings are impractical to determine as a result of shared selling and
general and administrative expenses.

5. Inventory:

A summary of inventory at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Case wine $20,744 $13,159
Bulk wine 18,169 11,678
Packaging and bottling supplies 93 9

$39,006 $24,846
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

6. Property and Equipment:

A summary of property and equipment at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows (in thousands):

Depreciable
Lives
(in years)

2011 2010

Land and improvements N/A $42,230 $21,427
Buildings and improvements 20-40 40,247 24,856
Vineyards and improvements 7-25 34,342 23,386
Winery and vineyard equipment 3-25 20,865 16,006
Caves 20-40 5,638 5,638
Vineyards under development N/A 2,056 3,287
Construction in progress N/A 320 46

145,698 94,646
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (34,915 ) (30,383)

$110,783 $64,263

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, depreciation expense was $4,977,000, $3,572,000 and
$3,773,000, respectively, with $4,317,000, $3,088,000 and $3,283,000, respectively, capitalized into inventory and $660,000,
$484,000 and $490,000, respectively, charged to the statements of operations.

7. Intangible Assets:

A summary of intangible assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Brand, net of accumulated amortization of $601 and $0 $16,899 $�
Distributor relationships, net of accumulated amortization of $108 and $0 2,492 �

Customer relationships, net of accumulated amortization of $158 and $0 1,742 �

Legacy permits, net of accumulated amortization of $10 and $0 240 �

Other, net of accumulated amortization of $33 and $23 167 177
$21,540 $177

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $887,000, $10,000 and $10,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. The estimated aggregate future amortization expense for the intangible assets is $1,514,000 for
each of the next five years.

8. Due to Leucadia and its Affiliates:

Amounts due to Leucadia and its affiliates bear interest at a specified bank prime rate plus 0.125%. All amounts are
payable on demand, except for the $45,000,000 note issued to Leucadia in connection with the acquisition of Seghesio Family
Vineyards that is due May 13, 2013. Unpaid interest, if any, is added to the principal balance on a quarterly basis.

Prior to the Distribution, the remaining balance of due to affiliates will be contributed by Leucadia to capital. Interest
expense to Leucadia and its affiliates was $4,494,000, $3,470,000 and $3,389,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.
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9. Revenues and Gross Profit:

The Company generates revenues from sales of wine to wholesalers and direct to consumers, sales of bulk wine and
grapes, special event fees, tasting fees and retail sales. Revenues and gross profit for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Revenues:

Sales to wholesalers $20,431 $9,335 $7,805
Direct to consumers 15,363 12,383 11,844
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 3,512 2,044 2,051

$39,306 $23,762 $21,700
Gross profit:
Sales to wholesalers $6,555 $3,150 $2,052
Direct to consumers 9,075 7,545 7,185
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 282 (38 ) 540
Inventory write-down (51 ) (1,513 ) (4,662 )

$15,861 $9,144 $5,115

Reductions to the carrying value of inventories to estimated net realizable value are reflected in the inventory write-down
category of gross profit in the table above.

10. Income Taxes:

The Company and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated federal and certain consolidated or combined state
income tax returns of Leucadia. However, the provisions for income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations have
been determined on a theoretical separate-return basis. Due to the Company�s history of pre-tax losses, it has not reflected a
benefit for its net operating loss carryforwards (�NOLs�) since the Company is unable to conclude it is more likely than not
that it will be able to generate future taxable income to use the NOLs. For all periods presented, the income tax provision
reflects California and Oregon state minimum income taxes aggregating $2,800 per year. In addition, for the year ended
December 31, 2009, the income tax provision reflects a benefit of $148,000 for a refund of California state income taxes paid
in 2003. The Company files a California state income tax return separate from Leucadia. The statute of limitations with
respect to the Company�s California state tax return has expired for all years through 2007. The Company currently has no
unrecognized tax benefits, and it is not reasonably possible to estimate the amount by which that could increase in the next
twelve months since the timing of examinations, if any, is unknown. However, given that the Company has historically only
paid minimum state income taxes, it does not expect any significant change during the next twelve months.

Prior to the Distribution, no formal tax sharing agreement was entered into between the Company and Leucadia. On the
distribution date, the Company and Leucadia will enter into a tax matters agreement that will govern the parties� respective
rights, responsibilities and obligations with respect to tax liabilities and benefits, tax attributes, the preparation and filing of
tax returns, the control of audits and other tax proceedings and other matters regarding taxes. In general, with respect to any
periods ending at or prior to the Distribution, Leucadia will be responsible for any federal income tax liabilities and any state
or local income taxes reportable on a consolidated, combined or unitary return, in each case, as would be applicable to the
Company as if it filed tax returns on a standalone basis. With respect to any periods beginning after the Distribution, the
Company will be responsible for any federal, state or local income taxes of it or any of its subsidiaries. The Company will not
be required to reimburse Leucadia for any payments made by Leucadia for adjustments to taxable periods prior to the
Distribution, nor will the Company be
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
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entitled to any refunds for adjustments to taxable periods prior to the Distribution. The Company is responsible for any
adjustments or liabilities related to its California state income tax return for all periods.

The principal components of deferred taxes at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Deferred Tax Asset:

Federal NOL carryover $29,013 $28,589
California NOL carryover 2,383 2,125
Intangible assets, net and goodwill 146 211
Other 167 89

31,709 31,104
Valuation allowance (26,888) (26,204)

4,821 4,810
Deferred Tax Liability:

Property and equipment (3,716 ) (3,689 )
Inventory (1,105 ) (1,121 )

(4,821 ) (4,810 )
Net deferred tax asset $� $�

The change in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance was $684,000, $735,000 and $2,754,000 for 2011, 2010 and
2009 respectively. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has $82,896,000 of federal NOLs on a separate-return basis and
$41,478,000 of California State NOLs. Subsequent to the Distribution, the Company will retain the California State NOLs;
however, the Company will retain federal NOLs only to the extent that they have not been previously used in Leucadia�s
consolidated return. As a result, the amount of federal NOLs that will be retained by the Company following the Distribution
is expected to be approximately $15,000,000, none of which begin to expire until 2023. The expiration dates of California
State NOLs expected to be retained by the Company after the Distribution are as follows (in thousands):

State
2012 $3,582
2013 1,397
2014 6,149
2015 �

2016 7,962
2017 6,240
Thereafter 16,148

$41,478

Under certain circumstances, the ability to use the NOLs and future deductions could be substantially reduced if certain
changes in ownership were to occur. In order to reduce this possibility, the Company�s certificate of incorporation includes a
charter restriction that prohibits transfers of the Company�s common stock under certain circumstances.
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The table below reconciles the expected statutory income tax rate to the actual income tax provision (benefit):

2011 2010 2009
Expected federal income tax benefit $(1,507) $(1,510) $(2,592)
State income tax expense (benefit) 3 3 (145 )
Tax benefit of current year losses fully reserved

in valuation allowance
1,507 1,510 2,592

Total $3 $3 $(145 )

11. Employee Benefit Plan:

A 401(k) profit sharing plan is provided to all employees who meet certain service requirements. The Company matched
25% of a participant�s salary deferral through March 2009, at which time, the company match was suspended. The Company
reinstated the match as of April 2011. Total company contributions to the plan were $67,000, $0 and $32,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

12. Commitments:

The Company has certain property lease agreements that expire through 2022. These leases require annual base rent,
supplemental rent based on the average market value of the grapes harvested, and certain operating expense payments. Future
base rents required under these agreements are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2012 $20
2013 18
2014 25
2015 25
2016 17
Thereafter 31

$136

Base rent expense was $19,000, $110,000 and $122,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Estimated supplemental rent payments, which are based on the market value of harvested grapes, are presented in
the grape and bulk wine purchase commitments below.

The Company has entered into long-term contracts through 2024 to purchase grapes and bulk wine from nonaffiliated
growers. Total estimated commitments under these agreements are as follows (in thousands):

2012 $5,158
2013 4,697
2014 3,138
2015 1,640
2016 748
Thereafter 1,267

$16,648

Amounts purchased under these agreements totaled $3,718,000, $989,000 and $876,000 for the years ended December
31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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13. Litigation:

The Company and its subsidiaries may become parties to legal proceedings that are considered to be either ordinary,
routine litigation incidental to their business or not significant to the Company�s consolidated financial position or liquidity.
The Company does not believe that there is any pending litigation that could have a significant adverse impact on its
consolidated financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

14. Subsequent events:

The Company has evaluated events and transactions subsequent to December 31, 2011 for potential recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. In November 2012, the Company entered into a contract to sell a non-strategic vineyard
for a sales price of $1,850,000 that had a book value of $1,039,000 at September 30, 2012. The transaction is expected to close
in the first quarter of 2013, and if it closes the Company will recognize a pre-tax gain of approximately $720,000, net of
closing costs.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure through January 11, 2013, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
(Unaudited)

September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

(Dollars in thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,329 $ 5,631
Accounts receivable, net 5,287 4,606
Inventory 41,487 39,006
Other current assets 663 679

Total current assets 55,766 49,922
Property and equipment, net 108,485 110,783
Goodwill 1,053 1,053
Other intangible assets, net 20,403 21,540

Total $ 185,707 $ 183,298
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 857 $ 2,518
Accrued expenses 5,393 3,389
Customer deposits 1,178 328
Due to Leucadia National Corporation and its affiliates 151,874 106,441

Total current liabilities 159,302 112,676
Due to Leucadia National Corporation � 45,000

Total liabilities 159,302 157,676
Commitments and contingencies
EQUITY
Common shares, par value $1 per share, authorized 1,000 shares; 1,000 shares issued and

outstanding
1 1

Additional paid-in capital 112,546 112,546
Retained deficit (86,142 ) (86,925 )

Total equity 26,405 25,622
Total $ 185,707 $ 183,298

See notes to interim consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011
(Unaudited)

2012 2011
(In thousands, except
per share amounts)

Net sales $34,270 $25,426
Cost of sales 16,474 13,708

Gross profit 17,796 11,718
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 8,141 6,194
General and administrative 5,169 4,518

Total operating expenses 13,310 10,712
Income from operations 4,486 1,006
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (3,886 ) (3,190 )
Other income (expense), net 185 176

Total other income (expense) (3,701 ) (3,014 )
Income (loss) before income taxes 785 (2,008 )
Income tax provision 2 2
Net income (loss) $783 $(2,010 )
Basic and fully diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 1 1
Basic and fully diluted net income (loss) per share $783 $(2,010 )

See notes to interim consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011
(Unaudited)

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Net cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $783 $(2,010 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operations:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 4,086 3,480
Leucadia National Corporation and its affiliates interest expense added to principal 2,879 2,801
Amortization of intangible assets 1,137 509
Net losses related to disposals of property and equipment 132 67

Net change in:
Receivables (971 ) (1,322 )
Inventory 42 (953 )
Other current assets (80 ) (17 )
Accounts payable, expense accruals and due to Leucadia National Corporation and its

affiliates
(1,836) 3,579

Customer deposits 850 874
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,022 7,008

Net cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (1,847) (2,542 )
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 23 96
Acquisition, net of cash acquired � (86,018)

Net cash used for investing activities (1,824) (88,464)
Net cash flows from financing activities:

Capital contribution $� $41,156
Issuance of debt to Leucadia National Corporation � 45,000
Principal payments to Leucadia National Corporation (2,500) �

Reduction of debt � (34 )
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities (2,500) 86,122
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,698 4,666

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1, 5,631 3,699
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30, $8,329 $8,365

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $1,138 $389
Income tax payments (refunds), net $1 $1

Non-cash financing activity:
Conversion of accrued interest to long-term debt $2,879 $2,801

See notes to interim consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011
(Unaudited)

Common Shares
$1 Par Value

Additional
Paid-In Capital

Retained
Deficit Total

(In thousands, except par value)
Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 1 $ 71,390 $(82,615) $(11,224)

Net loss (2,010 ) (2,010 )
Capital contribution 41,156 41,156

Balance, September 30, 2011 $ 1 $ 112,546 $(84,625) $27,922
Balance, January 1, 2012 $ 1 $ 112,546 $(86,925) $25,622

Net income 783 783
Balance, September 30, 2012 $ 1 $ 112,546 $(86,142) $26,405

See notes to interim consolidated financial statements.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1. Significant Accounting Policies:

The Crimson Wine Group, Ltd. (�Crimson�) is a Delaware company that has been operating since 1991. As used herein,
the term, �Company� refers to Crimson and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, except as the context may otherwise require.
Crimson is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leucadia National Corporation (�Leucadia�). Leucadia intends to distribute
Crimson to its shareholders in a tax free spinoff (the �Distribution�) upon the effectiveness of Crimson�s registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�).

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements, which reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring
items or items discussed herein) that management believes necessary to fairly state results of interim operations, should be
read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (including the Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies) included in the Company�s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, as filed
with the SEC on Form 10 (the �2011 Report�). Results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of
annual results of operations. The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011 was extracted from the audited annual
financial statements and does not include all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (�GAAP�) for annual financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted new Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) guidance with
respect to the improvement of the comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements
issued in accordance with GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. The amendment includes requirements for
measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements, but does not require additional fair value
measurements and is not intended to establish valuation standards or affect valuation practices outside of financial reporting.
The guidance did not have any impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted new FASB guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income. This
amendment eliminated the previous option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the statement of
changes in equity; instead, it requires the presentation of comprehensive income, the components of net income and the
components of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two
separate but consecutive statements. Since the Company has no components of comprehensive income other than net income,
adoption of this amendment did not have any impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted new FASB guidance with respect to the simplification of how entities
test for goodwill impairment. This amendment permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it
is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. The guidance did not have a significant impact on the
Company�s consolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions:

As more fully discussed in the 2011 Report, on May 31, 2011, a subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the assets and
operations of Seghesio Winery, Inc., Seghesio Farms, Inc. and the Chianti Station Parcel (collectively, �Seghesio Family
Vineyards�). Unaudited pro forma operating results for the Company for the nine month period ended September 30, 2011,
assuming the acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

Revenues and other income $33,148
Net income $410

F-22

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)��(Continued)

Pro forma adjustments principally reflect an increase to depreciation and amortization expenses related to the fair value of
property and equipment and amortizable intangible assets. The unaudited pro forma data is not indicative of future results of
operations or what would have resulted if the acquisition had actually occurred as of January 1, 2010.

Operations of Seghesio subsequent to May 31, 2011 are included in the accompanying financial statements, which
include revenue of $4,468,000. Earnings are impractical to determine as a result of shared selling and general and
administrative expenses.

3. Inventory:

A summary of inventory at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Case wine $25,230 $20,744
Bulk wine 16,257 18,169
Packaging and bottling supplies � 93

$41,487 $39,006

Bulk wine inventory includes costs of growing grapes not yet harvested as of September 30, 2012.

4. Intangible Assets:

A summary of intangible assets at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Brand, net of accumulated amortization of $1,372 and $601 $16,128 $16,899
Distributor relationships, net of accumulated amortization of

$248 and $108
2,352 2,492

Customer relationships, net of accumulated amortization of
$362 and $158

1,538 1,742

Legacy permits, net of accumulated amortization of $24 and
$10

226 240

Other, net of accumulated amortization of $41 and $33 159 167
$20,403 $21,540

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $1,137,000 and $509,000 for the nine month periods ended September 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The estimated aggregate future amortization expense for the intangible assets is $377,000 for the
remainder of 2012 and $1,514,000 for each of the four years after 2012.

5. Due to Leucadia and its Affiliates;

Amounts due to Leucadia and its affiliates bear interest at a specified bank prime rate plus 0.125%. All amounts are
payable on demand, except for the $45,000,000 note issued to Leucadia in connection with the acquisition of Seghesio Family
Vineyards that is due May 13, 2013. Unpaid interest, if any, is added to the principal balance on a quarterly basis.

Prior to the Distribution, the remaining balance of due to Leucadia and its affiliates will be contributed by Leucadia to
capital. Interest expense related to Leucadia and its affiliates was $3,886,000 and $3,189,000 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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6. Revenues and Gross Profit:

The Company generates revenues from sales of wine to wholesalers and direct to consumers, sales of bulk wine and
grapes, special event fees, tasting fees and retail sales. Revenues and gross profit for the nine months ended September 30,
2012 and 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Revenues:

Wholesalers $19,999 $13,961
Direct to consumers 12,255 9,654
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 2,016 1,811

$34,270 $25,426
Gross profit:

Sales to wholesalers $10,104 $5,395
Direct to consumers 7,217 5,766
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 475 557

$17,796 $11,718

Excise taxes of $634,000 and $554,000 in 2012 and 2011, respectively, were recognized as a reduction to wine sales.

7. Subsequent events:

The Company has evaluated events and transactions subsequent to September 30, 2012 for potential recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. In November 2012, the Company entered into a contract to sell a non-strategic vineyard
for a sales price of $1,850,000 that had a book value of $1,039,000 at September 30, 2012. The transaction is expected to close
in the first quarter of 2013, and if it closes the Company will recognize a pre-tax gain of approximately $720,000, net of
closing costs.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure through January 11, 2013, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors of
Seghesio Family Vineyards

We have audited the combined balance sheets of Seghesio Family Vineyards, as of May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
and the related combined statements of operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the five and twelve month period
ended May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Seghesio Family Vineyards as of May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity for the five and twelve months ended May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Santa Rosa, California
December 6, 2012
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS

May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $609 $293
Accounts receivable, net 2,177 2,025
Inventory 6,036 9,161
Due from related parties 176 176
Other current assets 632 186

Total current assets 9,630 11,841
Property and equipment, net 14,078 14,206
Other assets 115 85

Total $23,823 $26,132
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Line of credit $2,830 $4,101
Accounts payable 342 1,103
Due to related parties � 124
Accrued expenses 640 210
Debt due within one year 474 471

Total current liabilities 4,286 6,009
Long-term debt 3,533 3,704

Total liabilities 7,819 9,713
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 12)
EQUITY
Common shares, par value $10 per share, authorized 200,000 shares; 25,100 shares issued and

outstanding
251 251

Retained earnings 15,753 16,168
Total equity 16,004 16,419

Total $23,823 $26,132

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the five month period ended May 31, 2011 and year ended December 31, 2010

2011 2010
(In thousands)

Net sales $7,722 $16,174
Cost of sales 4,473 7,076

Gross profit 3,249 9,098
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 1,375 3,130
General and administrative 925 2,471

Total operating expenses 2,300 5,601
Income from operations 949 3,497
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (161 ) (342 )
Other income 87 296

Total other income (expense) (74 ) (46 )
Income before income taxes 875 3,451
Income tax provision 29 54
Net income $846 $3,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the five month period ended May 31, 2011 and year ended December 31, 2010

2011 2010
(In thousands)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $846 $3,397
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 517 1,172
Net gain related to disposals of property and equipment � (11 )
Increase (decrease) in LIFO reserve 1,143 (71 )
Net change in:

Receivables (152 ) (549 )
Inventory 1,982 (2,269)
Other current assets (446 ) (37 )
Other assets (30 ) (25 )
Accounts payable, expense accruals and due to affiliates (455 ) (574 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,405 1,033

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (389 ) (2,682)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment � 14

Net cash used for investing activities (389 ) (2,668)
Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Net borrowings (repayments) on line of credit (1,271) 4,101
Borrowings on long-term debt � 101
Reduction of debt (168 ) (439 )

Distributions (1,261) (2,887)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities (2,700) 876

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 316 (759 )
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1, 293 1,052
Cash and cash equivalents at May 31, and December 31, $609 $293
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $104 $337
Income tax payments $11 $48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the five month period ended May 31, 2011 and year ended December 31, 2010

Common Shares
$10 Par Value

Retained
Earnings Total

(In thousands, except par value)
Balance, January 1, 2010 $ 251 $15,658 $15,909

Net income 3,397 3,397
Distributions (2,887 ) (2,887 )

Balance, December 31, 2010 251 16,168 16,419
Net income 846 846
Distributions (1,261 ) (1,261 )

Balance, May 31, 2011 $ 251 $15,753 $16,004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Acquisition by Crimson Wine Group:

The accompanying financial statements include the Balance Sheet as of the closing date of the acquisition by Crimson
Wine Group, Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leucadia National Corporation, May 31, 2011 and results of operations for
the period then ended. As a part of the transaction all liabilities, including long-term debt, were paid off through escrow on the
closing date. Total cash paid was $86,018,000.

2. Description and Nature of Operations:

These combined financial statements represent the combination of three separate entities which consist of Seghesio
Wineries, Inc., a California Corporation, Seghesio Farms, Inc., a California Corporation and the Chianti Station Parcel, a land
holding owned individually by a Seghesio family member. These three entities combined represent Seghesio Family
Vineyards (the �Company�).

Seghesio Family Vineyards owns and operates a premium winery in Healdsburg, California. The Company has been
producing wine for over 100 years and has production facilities for over 100,000 cases, predominately Zinfandel and Italian
varietals, sold to distributors throughout the United States and directly to consumers through its tasting room and wine club.
Seghesio Family Vineyards owns 299 acres of vineyards in two Sonoma County appellations, the Alexander Valley and
Russian River Valley, of which approximately 267 are currently planted and producing grapes. The Company also operates a
hospitality center at its main winery facility that it rents out for various events.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Critical Accounting Estimates: The Company�s combined financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (�GAAP�). The preparation of these financial statements
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates all of these estimates and
assumptions. The following areas have been identified as critical accounting estimates because they have the potential to have
a significant impact on the Company�s financial statements, and because they are based on assumptions which are used in the
accounting records to reflect, at a specific point in time, events whose ultimate outcome won�t be known until a later date.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Inventory�Bottled wine and bulk wine inventories are determined using the lower of cost under the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method, or market. The costs of merchandise and supplies are determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. A
LIFO reserve is calculated and recognized to reflect the difference between FIFO cost and LIFO cost of the inventory on
bottled and bulk wine. Such reserve was $6,713,000 and $5,570,000 at May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. As
required, the Company reduces the carrying value of inventories that are obsolete or in excess of estimated usage to estimated
net realizable value. The Company�s estimates of net realizable value are based on analyses and assumptions including, but
not limited to, historical usage, future demand and market requirements. Reductions to the carrying value of inventories are
recorded in cost of sales. If future demand and/or pricing for the Company�s products are less than previously estimated, then
the carrying value of the inventories may be required to be reduced, resulting in additional expense and reduced profitability.
There were no inventory write-downs for the five months ending May 31, 2011 or for the year ending December 31, 2010.
Wine inventories are classified as current assets in accordance with general practice in the wine industry, although some wines
are aged for periods longer than one year.

Vineyard Development Costs�The Company capitalizes internal vineyard development costs when developing new
vineyards or replacing or improving existing vineyards. These costs consist primarily of the costs of the vines and
expenditures related to labor and materials to prepare the
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

land and construct vine trellises. Amortization of such costs as annual crop costs is recorded on a straight-line basis over the
estimated economic useful life of the vineyard, which can be as long as 25 years. As circumstances warrant, the Company re-
evaluates the recoverability of capitalized costs, and will record impairment charges if required. The Company has not
recorded any significant impairment charges for its vineyards during the five month period ended May 31, 2011 or the year
ended December 31, 2010.

(b) Combination policy: The combined financial statements include the accounts of Seghesio Wineries, Inc., a California
Corporation, Seghesio Farms, Inc., a California Corporation and the Chianti Station Parcel, a land holding owned individually
by a Seghesio family member. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in combination.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents: The Company considers short-term investments, which have maturities of less than three
months at the time of acquisition, to be cash equivalents. The Company had no short-term investments at May 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010.

(d) Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value. Interest is not accrued on past-due
amounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance for bad debt as they are deemed uncollectible based upon a periodic
review of the accounts.

(e) Property and equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the related assets estimated useful lives. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; significant
renewals and betterments are capitalized. Costs incurred developing vineyards are capitalized until the vineyard becomes
commercially productive.

(f) Concentrations of risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist of cash in excess of FDIC limits and trade accounts receivable. Generally, the cash is available on demand and is
subject to minimal market risk. Receivables arising from sales are not collateralized; however, the Company does not make
repeat sales to customers with past-due balances until accounts are made current.

Approximately 11% of gross wine sale were attributable to one customer for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and to a
different customer for the year ended December 31, 2010. Amounts due from the respective customer accounted for 20% and
16% of accounts receivable as of May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

The Company exports its wine to 35 countries outside the United States. Export sales were $1,184,000 and $2,401,000
and comprised approximately 15% of revenues for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31,
2010, respectively.

(g) Revenue recognition: Revenue is recognized when the product is shipped or delivered and title passes to the customer.

(h) Excise taxes: Excise taxes are levied by government agencies on the sale of alcoholic beverages, including wine.
These taxes are not collected from customers but are instead the responsibility of the Company. Excise taxes of $140,700 and
$302,000 for the five months ended May 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively, were recognized
as a reduction to wine sales.

(i) Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and were $82,900 and $191,100 for the five months
ended May 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively.

(j) Shipping and handling: Shipping and handling costs of $164,000 and $285,000 for the five months ended May 31,
2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively, are included in operating expenses.

(k) Income taxes: The Company has elected S corporation status for federal income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly,
all federal income tax attributes are passed through to the Company�s shareholders. The Company files income tax returns in
the federal jurisdiction and the
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

state of California. The Company is no longer subject to United States federal or state and local income tax examinations by
tax authorities for years before 2006.

(l) Uncertain tax positions: The Company classifies interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of
income tax expense in the combined statements of operations. As of May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company did
not have any entity level uncertain tax positions.

(4) Inventory:

A summary of inventory at May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Case wine $5,280 $7,446
Bulk wine 7,173 7,015
Packaging, bottling supplies and merchandise 296 270

12,749 14,731
Less reserve for LIFO 6,713 5,570

$6,036 $9,161

If the FIFO method had been used, the Company would have reported net income of approximately $1,989,000 for the
five months ended May 31, 2011 and $3,326,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

5. Property and Equipment:

A summary of property and equipment at May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is as follows (in thousands):

Depreciable
Lives
(in years)

2011 2010

Land and improvements 0-20 $2,905 $2,905
Buildings and improvements 40 7,651 7,647
Vineyards and improvements 10-25 1,525 1,525
Winery and vineyard equipment 5-10 8,680 8,610
Vineyards under development N/A 2,593 2,256
Construction in progress N/A 81 103

23,435 23,046
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (9,357 ) (8,840 )

$14,078 $14,206

For the five month period ended May 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010, depreciation expense was
$517,000 and $1,172,000, respectively, with $210,000 and $818,000, respectively, capitalized into inventory and $307,000
and $354,000, respectively, charged to the statements of operations.

6. Related Party Transactions:

A portion of grapes used in the Company�s operations are obtained from Seghesio family members who are also
employees and shareholders of the Company. For the five months ended May 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31,
2010, 0 tons and 88 tons for $0 and $245,000 were purchased from the related parties. As of May 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, amounts
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

payable to related parties for grape purchases totaled $0 and $124,300, respectively. The Company has committed to long-
term grape contracts with the related party growers; see Note 11.

The Company periodically advances funds to related parties for operating support. Amounts outstanding under these
arrangements were $176,000 at May 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. Amounts bear no interest and are due upon demand.

7. Revenues and Gross Profit:

The Company generates revenues from sales of wine to wholesalers and direct to consumers, sales of bulk wine and
grapes, special event fees, tasting fees and retail sales. Revenues and gross profit for the five month period ended May 31,
2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Revenues:

Sales to wholesalers $5,442 $10,228
Direct to consumers 2,243 5,620
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 37 326

$7,722 $16,174
Gross profit:

Sales to wholesalers $1,695 $4,887
Direct to consumers 1,535 4,237
Bulk wine and grape sales, event fees and retail sales 19 (26 )

$3,249 $9,098

8. Revolving Line of Credit:

The Company has available a $6,000,000 revolving line of credit that bears interest at a rate per year of 2% above the
LIBOR rate, which was 2.20% as of May 31, 2011 and 2.38% as of December 31, 2010. The line of credit is secured by
accounts receivable, inventories, and other assets of the Company, is guaranteed by a related party, and matures in November
2012. The line of credit agreement requires that certain restrictions relating to financial conditions be met. The line of credit
terminated upon the close of acquisition, see Note 1.
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

9. Long-Term Debt:

May 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Note payable to a bank requiring quarterly interest and principal payments of $55,000;
fixed interest rate of 6.86%; collateralized by real and personal property and water
rights; matures July 2024

$ 1,904 1,926

Note payable to a bank requiring quarterly interest and principal payments of $38,600;
fixed interest rate of 6.21%; collateralized by real and personal property and water
rights; matures January 2020

1,036 1,080

Note payable to a bank requiring quarterly interest and principal payments of $42,800;
fixed interest rate of 5.90%; collateralized by real property; matures April 2013

320 358

Note payable to a bank requiring quarterly interest and principal payments of $10,500;
fixed interest rate of 6.45%; collateralized by real and personal property and water
rights; matures May 2020

290 301

Note payable to a bank requiring quarterly interest and principal payments of $17,800;
fixed interest rate of 5.99%; collateralized by real and personal property and water
rights; matures August 2015

265 291

Various vineyard equipment notes payable 192 219
4,007 4,175

Less current maturities 474 471
$ 3,533 $ 3,704

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended May 31,
2012 $474
2013 495
2014 358
2015 353
2016 286
Thereafter 2,041

$4,007

All debt was paid off upon close of the acquisition; see Note 1.

10. Employee Benefit Plan:

A defined contribution plan covers all employees meeting certain age and service requirements. The Company will match
$0.50 for each $1 contributed by a participant, up to 4% of that participant�s compensation. The Company may also make
discretionary contributions to the plan. Amounts contributed to the plan were $18,700 and $36,400 for the five month period
ended May 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively.
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SEGHESIO FAMILY VINEYARDS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS��(Continued)

11. Commitments:

The Company has long-term purchase contracts with certain third-party and related party growers to supply a significant
portion of its future grape requirements. Contract amounts are subject to change based upon actual vineyard yields, grape
quality, and changes in grape prices. Estimated future grape purchase commitments are as follows (in thousands):

For the year ending:

Third
Party Related Party

2011 (for the remaining seven month period) $1,370 $ 511
2012 2,500 511
2013 2,329 559
2014 2,004 212
2015 927 212
Thereafter 2,334 �

$11,464 $ 2,005

Amounts purchased under these agreements were $0 and $1,881,000 for the five month period ending May 31, 2011 and
for the year ending December 31, 2010, respectively.

12. Litigation:

The Company and its subsidiaries may become parties to legal proceedings that are considered to be either ordinary,
routine litigation incidental to their business or not significant to the Company�s consolidated financial position or liquidity.
The Company does not believe that there is any pending litigation that could have a significant adverse impact on its
combined financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

13. Subsequent Event:

Substantially all assets were acquired and all liabilities paid off in conjunction with the acquisition by Crimson Wine
Group on May 31, 2011, further discussed in Note 1.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure through December 6, 2012, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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INTRODUCTION TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of Crimson, as of and for the nine months ended September
30, 2012, have been adjusted to reflect the contributions to capital described below, as if they had occurred on January 1, 2011.

� A contribution to capital of the due to Leucadia and its affiliates balance, which will be made prior to the Distribution.

� A cash capital contribution estimated to be approximately $13,000,000, which will be made after the Distribution.

� The removal of historical interest expense related to the due to Leucadia and its affiliates balance.

The unaudited pro forma statements of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended
December 31, 2011 have been adjusted to reflect estimated expenses for the administrative services agreement to be entered
into with Leucadia, as if that agreement had been in effect during the periods presented.

The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 has been adjusted to
reflect the acquisition of Seghesio Family Vineyards as if it had occurred on January 1, 2011, and to reflect the capital
contributions described above, as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period. On May 31, 2011, Pine Ridge Winery,
LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crimson, acquired various assets constituting the business of Seghesio Family Vineyards
pursuant to certain Asset Purchase Agreements aggregating $86,018,000. The purchase price was funded with debt financing
and equity contributions from Leucadia.

The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations has been prepared based upon the actual purchase price
allocation applied by Crimson during 2011. All significant pro forma adjustments and their underlying assumptions are
described more fully in the notes to the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the year ended December
31, 2011.

The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial statements should be read in conjunction with Crimson�s historical
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and the historical combined financial statements and notes thereto of
Seghesio Family Vineyards, both included herein. The unaudited pro forma financial statements are presented for
informational purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of actual results had the foregoing transactions occurred as
described above, nor does it purport to represent results of future operations.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2012

The Company
Historical

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Pro Forma
As Adjusted

(In thousands, except par value)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,329 $13,000
(1)

$21,329

Accounts receivable, net 5,287 5,287
Inventory 41,487 41,487
Other current assets 663 663

Total current assets 55,766 13,000 68,766
Property and equipment, net 108,485 108,485
Goodwill 1,053 1,053
Other intangible assets, net 20,403 20,403

Total $ 185,707 $13,000 $198,707
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 857 $857
Accrued expenses 5,393 5,393
Customer deposits 1,178 1,178
Due to Leucadia National Corporation and its affiliates 151,874 $(151,874)(2) �

Total current liabilities 159,302 (151,874 ) 7,428
Due to Leucadia National Corporation �

Total liabilities 159,302 (151,874 ) 7,428
Commitments and contingencies
EQUITY

Common shares, par value $1 and $.01 per share 1 244
(3)

245

Additional paid-in capital 112,546 13,000
(1)

277,176

151,874
(2)

(244 )(3)

Retained deficit (86,142 ) (86,142 )
Total equity 26,405 164,874 191,279

Total $ 185,707 $13,000 $198,707

Notes:

(1) Reflects estimated cash capital contribution by Leucadia to be made after the Distribution.
(2) Reflects contribution to capital of the due to Leucadia and its affiliates balance to be made prior to the Distribution.

(3) Reflects the increase in outstanding shares prior to the Distribution.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

The Company
Historical

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Pro Forma
As Adjusted

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Net sales $ 34,270 $ 34,270
Cost of sales 16,474 16,474

Gross profit 17,796 17,796
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 8,141 8,141
General and administrative 5,169 $135 (i) 5,304

Total operating expenses 13,310 135 13,445
Income from operations 4,486 (135 ) 4,351
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (3,886 ) 3,886 (h) �

Other income (expense), net 185 185
Total other income (expense) (3,701 ) 3,886 185

Income before income taxes 785 3,751 4,536

Income tax provision 2 �
(k)

2

Net income $ 783 $3,751 $ 4,534
Basic and fully diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 1 24,457 (j) 24,458
Basic and fully diluted net income per share $ 783 $ 0.19

See Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Statements of Operations.
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CRIMSON WINE GROUP, LTD.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

The Company
Historical

Seghesio
Historical

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Pro Forma
As Adjusted

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Net sales $ 39,306 $7,722 $ 47,028
Cost of sales 23,445 4,473 $(1,108 )(d) 25,924

(1,143 )(e)
(224 )(f)

481
(g)

Gross profit 15,861 3,249 1,994 21,104
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 9,280 1,375 10,655
General and administrative 6,704 925 (603 )(c) 7,782

(183 )(f)

759
(g)

180 (i)
Total operating expenses 15,984 2,300 153 18,437
Income (loss) from operations (123 ) 949 1,841 2,667
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (4,495 ) (161 ) 161 (f) (1 )

4,494
(h)

Other income (expense), net 311 87 398
Total other income (expense) (4,184 ) (74 ) 4,655 397
Income (loss) before income taxes (4,307 ) 875 6,496 3,064
Income tax provision (benefit) 3 29 (29 )(k) 3
Net income (loss) $ (4,310 ) $846 $6,525 $ 3,061
Basic and fully diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 1 24,457 (j) 24,458
Basic and fully diluted net income (loss) per share $ (4,310 ) $ 0.13

See Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Statements of Operations.

F-39

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Statements of Operations
(dollars in thousands)

(a) Cash paid to acquire Seghesio Family Vineyards:

Funded by debt financing from Leucadia $45,000
Funded by equity capital from Leucadia 41,018

Aggregate net cash consideration $86,018

(b)

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction were recognized at their respective fair values, as indicated
in the chart below. If applicable, estimated useful lives and amortization periods are shown next to the amount allocated
to the particular asset; all intangible and tangible assets are depreciated or amortized over their respective life in a
manner that reflects the Company�s use of the asset.

Amount Useful
Life

Intangible assets and goodwill:
Brand $17,500 17 years
Distributor relationships 2,600 14 years
Customer relationships 1,900 7 years
Legacy permits 250 14 years
Goodwill 1,053

Total intangible assets and goodwill 23,303
Property and equipment:

Land 20,803
Vineyard development 8,500 25 years
Winery & hospitality buildings 11,500 40 years
Other 7,700 5 to 25 years

Total property, equipment and leasehold improvements 48,503
Inventory 11,826
Other, net of liabilities 2,386

Fair value of net assets acquired $86,018

(c) To eliminate Seghesio acquisition expenses recognized by the Company during 2011.

(d) To decrease cost of sales based on the fair value of acquired inventory as described in (b) above.

(e) To account for the cost of inventories using the FIFO method instead of the LIFO method used by Seghesio prior to the
acquisition.

(f) To eliminate the historical interest, depreciation and amortization expenses of Seghesio for the period January 1, 2011 to
May 31, 2011.

(g) To record depreciation and amortization expenses based on the purchase price allocations and useful lives in note (b)
above.

(h) To eliminate historical interest expense to Leucadia and its affiliates as all amounts due will be contributed to capital
prior to the Distribution.

(i)
To record additional expenses for the administrative services agreement to be entered into with Leucadia, estimated to be
$135,000 and $180,000 for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended December 31, 2011,
respectively, as if that agreement had been in effect during the periods presented.

(j) To increase pro forma shares outstanding to reflect the distribution ratio of one Crimson common share for every 10
Leucadia shares outstanding.
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(k)

Except for state minimum income taxes, no federal or state tax expense is reflected on a pro forma basis due to the
availability of federal and state net operating loss carryforwards which have been fully reserved for in the net deferred
tax valuation allowance. Until such time as sufficient evidence exists to recognize these losses through the reversal of all
or a portion of the valuation allowance, no income tax provisions would be recorded to the extent these losses are
available to offset taxable income. The pro forma adjustment to eliminate Seghesio�s historical tax provision reflects that
on a pro forma combined basis the Company�s net operating loss carryforwards would have been available to offset
Seghesio�s taxable income.
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